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Important  Notice  Regarding  Acceptance  of  Notices 
For  Publication  in  the  Weekly  “Gazette”

Attention is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance of Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of publication. 
All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times of applications in 
respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared by giving adequate time 
both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those interested in the contents of such 
notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect of corrections pertaining to notification will 
not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All Notices to be published in the weekly Gazette should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e. Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazette of 01st March, 2024 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 16th February, 2024.

Electronic Transactions Act, No. 19 of  2006 - Section 9
“Where any Act or enactment provides that any proclamation, rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other matter shall be 

published in the Gazette, then such requirement shall be deemed to have been satisfied if such rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other 
matter is published in an electronic form of the Gazette.

	 Gangani Liyanage, 
	 Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing, 
Colombo 08, 
01st January, 2024.

  This Gazette can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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Appointments &c., by the President
No. 236 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ GEN/24(01).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Promotions, Relinquishment of  Appointments and 
New Appointments  Approved by the Honourable 

President

PROMOTIONS 

1. The Honourable President has approved the promotion of 
the undermentioned Senior Officers to the rank of Temporary 
Major General with effect form the dates mentioned below:
	
	a. With effect form 09th December, 2023 :

	 (1) 	Brigadier A P Wickramasekara USP psc 
(O/61746);
	 (2) 	Brigadier W L A C Perera RWP RSP USP 
(O/61698);
	 (3) 	Brigadier K  L  S  S Liyanagama RWP RSP 
(O/61707);

	b. With effect form 01st January, 2024 : 

	 (1) 	Brigadier A M K G P S K Abeysinghe (O/61705);
	 (2) 	Brigadier C A  Rajapakse RSP (O/61709);
	 (3) 	Brigadier W B J K Wimalaratne RWP RSP 
(O/61694);

RELINQUISHMENT OF APPOINTMENTS AND 
NEW  APPOINtMENTS 

2.	The Honourable President has approved the 
relinquishment of  appointments and new appointments of 
the undermentioned Senior Officers with effect from the 
dates mentioned below:

	a. With effect form 09 December, 2023: 

(1)	 Brigadier (Temporary Major General) A P 
Wickramasekara USP psc (O/61746) - To relinquish the 
appointment of Brigadier (General Staff), Security Force 
Headquarters (Central) and to be appointed as Deputy Chief 
of Staff, Army Headquarters;

(2) Brigadier (Temporary Major General ) W L A C 
Perera RWP RSP USP (O/61698) - To relinquish the 
appointment of  Brigadier (General Staff ), General Staff 
Branch, Army Headquarters  and to be appointed as Director 
General, General Staff, Army Headquarters;

	(3) Brigadier (Temporary Major General )  K  L  S  S 
Liyanagama RWP RSP (O/61707) - To relinquish the 
appointment of  Deputy Director, Directorate of  Training, 
Army Headquarters and to be appointed as General Officer 
Commanding, 66 Infantry Division;

	b. With effect form 01st January, 2024 : 
	

	(1) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) A M K G P S 
K Abeysinghe (O/61705) - To relinquish the appointment 
of  Director Pay and Records, Army Headquarters and to be 
appointed as Commander, Logistic Command;

 
	(2) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) C A  Rajapakse 

RSP (O/61709) - To relinquish the appointment of  
Commandant, Ranaviru Resource Center and to be appointed 
as 	Director General Sports, Army Headquarters;

(3) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) W B J K 
Wimalaratne RWP RSP (O/61694) - To relinquish the 
appoinment of Chief Instructor, Senior Command Wing, 
Officer Career Development Centre and to be appointed as 
Commander, Security Force Headquarters (Jaffna).

By the Honourable President's Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

01st january, 2024.

02-129/1
   

No. 237 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/BRIG/23(06).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Promotions, Relinquishment of  Appointment and 
New Appointment  Approved by the Honourable 

President

PROMOTIONS 

1. The Honourable President has approved the promotion of 
the undermentioned Senior Officer to the rank of Temporary 
Brigadier with effect form 19th August, 2023:
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Colonel K T R B Kodippili psc (O/62418).
	

RELINQUISHMENT OF APPOINTMENTS AND 
NEW APPOINtMENTS 

2. The Honourable President has approved the 
relinquishment of  appointments and new appointment of   
the undermentioned Senior Officers with effect from 19th 
August, 2023 :

	
Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) K T R B Kodippili 

psc (O/62418). To relinquish the appointment of Chief 
Coordinator (Project), Headquarters Centre for Research 
and Development and to be appointed as Commander, 
Subordinate Area Headquarters (Kurunegala).

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

24th November, 2023.

02-129/2

No. 238 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/BRIG/24(01).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Promotions, Relinquishment of  Appointments and 
New Appointment  Approved by the Honourable 

President

PROMOTIONS 

1. The Honourable President has approved the promotion of 
the undermentioned Senior Officers to the rank of Temporary 
Brigadier with effect form 01st January, 2024 :

	 (1)	 Colonel P M S Karunaratne psc (O/63025).(Battle 
Casualty Category 3 Supernumerary)

	 (2)	 Colonel A D Rodrigo RWP RSP psc (O/63026).
	 (3)	 Colonel S N M A B Arambepola RWP (O/63030).
	 (4)	 Colonel K P L Amunupura RWP RSP USP 

(O/63036).
	 (5)	 Colonel P W M M D Wijeratne RSP USP (O/63038).

	 (6)	 Colonel Y M S C B Jayathilake RSP USP (O/63042).
	 (7)	 Colonel B A P Liyanage RWP RSP USP (O/62221). 

(Battle Casualty Category 3 Supernumerary)
	 (8)	 Colonel G A D K G Ganegoda RSP USP psc 

(O/62607)
	 (9)	 Colonel Y S P Sumanasinghe RSP (O/62609).
	 (10)	 Colonel Y K S Rangika psc ptsc (O/63383).
	 (11)	 Colonel A K Peiris RSP (O/62611).
	 (12)	 Colonel K A D N R Kannangara RSP IG (O/63073).
	 (13)	 Colonel K H M U B Kolongahapitiya USP 

(O/63080).
	 (14)	 Colonel A K C S de Silva RSP (O/63084).
	 (15)	 Colonel M H R Fernando RWP RSP USP 

(O/63086).
	 (16)	 Colonel K Weerasinghe USP (O/62209).

RELINQUISHMENT OF APPOINTMENTS AND 
NEW APPOINtMENTS

2. The Honourable President has approved the 
relinquishment of  appointments and new appointments of 
the undermentioned Senior Officers with effect from 01st 
January, 2024 :
	

a.  Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) A D Rodrigo RWP 
RSP psc (O/63026) - To relinquish the appointment of 
Deputy Director, Directorate of Velerans Affairs, Army 
Headquarters and to be appointed as Director Plans, Army 
Headquarters. 

b. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) S N M A B Arambepola 
RWP (O/63030) - to relinquish the appointment of Deputy 
Director, Directorate of Recruiting, Army Headquarters and 
to be appointed as Commander, Commando Brigade.

c. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) K P L Amunupura 
RWP RSP USP (O/63036) - To relinquish the appointment of 
Deputy Director, Directorate of Infantry, Army Headquarters 
and to be appointed as Deputy General Officer commanding, 
Headquarters 61 Infantry Division.

d. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier)P W M M D Wijeratne 
RSP USP (O/63038) - To relinquish the appointment of  
Commandant, Sri Lanka Signal Corps Training School and 
to be appointed as Centre Commandant, Regimental Centre 
Sri Lanka Medical Corps.

e. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier)Y M S C B Jayathilake 
RSP USP (O/63042) - To relinquish the appointment of 
Deputy Director, Directorate of  Plans, Army Headquarters 
and to be appointed as Commander, 533 Infantry Brigade.

f. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) G A D K G Ganegoda 
RSP USP psc (O/62607) - To relinquish the appointment of 
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Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 22 Infantry Division 
and to be appointed as Commander, 662 Infantry Brigade.

 
g. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) Y S P Sumanasinghe 

RSP (O/62609) - To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(Military Secretary), Military Secretary's Branch, Army 
Headquarters and to be appointed as Brigadier (Adjutant 
General), Adjutant General's Branch Army Headquarters.

h. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) Y K S Rangika psc 
ptsc (O/63383) - To  relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(Engineer Services), Directorate  of Engineer Services, 
Army Headquarters and to be appointed as Director Engineer 
Services, Army Headquarters.

i. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) A K Peiris RSP 
(O/62611) - To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(General Staff), Headquarters 58 Infantry Division and to be 
appointed as Commandant, Regimental Centre the Gajaba 
Regiment.

j. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) K A D N R 
Kannangara, RSP IG (O/63073) - To relinquish the 
appointment of Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 59 
Infantry Division and to be appointed as Brigadier (General 
Staff), Security Force Headquarters (Central).

k. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) K H M U B 
Kolongahapitiya, USP (O/63080) - To relinquish the 
appointment of Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 61 
Infantry Division and to be appointed as Brigadier (General 
Staff), General Staff Branch, Army Headquarters.

l. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) A K C S de Silva, 
RSP (O/63084) - To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(General Staff), Headquarters 23 Infantry Division and to 
be appointed as Deputy Director, Directorate of Training, 
Army Headquarters.

m. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) M H R Fernando, 
RWP RSP USP (O/63086) - To relinquish the appointment 
of Chief Instructor, Defence Services Command and Staff 
College and to be appointed as Chief Instructor, Senior 
Command Wing, Officer Career Development Centre.

n. Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) K. Weerasinghe, 
USP (O/62209) - To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(Logistic), Regimental Centre Corps of Engineer Services 

and to be appointed as Commandant, Regimental Centre Sri 
Lanka Corps of Military Police.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

01st january, 2024.

02-129/3

No. 239 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/COL/24(01).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Promotions, Relinquishment of  Appointments and 
New Appointment  Approved by the Honourable 

President

PROMOTIONS 

1. The Honourable President has approved the promotion of 
the undermentioned Senior Officers to the rank of Temporary 
Brigadier with effect from 01st January, 2024 :

	 a.	 Lieutenant Colonel L W B Ridimahaliyadda, USP 
IG SLA (O/64287)

	 b.	 Lieutenant Colonel A T L Seneviratne, RSP USP 
SLLI (O/63284)

	 c.	 Lieutenant Colonel M D Perera, SLEME (O/63288)
	 d.	 Lieutenant Colonel G A D I S Samaranayake, 

RSP GW (O/63293) (Battle Casualty Category 3 
Supernumerary)

	 e.	 Lieutenant Colonel G A S W M R P W S P B 
Galagama, RSP SLLI (O/63295) (Battle Casualty 
Category 3 Supernumerary)

	 f.	 Lieutenant Colonel H M M P Herath, RSP SLLI 
(O/63302)

	 g.	 Lieutenant Colonel W M D H R K Welikanna, 
RWP SLSR (O/63307) 

	 h.	 Lieutenant Colonel H G J T Perera, RSP SLSC 
(O/63313)

	 i.	 Lieutenant Colonel C T Siriwardana, Lsc AATO 
SLAOC (O/63400) 
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	 j.	 Lieutenant Colonel R P C A Samaranayake, RSP 
USP GW (O/63414)

	 k.	 Lieutenant Colonel U M T C Karunarathna, SLAC 
(O/63417)

	 l.	 Lieutenant Colonel A A D S Induka, SLSR 
(O/63419) 

	 m.	 Lieutenant Colonel J S R Fernando, RWP 
USP SF (O/63420). (Battle Casualty Category 3 
Supernumerary)

	 n.	 Lieutenant Colonel G S M Perera, USP 
SLLI (O/63424). (Battle Casualty Category 3 
Supernumerary)

	 o.	 Lieutenant Colonel I J Wickramasinghe, RWP RSP 
USP SLSR (O/63431)

	 p.	 Lieutenant Colonel W A K W Senarathne, RSP 
GW (O/63433). (Battle Casualty Category 3 
Supernumerary)

	 q.	 Lieutenant Colonel D C S K Athukorala, RSP 
SLSR (O/63435)

	 r.	 Lieutenant Colonel N I R Silva ato SLAOC 
(O/63437)

	 s.	 Lieutenant Colonel R S Batagalla, RSP SLSR 
(O/63296)

RELINQUISHMENT OF APPOINTMENTS AND 
NEW APPOINtMENTS

2. The Honourable President has approved the 
relinquishment of  appointments and new appointments of 
the undermentioned Senior Officers with effect from 01st 
January, 2024 :
	

a.  Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) L W B 
Ridimahaliyadda, USP IG SLA (O/64287) - To relinquish 
the appointment of General Staff Officer 1 (Coordinator), 
Headquarters 51 Infantry Division and to be appointed as 
Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 22 Infantry Division. 

b. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) A T L 
Seneviratne, RSP USP SLLI (O/63284) - to relinquish 
the appointment of General Staff Officer 1 (Additional), 
Directorate of Operations, Army Headquarters and to be 
appointed as Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 23 
Infantry Division.

c. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) M D Perera, 
SLEME (O/63288) - To relinquish the appointment of Staff 
Officer 1 (Administration & Quartering), Headquarters 51 
Infantry Division and to be appointed as Colonel (Engineer 
Services), Directorate of Engineer Services, Army 
Headquarters.

d. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel)  
H M M P Herath, RSP SLLI (O/63302) - To relinquish 
the appointment of Sector Commander, Headquarters 14 
Infantry Division (Operations Command Colombo) and to 
be appointed as Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 58 
Infantry Division.

e. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) W M D H 
R K Welikanna, RWP SLSR (O/63307) - To relinquish 
the appointment of General Staff Officer 1 (Air Defence), 
Security Force Headquarters (West) and to be appointed as 
Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 59 Infantry Division.

f. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) H G J 
T Perera, RSP SLSC (O/63313) - To relinquish the 
appointment of Town Commandant (Trincomalee) and to be 
appointed as Commandant, Sri Lanka Signal Corps Training 
School.

 
g. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) C T 

Siriwardana, Lsc AATO SLAOC (O/63400) - To relinquish 
the appointment of Commanding Officer, 2 Sri Lanka Army 
Ordnance Corps and to be appointed as Colonel (Logistic), 
Regimental Centre Corps of Engineer Services.

h. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) R P C A 
Samaranayake, RSP USP GW (O/63414) - To relinquish 
the appointment of Chief Executive Officer, Institute of 
Peace Support Operations Training Sri Lanka and to be 
appointed as Chief Coordinator (Project), Explosive Wing, 
Headquarters Centre for Research Development (Engineers).

i. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) U M T C 
Karunarathna, SLAC (O/63417) - To relinquish the 
appointment of Staff Officer 1, Directorate of Media, Army 
Headquarters and to be appointed as Colonel (General 
Staff), Headquarters 61 Infantry Division.

j. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) A A D S 
Induka, SLSR (O/63419) - To relinquish the appointment 
of Commanding Officer, 10 Sri Lanka Artillery and to be 
appointed as Deputy Director, Directorate of Plans, Army 
Headquarters.

k. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) I J 
Wickramasinghe, RWP RSP USP SLSR (O/63431) - To 
relinquish the appointment of General Staff Officer Grade 
1 (Operations), Headquarters 52 Infantry Division and to 
be appointed as Deputy Director, Directorate of Veterans 
Affairs, Army Headquarters.

l. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) D C S K 
Athukorala, RSP SLSR (O/63435) - To relinquish the 
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appointment of General Staff Officer 1 (Coordinator), 
Headquarters 52 Infantry Division and to be appointed 
as Deputy Director, Directorate of Recruiting, Army 
Headquarters.

m. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) N I R Silva, 
ato SLAOC (O/63437) - To relinquish the appointment of 
Commanding Officer, 1 Sri Lanka Army General Service 
Corps and to be appointed as Colonel (Military Secretary), 
Military Secretary’s Branch, Army Headquarters.

n. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) R S 
Batagalla, RSP SLSR (O/63296) - To relinquish the 
appointment of General Staff Officer 1 (Coordinator), 
Headquarters 53 Infantry Division and to be appointed as 
Deputy Director, Directorate of Infantry, Army Headquarters.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

29th December, 2023.

02-129/4

No. 240 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/LTCOL/24(01).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Promotions and New Appointments  Approved by 
the Honourable President

PROMOTIONS 

1. The Honourable President has approved the promotions of 
the undermentioned Senior Officers to the rank of Temporary 
Lieutenant Colonel with effect form 01st January, 2024 :

	 a.	 Major A M C Gunasekara, USP GR (O/63643)
	 b.	 Major W M K W Wijeratne, SLA (O/65063)
	 c.	 Major W M S D Weerasinghe, RWP RSP MIR 

(O/64192)
	 d.	 Major K R M A B Kandewatta, USP Lsc SLASC 

(O/65266)

	 e.	 Major S L W Dissanayake, RSP GW (O/65319)
	 f.	 Major K M P G E T B Kekulandara, SLSC 

(O/66347)
	 g.	 Major B M R Ferdinandesz, psc IG SLA (O/65441) 
	 h.	 Major N S P de Silva, WWV RSP USP psc SF 

(O/65442)
	 i.	 Major R A S I P Ranasinghe, RWP RSP psc CR 

(O/65443) 
	 j.	 Major Y R Wimalarathne, RSP USP psc VIR 

(O/65446)
	 k.	 Major H M A H B Herath, WWV RWP RSP USP 

psc SLLI (O/65449)
	 l.	 Major M S A Wijedasa, RSP psc GW (O/65450) 
	 m.	 Major G W W Wijesekera, CR (O/65452)
	 n.	 Major S A D P Jayarathne, USP psc GR (O/65454)
	 o.	 Major D S S Ladduwahetti, RSP USP GW (O/65459)
	 p.	 Major E I K Soysa, USP MIR (O/65464)

NEW APPOINtMENTS

2. The Honourable President has approved the new 
appointments of undermentioned Senior Officers with effect 
from 01st January, 2024 :
	

a.  Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) A M C 
Gunasekara, USP GR (O/63643) - Supernumerary 
Promotion of Officers Wounded in Action. 

b. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) W M K W 
Wijeratne, SLA (O/65063) - To be appointed as General 
Staff Officer 1 (Coordinating), Headquarters 51 Infantry 
Division.

c. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) W M S D 
Weerasinghe, RWP RSP MIR (O/64192) - To be appointed 
as Commanding Officer, 2 Sri Lanka Army Ordnance Corps.

d. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel)  
K R M A B Kandewatta, USP Lsc SLASC (O/65266) - 
To be appointed as Staff Officer 1 (Administration & 
Quartering), Headquarters 51 Infantry Division.

e. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) S L W 
Dissanayake, RSP GW (O/65319) - To be appointed 
as General Staff Officer 1 (Additional), Directorate of 
Operations, Army Headquarters.

f. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) K M P G E T 
B Kekulandara, SLSC (O/66347) - To be appointed as 
Commanding Officer, 11 Sri Lanka Signal Corps.
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 g. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) B M R 
Ferdinandesz, psc IG SLA (O/65441) - To be appointed as 
Commanding Officer, 10 Sri Lanka Artillery.

h. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) N S P de 
Silva, WWV RSP USP psc SF (O/65442) - To be appointed 
as General Staff Officer 1 (Operations), Headquarters 52 
Infantry Division.

i. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) R A S I P 
Ranasinghe, RWP RSP psc CR (O/65443) - To be appointed 
as General Staff Officer 1 (Air Defence), Security Force 
Headquarters.

j. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) Y R 
Wimalarathne, RSP USP psc VIR (O/65446) - To be 
appointed as Sector Commander, Headquarters 14 Infantry 
Division.

k. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) H M A H B 
Herath, WWV RWP RSP USP psc SLLI (O/65449) - To 
be appointed as General Staff Officer 1 (Coordinating), 
Headquarters 52 Infantry Division.

l. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) M S A. 
Wijedasa, RSP psc GW (O/65450) - To be appointed 
as Chief Executive Officer, Institute of Peace Support 
Operations Training - Sri Lanka.

m. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) G W W 
Wijesekera, CR (O/65452) - To be appointed as General 
Staff Officer 1 (Coordinating), Headquarters 53 Infantry 
Division.

n. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) S A D P 
Jayarathne, USP psc GR (O/65454) - To be appointed as 
Commanding Officer, 1 Sri Lanka Army General Service 
Corps.

o. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) D S S 
Ladduwahetti, RSP USP GW (O/65459) - To be appointed 
as Staff Officer 1, Directorate of Media, Army Headquarters.

p. Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) E I K 
Soysa, USP MIR (O/65464) - To be appointed as Town 
Commandant, Trincomalee.

By Order of Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

28th December, 2023.

02-129/5

No. 241 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/CONF/MAJ/23 (05).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Confirmation of Temporary Rank approved by the 
Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the confirmation 
of the undermentioned Officers in the rank of Major with 
effect from dates shown against their names:

	 1.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Koralalage Gedara 
Thushantha Jayawardena, RWP RSP psc GR 
(O/65646) 12 July, 2015;

	 2.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Yonamulle Herath 
Mudiyanselage Vimukthi Deepal Yonamulla, 
RWP RSP GR (O/66493) 16 February, 2022;

	 3.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Gajanayake Mudalige 
Wijerathne, RWP RSP CR (O/66557) 12 December, 
2022;

	 4.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Egodayalage Gedara 
Krishantha Sanjeewa Weerasinghe, psc SLAC 
(O/68552) 14th January, 2023;

	 5.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Asuramana Pedi 
Durayalage Amith Rupasinghe, psc SLA 
(O/68554) 14th January, 2023;
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	 6.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Dasanayake Ralalage 
Shalika Jeewantha Dasanayake, psc SLSC 
(O/68555) 14th January, 2023;

	 7.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Hetti 
Pathirannahalage Sanjaya Isuru Kumara, psc 
MIR (O/68557) 14th January, 2023;

	 8.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Rajapakshage Salinda 
Prabhath Rajapaksha, GW (O/68558) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 9.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Kapuge Thushara 
Pradeep Liyanage, SLEME (O/68559) 14th 
January, 2023;

 
	 10.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Jayasinghe Herathlage 

Prabath Nalaka Jayasinghe, psc SLLI (O/68560) 
14th January, 2023;

	 11.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wanninayake 
Mudiyanselage Sumith Wanninayake, ato SLAOC 
(O/68561) 14th January, 2023;

	 12.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Delankage Tharaka 
Laksri Sarathchandra, CES (O/68563) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 13.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Thalagala Archchige 
Chathura Harshana Thalagala, CR (O/68564) 
14th January, 2023;

	 14.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Podiwala Marage 
Gayan Chathuranga Marage, SLSR (O/68566) 
14th January, 2023;

	 15.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Chathura Lakmal 
Karunarathne, MI (O/68567) 14th January, 2023;

	 16.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Jinadasage Jayantha 
Pradeep Dissanayake, psc VIR (O/68568) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 17.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Kapuwa Waththe 
Gedara Suresh Sriyan Wijerathne, psc GR 
(O/68569) 14th January, 2023;

	 18.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Achala Maduranga 
Kiriwaththuduwa, SLEME (O/68570) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 19.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Piyadasage 
Maduranga Sampath Dissanayake, Lsc SLASC 
(O/68573) 14th January, 2023;

	 20.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Jayasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Kithsiri Bandara, VIR (O/67271) 
14th January, 2023;

	 21.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Horagala Gamage 
Likitha Chamil Viduranga Gamage, AATO 
SLAOC (O/68574) 14th January, 2023;

	 22.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Maddumage Viraj 
Chandrapriya Perera, psc MI (O/68575) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 23.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Pilapitiyage Dencil 
Priyankara Pilapitiya, SLAC (O/68576) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 24.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Lakshitha Yasanayake 
Garusinghe, VIR (O/68577) 14th January, 2023;

	 25.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Parakaduwa 
Ramanayakalage Chathuranga Wishwa 
Ramanayake, psc GW (O/68579) 14th January, 
2023;

	 26.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Hemba Geekiyanage 
Sanjeewa Gayan Silva, SLSR (O/68581) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 27.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Atapattu 
Mudiyanselage Udara Sampath Attapattu, SF 
(O/68583) 14th January, 2023;

	 28.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Gunawardena 
Arachchige Buddika Linton Abeysinghe, psc 
SLA (O/68584) 14th January, 2023;

	 29.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Maliduwa Gamage 
Janitha Madhusanka Ranasinghe, GR (O/68586) 
14th January, 2023;

	 30.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Idille Gedara Sampath 
Kumara Wijekoon, CR (O/68587) 14th January, 
2023;

	 31.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Dissanayake 
Mudiyanselage Dinusha Chathuranga 
Dissanayake, psc SLLI (O/68589) 14th January, 
2023;
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	 32.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Manikkuwadura 
Tharaka Sampath de Soyza, psc SLA (O/68590) 
14th January, 2023;

	 33.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Hewa Dewage Thilina 
Lakshan, MI (O/68593) 14th January, 2023;

	 34.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Herath Mudiyanselage 
Anura Nuwan Jayathilake, psc SLSR (O/68597) 
14th January, 2023;

	 35.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Kularathne 
Mudiyanselage Yohan Pradeep Kularathna, psc 
SLA (O/68604) 14th January, 2023;

	 36.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Seeranga 
Arachchilage Ishara Pradeep Abeyrathne, psc 
SLE (O/68605) 14th January, 2023;

	 37.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Thotagodawaththa 
Mudiyanselage Nadeera Bandara Abeyrathne, 
SLAC (O/68606) 14th January, 2023;

	 38.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Sri Narayana Bandu 
Mudiyanselage Amila Sandaruwan Bandara, 
SLSC (O/68448) 14th January, 2023;

	 39.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Darumura Hetti 
Arachchige Thushara Priyadarshana, psc SLAC 
(O/68450) 14th January, 2023;

	 40.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Karunasinghe Gedara 
Manel Bandara, psc SLE (O/68451) 14th January, 
2023;

	 41.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Dewatha Pedige 
Nishantha Gunasekera, psc SLA (O/68452) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 42.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Sethapenage 
Appuhami Ralalage Rasika Prabath Kumara 
Kudabandara, psc SLLI (O/68244) 14th January, 
2023;

	 43.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Warnakulasooriya 
Lakshan Senadheera, psc SLEME (O/68245) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 44.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wijesooriya 
Aarachchilage Susantha Bandara Wijesooriya, 
psc SLSR (O/68247) 14th January, 2023;

	 45.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Rajapakshage Dilan 
Sameera Rankoth Bandara, Lsc AATO SLAOC 
(O/68248) 14th January, 2023;

	 46.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Anthonige Amila 
Randeepa Marius Fernando, Lsc SLCMP 
(O/68249) 14th January, 2023;

	 47.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Herath Mudiyanselage 
Buddhi Madushanka Herath, SLSC (O/68252) 
14th January, 2023;

	 48.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Adikari Pathirana 
Unnehelage Aruna Sampath Adikari, psc SLLI 
(O/68253) 14th January, 2023;

	 49.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Rathnayake 
Mudiyanselage Aditha Amal Bandara 
Rathnayake, SF (O/68254) 14th January, 2023;

	 50.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Polpitiye Lekamlage 
Kasun Malith Jayakody, psc SLAC (O/68257) 
14th January, 2023;

	 51.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Pelpola Liyanage Don 
Kasun Pelpola, psc VIR (O/68258) 14th January, 
2023;

	 52.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Dayanandasekara 
Mudiyanselage Kamal Weerasuriya, SLASC 
(O/68262) 14th January, 2023;

	 53.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Isuru Gayashan 
Kannangara ato SLAOC (O/68266) 14th January, 
2023;

	 54.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wijayapurage Don 
Anuradha Sudesh Wijekoon, psc SLE (O/68269) 
14th January, 2023;

	 55.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Dhanoj Rashmitha 
Kudavithana, SLA (O/68273) 14th January, 2023;

	 56.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Sooriyakumara 
Wannisinghe Nuwarawawa Walawwe Nuwan 
Chaminda Bandara Nuwarawawa, SLAC 
(O/68543) 14th January, 2023;

	 57.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wickramachchi 
Pathirannehelage Rasan Dimuthu 
Wickramachchi, VIR (O/68275) 14th January, 
2023;
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	 58.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Kuruppu Arachchige 
Mihipal Jayasanka Wijayakuruppu, SLCMP 
(O/68278) 14th January, 2023;

	 59.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Thalagaha Gedara 
Nishantha Kumara Alahakoon, psc SLAC 
(O/67914) 14th January, 2023;

	 60.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Vidana Gamage 
Mohan Dias Wickramasinghe, psc MIR (O/67917) 
14th January, 2023;

	 61.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Kasthuri 
Arachchilage Danushka Madhuranga 
Gunathilaka, CR (O/67918) 14th January, 2023;

	 62.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Arulanandem Sasika 
Niranjith, psc GW (O/67920) 14th January, 2023;

	 63.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Kasun Tharanga 
Wathudura, psc SLSR (O/67921) 14th January, 
2023;

	 64.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Rathnamalala Irugal 
Bandaralage Uditha Nilanka Rathnamalala, 
psc SLLI (O/67922) 14th January, 2023;

	 65.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Lankathilaka 
Brahmanage Indunil Asin Premachandra, psc 
SLA (O/67924) 14th January, 2023;

	 66.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Suduwa Dewage 
Thilina Buddhika Wijayantha, SF (O/67925) 
14th January, 2023;

	 67.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Sanjaya Gamage, psc 
MIR (O/67926) 14th January, 2023;

	 68.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Kuda Vitharanage 
Saman Kumara Vithanage, SLLI (O/67930) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 69.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Gayan Sanjeewa 
Herath, GR (O/67931) 14th January, 2023;

	 70.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wickramasinghe 
Arachchilage Shiran Indika Perera, SF 
(O/67932) 14th January, 2023;

	 71.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Gasba Mudiyanselage 
Kasun Tharanga, CR (O/67933) 14th January, 
2023;

	 72.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Ekanayake 
Mudiyanselage Dhammika Kumara Ekanayake, 
VIR (O/67937) 14th January, 2023;

	 73.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Hasitha Vishwanath 
Ariyarathne, SLSR (O/67938) 14th January, 2023;

	 74.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Thalahitiya 
Vithanage Supun Tharanga, psc SLLI (O/67939) 
14th January, 2023;

	 75.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Herath Mudiyanselage 
Laksiri Bandara Herath, CR (O/67946) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 76.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Lahanda Purage 
Laksiri Asanka, psc CR (O/67947) 14th January, 
2023;

	 77.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Walallawita 
Acharige Namal Pradeep, psc SLAC (O/67953) 
14th January, 2023;

	 78.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Hapuarachchige 
Nilupa Nisan Perera, SLSC (O/67955) 14th 
January, 2023;

	 79.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Ranepura Ralalage 
Thushara Pradeep Ranepura, VIR (O/67957) 
14th January, 2023;

	 80.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Kankanamlage 
Tharindu Chathuranga Divakara, GW (O/67961) 
14th January, 2023;

	 81.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Mirihagoda 
Mudiyanselage Prabhath Kelum Mirihagoda, 
GR (O/67962) 14th January, 2023;

	 82.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Thomas Pullalage 
Ajith Wasantha Fernando, psc SLLI (O/68485) 
14th January, 2023;

	 83.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Rathnayake 
Mudiyanselage Mihiranga Asitha Rathnayake, 
Lsc SLCMP (O/68486) 14th January, 2023;

	 84.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Ranjith Sripathi 
Arachchilage Maduranga Prasad, SLSR 
(O/68488) 14th January, 2023;
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	 85.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wickramasekara 
Arachchige Don Kasun Gihan Wickramasekara, 
SLLI (O/68580) 14th January, 2023;

	 86.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Dewatha Pedige 
Duminda Prasad Karunarathna, SLE (O/68490) 
14th January, 2023;

	 87.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Babanisge Srimal 
Senavirathne, GR (O/68495) 14th January, 2023;

	 88.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wellawaththa 
Arachchige Thusitha Dharmapriya Sumanadasa, 
SLSC (O/70141) 26th February, 2023;

	 89.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Hashan Thilina 
Gamage, SLSC (O/70143) 26th February, 2023;

	 90.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Jayamaha Hitihamilage 
Isuru Supun Jayamaha, psc SLAC (O/68771) 28th 
March, 2023;

	 91.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Rathnayake 
Mudiyanselage Susil Priyantha Premadasa, psc 
VIR (O/68783) 28th March, 2023;

	 92.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Pradeep Asanka 
Kumara Kalu Koottage, psc MI (O/68802) 28th 
March, 2023;

	 93.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Illangakoon 
Prabhath Madhuranga Illangakoon, psc GR 
(O/68799) 28th March, 2023;

	 94.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Muthugalage 
Dilusha Madushan Kumara, psc SLLI (O/68810) 
28th March, 2023;

	 95.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Palalle 
Gamaarachchige Duminda Prasanga Perera, psc 
VIR (O/68779) 28th March, 2023;

	 96.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Gonapitiyage 
Chamara Piumantha Dharmawardhana, psc 
SLCMP (O/68767) 28th March, 2023;

	 97.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Hewagamage Don 
Nishanjaya Geeshan Rupasinghe, psc SLSR 
(O/68797) 28th March, 2023;

	 98.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Dombagammana 
Madulusse Aluthgedara Champika Dimuthu 
Pathum Abeywickrama, SLSC (O/68777) 28th 
March, 2023;

	 99.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Ranasinghe 
Muththettuge Pathum Akalanka 
Muththettuge, psc SLSC (O/68782) 28th March, 
2023;

	 100.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Asanga Roshan 
Nakandala, GR (O/67943) 28th March, 2023;

	 101.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Alanduwaka 
Egodayalagedara Sanjaya Thushan Somarathne, 
psc MIR (O/68762) 28th March, 2023;

	 102.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Chandanayakage 
Sumudu Rajith Chandanayake, SLE (O/68768) 
28th March, 2023;

	 103.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Thilakarathne 
Adhikari Mudiyanselage Rasika Sampath 
Ekanayake, Lsc SLASC (O/68774) 28th March, 
2023;

	 104.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Thelge Sandamal 
Nivanka Kaushalya Peiris, psc SLSC (O/68806) 
28th March, 2023;

	 105.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Weerakoon 
Mudiyanselage Kamal Kanchana Weerakoon, 
Lsc SLAOC (O/68815) 28th March, 2023;

	 106.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Dewaka Paul, psc GR 
(O/68776) 28th March, 2023;

	 107.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Ranepura Hewage 
Laknath Indika, Lsc SLASC (O/68784) 28th 
March, 2023;

	 108.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Supun Prasanga 
Samarakkody, psc GW (O/68794) 28th March, 
2023;

	 109.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Vimukthi Madushanka 
Hapuarachchi, psc SLEME (O/68788) 28th March, 
2023;

	 110.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Chaya Madhushani 
Vitharanage, SLAGSC (O/68770) 28th March, 
2023;
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	 111.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Janith Chinthaka 
Ruwanpathirana, CES (O/68785) 28th March, 
2023;

	 112.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wijepala Abeysinghe 
Mudiyanselage Prasanna Ruwan Wijaya 
Bandara, CR (O/68814) 28th March, 2023;

	 113.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Linthotage Shanka 
Madhushan Linthota, psc GR (O/68811) 28th 
March, 2023;

	 114.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wickramaarachchi 
Appuhamilage Prasanna Wickramaarachchi, 
SLA (O/68786) 28th March, 2023;

	 115.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Hetti Arachchige 
Manjula Pradeep Kumara, SLE (O/68796) 28th 
March, 2023;

	 116.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Pransiskudura 
Chamila Lakmini De Silva, MI (O/68798) 28th 
March, 2023;

	 117.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Hakkaduwa 
Vithanage Waruna Niroshana Vithana, VIR 
(O/67919) 28th March, 2023;

	 118.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Munasinghe 
Arachchige Chamara Vidhusika Munasinghe, 
SLSR (O/68809) 28th March, 2023;

	 119.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Imiachchi 
Kankanamalage Randika Lasantha, VIR 
(O/68800) 28th March, 2023;

	 120.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Siriwardanage 
Dananjaya Sampath Siriwardana, SLEME 
(O/68793) 28th March, 2023;

	 121.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Galwala Kumbure 
Gedara Priyantha Senarath Bandara, SLLI 
(O/68804) 28th March, 2023;

	 122.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Sajidu Bimsara 
Hettiarachchi, psc GW (O/68792) 28th March, 
2023;

	 123.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wickramasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Dinesh Chathuranga 
Wickramasinghe, SLEME (O/68787) 28th March, 
2023;

	 124.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Wanninayake 
Mudiyanselage Chanaka Ishara Wanninayake, 
SLLI (O/68812) 28th March, 2023;

	 125.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Warakagoda 
Gedarakotawalle Hitibandaralage Thushantha 
Tiraj Hitibandara, Lsc SLASC (O/68813) 28th 
March, 2023;

	 126.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Welgamage Gihan 
Thanuka Malshan Perera, psc SLA (O/68790) 
28th March, 2023;

	 127.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Weerasinghe 
Arachchilage Janaka Manoj Weerasinghe, Lsc 
ato SLAOC (O/68789) 29th March, 2023;

	 128.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Lansakara 
Athapaththu Mudiyanselage Tenisan 
Gunathilake, USP SLSC (O/67419) 29th March, 
2023;

	 129.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Walgama Vithanage 
Sasika Lakmal, CES (O/68549) 25th April, 2023;

	 130.	 Captain (Temporary Major) Rajakaruna Wijekoon 
Mudiyanse Ralahamilage Warakagoda 
Walauwwe Ayomi Hansani Kumari Warakagoda, 
CES (O/68550) 25th April, 2023.

By Order of Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

28th November, 2023.

02-129/6

No. 242 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/IRT/23 (08).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Inter Regiment Transfer approved by the 
Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the transfer of the 
undermentioned Male Officers and Lady Officer from the 
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Sri Lanka Corps of Military Police to the Regiment stated 
against their names with effect from 13th June, 2023:

	 1.	 Major Vitharanage Don Nalaka Chaminda 
Kulathilake, (O/66958) - Sri Lanka Army Corps 
of Agriculture and Livestock;

	 2.	 Second Lieutenant Dunusinghe Karunasagara 
Mudiyanselage Ashen Bimsara Bandara, 
(O/71197) - Sri Lanka Army Corps of Agriculture 
and Livestock;

	 3.	 Second Lieutenant Karunagoda Appuhamilage 
Nethra Sachinthani Jayathilaka, (O/71234) - Sri 
Lanka Army Corps of Agriculture and Livestock.

By Order of Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

10th January, 2024.

02-129/7

No. 243 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ/24 (01).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Promotions approved by the Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the undermentioned 
Officers promotion to the rank of Temporary Major 
(Quartermaster) with effect from 01st June, 2023:

	 1.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Polwatta Weeramanlage 
Wajira Gunasekara, USP SLAGSC (O/68058);

	 2.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Egodagedara Lasantha 
Nanda Kumara, SLAGSC (O/68059);

By Order of Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

28th December, 2023.

02-129/8

No. 244 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ/24 (02).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Promotion approved by the Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the promotion of 
undermentioned  Officers’ to  the rank of Temporary  Major 
with  effect from the dates stated  against their names:

	 01.	 Captain Hewa Gamage Priyantha Kumara 
Hewagama, RWP RSP SLSR (O/65710) 10th July, 
2014;

	
	 02.	 Captain Merennge Sunil Fernando, SLEME 

(O/65276) 24th November, 2016;

	 03.	 Captain Kapurupaksha Pallawala Bandaranayaka 
Sriyan Daglas Wijasekara Gunawardena, RSP GR 
(O/66856) 10th November, 2018;

	 04.	 Captain Chamara Rukmal Kottage, SLA (O/68016) 
14th January, 2019;

	 05.	 Captain Kiribandara Wimalasiri Bandara Wimal 
Kuruvita, SLSC (O/67259) 14th January, 2019;

	 06.	 Captain Eranga Hasthika Wellangiriya, SLAGSC 
(O/68246) 28th March, 2019;

	 07.	 Captain Maddumage Lidula Suminda Maddumage,  
SLLI (O/68807) 01st June, 2019;

	 08.	 Captain Kadawatha Mudiyanselage Wijesinghe, 
SLSR (O/67662) 07th January, 2020;

	 09.	 Captain Wijalath Arachchige Vajira Prasanna 
Wijalath, SLACAL (O/69565) 20th March, 2020;

	 10.	 Captain Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Mahesh 
Buddika Rathnayake, SLA (O/69051) 18th May, 
2020;

	 11.	 Captain Dimiya Arachchilage Asela Padma 
Kumara Gunarathne, GW (O/68411) 01st June, 
2020;

	 12.	 Captain Susew Hewage Thilina Dananjaya 
Darmadasa, SLE (O/69320) 01st June, 2020;

	 13.	 Captain Neelawathura Walawwe Ajith Kumara 
Neelawathura SLAC (O/66472) 01st June, 2021;
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	 14.	 Captain Aluth Gedara Weerasinghe, RWP VIR 
(O/66764) 01st June, 2021;

	 15.	 Captain Kachchakaduge Janaka Anton Kaduge, 
RSP GW (O/66460) 01st June, 2021;

	 16. 	Captain Handarama Kankanamlage Ariyananda 
Dasanayake, RSP GW (O/67134) 01st June, 2021;

	 17.	 Captain Hennayake Mudiyanselage Thushara  
Chandana, USP GW (O/68394) 01st June, 2021;

	 18.	 Captain Malalasekara Mudiyanselage Chinthaka 
Pradeep Abeywickrama, SLSR (O/69372) 01st July, 
2021;

	 19.	 Captain Balapu Waduge Namal Duminda Mendis, 
SLAC (O/69588) 06th January, 2022;

	 20.	 Captain Elvitigalage Don Sithira Lakmal, SLE 
(O/69896) 12th March, 2022;

	 21.	 Captain Weerakkody Mudiyanselage Pushpitha 
Mega Bandara Weerakkody SF (O/68910) 01st 
June, 2022;

	 22.	 Captain Dodangodage Don Geeth Rasanjana 
Karunarathne SLSC (O/69921) 07th July, 2022;

	 23.	 Captain Udawatta Kankanamge Roshan Chaminda 
Udawatta, CES (O/69648) 07th July, 2022;

	 24.	 Captain Ihalagongahadeniye Gedara Senaka 
Sanjeewa Wijebandara, SLAOC (O/69897) 07th 
July, 2022;

	 25.	 Captain Gallage Eranga Priyashantha Gallage, 
VIR (O/69671) 07th July, 2022;

	 26.	 Captain Gurugamage Ashani Chathurika Kithsiri, 
SLAWC (O/69420) 07th July, 2022;

	 27.	 Captain Thanippuli Arachchige Sachitha 
Gunaratne Jayathilake, SLAMC (O/69877) 21st 
November, 2022;

	 28.	 Captain Hathgampala Welideniyalage Keshara 
Dhanushka Jayawardhana  CES (O/70556) 10th 
January, 2023;

	 29.	 Captain Yatinuwara Gedara Deepa Sri 
Wickramanvitha, SLSR (O/69669) 10th January, 
2023;

	 30.	 Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Prasad Kithsiri 
Nuwan Herath, GR (O/69684) 10th January, 2023;

	 31.	 Captain Vidarshi Bhagya Marasinghe, SLAGSC 
(O/70383) 17th March, 2023;

	 32.	 Captain Halgaha Gamaralalage Janaka Prasad 
Kumara, SLACAL (O/68659) 01st June, 2023;

	 33.	 Captain Bothalage Don Neelnayana SLA 
(O/66589) 01st June, 2023;

	 34.	 Captain Mankotta Kankanamalage Sarath, RSP 
SLAC (O/66786) 01st June, 2023;

	 35.	 Captain Gamaralalage Oshan Thanjula Perera, 
SLLI (O/68045) 01st June, 2023;

	 36.	 Captain Thimbiripola Arachchilage Indunil 
Pushpakumara, SLLI (O/68055) 01st June, 2023;

	 37.	 Captain Wicramarathnalage Kulasiri Nishantha 
Senarathne, SLE (O/68595) 01st June, 2023;

	 38.	 Captain Wisin Ralalage Nishshanka Bandara, 
USP SLE (O/67380) 01st June, 2023;

	 39.	 Captain Ranasinghe Arachchige  Madushanka 
Lakmal Ranasinghe, SLLI (O/68890) 01st June, 
2023;

	 40.	 Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Saman Kumara 
Herath,  RWP USP SF (O/68346) 01st June, 2023;

	 41.	 Captain Dassanayake Mudiyanselage Nimesh 
Madusanka Dassanayake, GR (O/69196) 01st June, 
2023;

	 42.	 Captain Reega Chandana Ambepitiya, SLAMC 
(O/68469) 01st June, 2023;

	 43.	 Captain Tharanga Darshana Mudalige, SLSR 
(O/71058) 08th July, 2023;

	 44.	 Captain Roopasinghe Arachchige Hashan 
Chathuranga Roopasinghe SLA (O/69976) 08th 
July, 2023

	 45.	 Captain Dawatage Dulaj Madhusanka Perera, 
SLAC (O/69977) 08th July, 2023

	 46.	 Captain Ranawaka Achchige  Lasantha Perera, 
SLLI (O/69978) 08th July, 2023
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	 47.	 Captain Gannoruwe  Kangran Mulle Gedara 
Viraj Madusanka, MIR (O/69979) 08th July, 
2023;

	 48.	 Captain Amarasinghe  Arachchige  Praveen 
Vishma Suraweera, SLE (O/69980) 08th July, 
2023;

	 49.	 Captain Gurusinghe Arachchilage  Ranuka 
Nadeeshan Dharmarathne, SLSC (O/69981) 08th 
July, 2023;

	 50.	 Captain Hangili Gurunnehele Gedara Sudesh 
Amila Sandaruwan, MI (O/70577) 08th July, 
2023;

	 51.	 Captain Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Shanaka  
Madushan Dissanayake,  SF  (O/69982) 08th July, 
2023;

	 52.	 Captain Ginigal Godage Binoj Anuranga  
Ginigalgoda, GW (O/69983) 08th July, 2023;

	 53.	 Captain Egodage Shanika Sandeepa 
Siriwardhana,  SLAOC (O/69985) 08th July, 2023;

	 54.	 Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Thilina  
Nishantha Herath,  VIR (O/69987) 08th July, 
2023;

	 55.	 Captain Janaka Chathuranga  Senavirathne,  
SLASC (O/69988) 08th July, 2023;

	 56.	 Captain Makavitage Dinara Anton  Perera, CES 
(O/69990) 08th July, 2023

	 57.	 Captain Koonkaduwa Mudiyanselage Thushan 
Kumara Gunarathne, CES (O/69962) 08th July, 
2023;

	 58.	 Captain Gangabadage Buddhika Lakshan 
Gangabada, GR (O/69991) 08th July, 2023;

	 59.	 Captain Uswatte Liyanage Rasika Lakmal Uswatte,  
SF (O/69993) 08th July, 2023;

	 60.	 Captain Hettikanda Gamladdalage Ravindu 
Dilhan Wijewardhana, SLAC (O/69995) 08th July, 
2023;

	 61.	 Captain Thiran Kavinda Palihakkara, SLASC  
(O/69996) 08th July, 2023;

	 62.	 Captain Henegama Welalanarambe Withanage 
Pubudu Chaminda Rathnayake, SLAGSC 
(O/69997) 08th July, 2023;

	 63.	 Captain Ekanayaka Mudiyanselage Sameera 
Sandakelum Ariyarathna, SLLI (O/69998) 08th 
July, 2023;

	 64.	 Captain Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Sajith 
Sanjeewa Ekanayake, SLCMP (0/69999) 08th July, 
2023;

	 65.	 Captain Gayan Harshana Epitawala, SLLI (O/70000)	
08th July, 2023;

	 66.	 Captain Hela Medawaththe Chamal Jinendra 
Medawaththa, SLSC (O/70001) 08th July, 2023;

	 67.	 Captain Liyana Athukoralage Rajith Anjana 
Athukorala, SF (O/70002) 08th July, 2023;

	 68.	 Captain Pradeep Nalaka Hettiarachchige, SLLI 
(O/70004) 08th July, 2023;

	 69.	 Captain Koku Hennedige Chandimal Jaliya 
Deshakthi Jayaweera, SLE (O/70006) 08th July, 
2023;

	 70.	 Captain Maha Marakkalage Waranga Sameera 
Perera, GW (O/70009) 08th July, 2023;

	 71.	 Captain Hangili Gedara Saman Kumara 
Abeysinghe,  VIR (O/70010) 08th July, 2023;

	 72.	 Captain Lanka Viruduwalage Mahesh Nuwan 
Jayasundara, VIR (O/70015) 08th July, 2023;

	 73.	 Captain Hetti Arachchige Randeer Amarasekara,  
SLE (O/70017) 08th July, 2023;

	 74.	 Captain Pallewelage Shashika Sandaruwan 
Dharmarathna, GW (O/70019) 08th July, 2023;

	 75.	 Captain Kuruppu Achchillage Amila lresh 
Kuruppu,  SLA (O/70021) 08th July, 2023;

	 76.	 Captain Rammanda Gedara Udara Jayawardhana, 
SLA (O/70025) 08th July, 2023;



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2024'02'09

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 09.02.2024
646

	 77.	 Captain Pamodya Hendri Sahabandu, SLAWC 
(O/69624) 08th July, 2023; 

	 78.	 Captain Jayasundara Liyanage Heshani Shashindra 
Madubhashini Jayasundhara,  SLAWC (O/69625) 
08 July 2023;	

	 79.	 Captain Kirigam Pamunuwage Dilhari Wasana 
Fernando SLAWC (O/69626) 08th July, 2023;

	 80.	 Captain Nihathamani Aravindika Senanayake,  
SLAWC (O/69627) 08th July, 2023;

	 81.	 Captain Dona Hiruni Disala Weerasekara,  
SLAWC (O/69628) 08th July, 2023;

	 82.	 Captain Amarasinghe Mudiyanselage Anjali 
Dilrukshi Amarasinghe, SLAWC (O/69631) 08th 
July, 2023;

	 83.	 Captain Duggath Mudiyanselage Madhuwanthi 
Mahesika Thilakarathne,  SLAWC (O/69632) 08th 
July, 2023;

	 84.	 Captain Munasingha Arachchige Buddhika 
Chathuranga Jayarathna,  SLEME (O/71219) 09th 
July, 2023;

	 85.	 Captain Upsala Dissanayaka,  SLSC (O/70147) 26th 
August, 2023;

	 86.	 Captain Savith Nadeeshan Pitiyawaththage, SLSC 
(O/70148) 26th August, 2023;

	 87.	 Captain Yaddehi Madushan Pethum Jayalath, 
SLSC (O/70149) 26th August, 2023;

	 88.	 Captain Wiliyam Abenandage Dulanka Sampath 
Abeynanda, CES (O/69840) 19th September, 2023;

	 89.	 Captain Dhanasekara Mudiyanselage Chathuri 
Dinushika Dhanasekara, SLAWC (O/69630) 27th 
September, 2023;

	 90.	 Captain Ambalangoda Gurunnanselage Thilina 
Dananjaya Perera, SLSC  (O/70075) 01st October, 
2023;

	 91.	 Captain Ambagala Pathirennehelage Indika 
Suresh Dinuka, SLSC (O/70077) 01st October, 
2023;

By Order of Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

29th December, 2023.

02-129/9

No. 245 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ/24 (03).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Promotion approved by the Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the Promotion of 
undermentioned Officer’s to the rank of Temporary Major 
with effect from 08th July, 2023:

	 1.	 Captain Vibuthi Diyanath Saluwadana, SLA 
(O/70576);

	 2.	 Captain Thimathi Gayan Weihena Gamage, SLAOC 
(O/70317);

	 3.	 Captain Halneththi Kalpa Sri Dhanushka Perera 
Gunarathna, GW (O/70371);

	 4.	 Captain Ihala Gedara Chanaka Nuwan 
Weerathunga, SLA (O/70276).

By Order of Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

29th December, 2023.

02-129/10
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No. 246 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/COM/CDT/23 (30).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Commissions approved by the Honourable 
President

The Hon. President has pleased to approve the 
Commissioning of the under mentioned Officer Cadets as 
Second Lieutenants in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka 
Army with effect from the date stated below and posting to 
the Regiment/Corps with effect from the same date.

From 16th July, 2020

C/86075 Cadet Officer Dissanayake Mudiyanselage 
Dinusha Kavinda Dissanayake Mechanized  Infantry  
Regiment;

C/86150 Lady Cadet Officer Dilini Madushika 
Abeysinghe Sri Lanka Engineers;

From 27th June, 2021

C/86303 Cadet Officer Kodithuwakku Arachchige 
Chanuka Nisal Kodithuwakku Sri Lanka Light Infantry;

C/86304 Cadet Officer Handagama Ralalage Pasindu 
Mandushan Handagama Mechanized Infantry Regiment;

C/86305 Cadet Officer Ranjith Pathiranage Nipun 
Anjana Jayathilake Sri Lanka Signal Corps;

C/86302 Lady Cadet Officer Surasinghe Arachchige 
Navindi Thisari Sri Lanka Signal Corps; 

C/86307 Cadet Officer Gamage Chathra Darshith 
Kariyawasam Commando Regiment;

C/86308 Cadet Officer Don Pawulu Arachchige 
Chamod Dilshan Corps of Engineer Service;

C/86309 Cadet Officer Mallika Arachchige Sandun 
Madusanka Sri Lanka Army Ordnance Corps;

C/86310 Cadet Officer Herath Mudiyanselage 
Tharusha Dhananjan Chamoda Herath Sri Lanka Army 
Service Corps;

C/86311 Cadet Officer Herath Mudiyanselage 
Tharaka Mahesh Jayawardhana The Gemunu Watch;

C/86312 Cadet Officer Withanage Uditha 
Ayeshmantha Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;

C/86313 Cadet Officer Dasanayaka Appuhamilage 
Madusanka Sadaruwan Dasanayaka The Vijayabahu 
Infantry Regiment;

C/86314 Cadet Officer Rathnayaka Liyanage Kalhara 
Chathu Rathnayaka Sri Lanka Electrical & Mechanical 
Engineers;

 
C/86306 Lady Cadet Officer Kotuwegedara 

Arachchilage Bhagya Madhubhashini Weragampitiya 
Corps of Engineer Service;

C/86316 Cadet Officer Pavith Hesara Jayasinghe The 
Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;

C/86317 Cadet Officer Welathanthri Gurunnanselage 
Dasith Kalhan Welarathna The Gemunu Watch;

C/86318 Cadet Officer Mawalle Vithanage Charana 
Sakya Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;

C/86319 Cadet Officer Weerathunge Abhiru 
Sachintha Dileepa Weerathunga The Gajaba Regiment;

C/86321 Cadet Officer Nadesha Dilshan Hettiarachchi 
Sri Lanka Light Infantry;

C/86315 Lady Cadet Officer Hansini Rangamali 
Mallikarachci Sri Lanka Army Ordnance Corps;

C/86323 Cadet Officer Thinupa Jayodh Wijesekara Sri 
Lanka Armoured Corps;

C/86324 Cadet Officer Herath Mudiyanselage Avindu 
Rukshan Herath Sri Lanka Artillery;

C/86325 Cadet Officer Mayasinghe Kankanamalage 
Himashu Gimhan Mayasinghe The Gajaba Regiment;

C/86327 Cadet Officer Menmenda Arachchige Visal 
Dhanushka Sri Lanka Electrical & Mechanical Engineers;

C/86329 Cadet Officer Hikkaduwa Liyanage Chamal 
Anuradha Silva Sri Lanka Engineers;

C/86330 Cadet Officer Sudu Dewage Hasitha Gayashan 
Nandasiri Sri Lanka Light Infantry;

C/86331 Cadet Officer Mahagama Vidhanelage 
Avishka Shehan Gunasekara Sri Lanka Regiment;
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C/86332 Cadet Officer Karunappuli Herath 
Mudiyanselage Sahan Hishara The Gemunu Watch;

C/86333 Cadet Officer Wijesundara Mudiyanselage 
Imanchana Heshara Wijesundara The Vijayabahu 
Infantry Regiment.

By Order of the Honourable Persident,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd),
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil,	
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

05th December, 2023.

02-129/11

No. 247 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/COM/CDT/24 (01).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE 

Commissions approved by the Honourable 
President

The Hon. President is pleased to approve the Commissioning 
of the under mentioned Officer Cadets in the rank of Second 
Lieutenant in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with 
effect from 19.12.2021 and their posting to the Regiments 
stated under their name with effect from the same date;

C/86436 Officer Cadet Nawalage Chathura 
Shashintha Dilshan  Dias Mechanized Infantry Regiment;

C/86378 Officer Cadet Ihalagedara Herath 
Mudiyansele Kavishka Melshan Herath Sri Lanka 
Artillery;

2. The Hon. President is pleased to approve the 
Commissioning of the under mentioned Officer Cadet in the 
rank of Second Lieutenant in the Regular Force of the Sri 
Lanka Army with effect from 17.12.2022 and his posting to 
the Regiments stated under his name with effect from the 
same date;

C/86545 Officer Cadet Harsha Nimesha Tilantha 
Hettiarachchi The Gajaba Regiment.

By Order of the Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

04th January, 2024.

02-129/12	

No. 248 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/V/PRO/COL/23 (06).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—volunteer force 

Promotion to the Rank of Temporary Colonel 
approved by the Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the promotion of 
undermentioned Senior Officer to the  rank  of  Temporary  
Colonel  of  the   Sri  Lanka  Army   Volunteer   Force  with   
effect   from 23rd October, 2023:

Lieutenant Colonel Dammika Sujeewa 
Kolambaarachchi, SLAPC (O/4395).

By Order of the Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd),
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
22nd November, 2023.

02-129/13	

No. 249 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/V/PRO/COL/23 (07).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—volunteer force 

Promotion to the Rank of Temporary Colonel 
approved by the Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the promotion of 
undermentioned Senior Officers to the rank of Temporary 
Colonel of the Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force with effect 
from the dates stated against their names:

a. Lieutenant Colonel Saman Hettiarachchi, GW 
(O/4401) - 09.11.2023;

b. Lieutenant Colonel Gampalage Benat Janananda 
Fonseka RWP RSP - GR (O/4402) - 19.11.2023;

c. Lieutenant Colonel Halkewela Mudiyanselage 
Anura Bandara RSP - VIR (O/4411) - 27.11.2023;
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d. Lieutenant Colonel Hidellena Mudiyanselage Ajith 
Pushpa Kumara - SLSR (O/4412) - 29.11.2023;

e. Lieutenant Colonel Kathrik Kankanamge Don 
Ruwan Chaminda GR - (O/4423) - 01.12.2023

By Order of the Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd),
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
11th December, 2023.

02-129/14	

No. 250 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/V/PRO/LTCOL/23 (08).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—volunteer force 

Promotions to the Rank of Temporary Lieutenant 
Colonel approved by the Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the promotion of 
undermentioned Senior Officers to the rank of Temporary 
Lieutenant Colonel of the Sri  Lanka Army Volunteer  Force 
with effect  from the dates stated against their names:

a. Major Wanni Arachchige Kenath Chamara 
Priyantha, MIR (O/5737)  - 09.11.2023;

b. Major Jamburegoda Pathiranage Wimansha 
Kalhara Abayawickrama, SLAGSC (O/5636) - 10.11.2023;

c. Major Madurappulige Wajira Wishwamitra, psc 
SLAC (O/5813) - 19.11.2023;

d. Major Huriwele Gedara Kapila Sudarshana  
Dharmadasa, RWP RSP GR (O/5823)   - 27.11.2023;

e. Major Witharanage Saman Predeep Perera, SLSR 
(O/5826) - 30.11 .2023;

f. Major Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Kanchana 
Bandara Rathnayake, RSP VIR (5818) - 02.12.2023.

		
By Order of the Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd),
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
11th December, 2023.

02-129/15	

No. 251 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/V/PRO/MAJ/23 (03).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—volunteer force 

Promotions approved by the Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the promotion of 
the undermentioned Officers to the rank of Temporary Major 
with effect from the dates mentioned against their names:

a. Captain Sawanawadu Bramasha Dimuthu Kumara 
SLNG (O/8557) - 24.04.2020;

b. Captain Sedrage Indika GW (O/8559) - 22.12.2022;
c. Captain Sattambi Gedara Eranda Udaya Bandara, 

SLRC (O/9806) - 01 .06.2023;
d. Captain Rankothge Akila Srimal Muthunayaka, 

SLNG (O/10248) - 01 .06.2023;
e. Captain Athugal Pedige Naveen Anurudda, SLAOC 

(O/10263) - 01 .06.2023;

f. Captain Dangaswala Pathirennehelage Praneeth 
Darshana Jayawardena, GW (O/10234) - 01 .06.2023;

g. Captain Abeykoon Mudiyansele Walwwe Ameera 
Udayantha Bandaranayake, SLEME (O/10289) - 
29.06.2023

h. Captain Peththahandi Kelum Sanjaya De Silva, 
SLE (O/10287) - 29.06.2023;

i. Captain Hitihamulage Himal Roshmain 
Thilakarathne, SLACAL (O/10266) - 29.06.2023;

j. Captain Wijesundara Mudiyanselage Lakshitha 
Bandara, Wijerathna, VIR (O/10290) - 29.06.2023;
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k. Captain Maha Devalage Sagara Ruwan Kumara 
Megasthenna, SLLI (O/10292) - 29.06.2023;

l. Captain Galkissage Gayan Krishantha, MI 
(O/10293) - 29.06.2023;

m. Captain Samarasinghe Pathirannehelage Aravinda 
Laksiri Senarathna, SLAC (O/10294) - 29.06.2023;

n. Captain Nuwan Chamara Athukorala, SLSR 
(O/10295) - 29.06.2023;

o. Captain Nawarathna Wasala Mudiyanselage 
Wasala Yasantha Indrachapa Nawarathna GR 
(O/10296) - 29.06.2023; 

p. Captain Randunu Pathirannehelage Rukmal 
Priyadarshana Rupasinghe CES (O/10297) - 29.06.2023; 

q. Captain Donikku Hewa Chandu Prabath De Silva, 
MIR (O/10298) - 29.06.2023;

r. Captain Beligalage Dinesh Nuwan Kumara 
Beligala, SLNG (O/10279) - 2023.06.29;

s. Captain Hewage Lakshitha Perera, SLAOC 
(O/10300) - 29.06.2023

t. Captain Meegamuwage Harsha Pradeep Kumara 
Sirisena, SLASC	- 29.06.2023 (O/10305)

u. Captain Hewawasam  Ranasgallage  Tharindu  
Wijayanga Ranasgalla, SLNG (O/10307) - 29.06.2023;

v. Captain Pathiraja Mudiyanselage Viraj Dilupa 
Pathiraja, CES (O/10286)- 30.06.2023;   

w. Captain Abeykoon Chaturangani Kumari 
Udugama, SLAGSC (O/10696) - 30. 06.2023;

x. Captain Duwage Don Rumesh Thilan Karunasena, 
SLAGSC (O/10698) - 30.06.2023;

y. Captain Mutha Merenchi Nishadi Nimesika 
Thilakarathna SLAGSC	(O/10699) - 30.06.2023;

z. Captain Savathri Vishmika Ranmuthugalalage 
Alles De Silva, SLAGSC (O/10700) - 30.06.2023;

aa. Captain Samarakoon Mudiyanselage Prasanna 
Kumara Samarakoon, SLAGSC (O/10701) - 30.06.2023;

ab.   Captain Peduru Arachchige Chamila Prasad 
Kumara Peduruarachchi, SLAGSC (O/10703) - 
30.06.2023;

  ac. Captain Kurumbalapitiya Appuhamilage Don 
Lakshika Alwis, CES (O/11163) - 12.07.2023;

By Order of the Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th October, 2023.

02-129/16	

No. 252 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/23/(48).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by the Honourable President

The  undermentioned Officer   retires   from  the   Sri  Lanka  
Air  Force with  effect from 13th January, 2024.

Air Vice Marshal Gairana Gamage Waruna Tilak 
Kumara Gunawardana (01655) - Regiment.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

21st December, 2023.

02-130/1	
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No. 253 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/57/23/(03).

SRI  LANKA  AIR  FORCE 

Promotions  approved  by  the Honourable  
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Temporary Air Vice Marshal with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

Substantive Air Commodore Padman Nishantha De 
Costa (01879) PROV - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Air Commodore Sampathawaduge 
Deshapriya Gregory Marcelline Silva (01959) GDP - 
01.01.2024

Substantive Air Commodore Varuna Thushara 
Sampath Sirimanne (01880) ADMIN 02.01.2024

Substantive Air Commodore Kankanamge Chandana 
Geethapriya (01817) CIVIL ENG - 13.01.2024

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

21st December, 2023.

02-130/2	

No. 254 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/23/(04).

SRI  LANKA  AIR  FORCE 

Promotions  approved  by  the Honourable  
President

The  undermentioned  Officers  are  promoted  to  the  rank  
of  Substantive  Air  Commodore  with  effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

Temporary Air Commodore Deepal Munasinghe 
(01810) LOG - 31.12.2023;

Temporary Air Commodore Jayaweerage 
Pushpakumara Weeramanthiree Jayawickrama (01939) 
DENT -  01.01.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Athukoralalage 
Harshadewa Priyadarshi Padmakumara Kariyapperuma 
(01974) MED 01.01.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Damian Benjamin Vevil 
Weerasinghe (01832) E ENG - 01.01.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Selarge Prasanka 
Sunanda Martino (01961) AERO  AND GEN ENG - 
01.01.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Asoka Dharmasri 
Manamperi  Koralage (01916) ADMIN - 01.01.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Asela Vasantha Jayasekera 
(01946) GDP - 01.01.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Jayamaha Mudalige Don 
Ruchira Amitha Priyadharshana Jayamaha (01949) 
GDP - 02.01.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Sanath Demuthu 
Kalubowila (01858) LOG - 04.02.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Eksath Sujeewa 
Ponnamperuma (01884) ADMIN - 04.02.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Manoj Priyadarshana 
Amadooru Galappaththi (01886) REGT - 04.02.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Atapattu Mudiyanselage 
Gladwin Swarnasinghe  Bandara Atapattu (02031) 
LOG - 05.02.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Punyawan Erandika 
Gunawardena (02073) VET - 07.02.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Paththamperuma 
Arachchige Vasantha Padmaperuma (01992) MED - 
08.02.2024;

Temporary Air Commodore Samantha Dinesh 
Jayaweera (02112) GDP -  13.02.2024;
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Temporary Air Commodore Warnakula Patabendige 
Amal Hemantha Perera (02117) GDP - 13.04.2024;

By the Honourable President’s  Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

21st December, 2023.

02-130/3

	

No. 255 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/47/23/(04).

SRI  LANKA  AIR  FORCE 

Promotions  approved  by  the Honourable  
President

The  undermentioned  Officers  are  promoted  to  the  rank  
of Temporary Air Commodore with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

Substantive Group Captain Chandimal Jayapath 
Hettiarachchi (01953) AERO AND GEN ENG - 
01.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Asitha Hettiarachchi 
(01933)	IT  ENG	01.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Katipe Kankanamge Subash 
Chaminda Jayathilaka (01882) ADMIN - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Merennage Thusith 
Nandika Salgado (01951) OPS AIR - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Ashad Duminda Rangoda 
Liyanaarachchige (01967) REGT	01.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Siyambalapitiya 
Arachchige Pradeep Thushara Piyarathne (02010) 
GDP 01.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Nalaka Sapugastenna 
(01883)	 ADMIN	02.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Uditha Chaminda Jayanath 
Piyasena (02040) AERO AND GEN ENG - 02.01.2024; 

Substantive Group Captain  Dassanayake 
Mudiyanselage Rukman Dassanayake (01908) REGT - 
02.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Nipuna Kosala 
Thanippuliarachchi (02017) GDP - 02.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Weerasekara 
Arachchilage Samantha Bandara Weerasekara 
(01885) ADMIN - 03.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Withana Kuruppu 
Appuhamilage Sanjaya Waruna Vithana (01964) REGT 
- 03.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Kuruwita Arachchige 
Prasanna Suranga Kuruwita (01980) GDP - 03.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Warnakulasooriya 
Weerakuttige Nilan Thilaksha Priyamal Fernando 
(02009) GDP 04.01.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Gamage Samaranayake 
Nishantha Priyadarshana (01905) REGT - 01.03.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Abeysinghe 
Kaluarachchige Kolitha Rohan Abeysinghe (02030) 
AERO AND GEN ENG - 01.03.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Prabhath Chaminda 
Dissanayake (01952) OPS AIR - 02.03.2024;

	
Substantive Group Captain Vidana Gamage Girimewan 

Buddhika Piyasiri (01909) REGT 02.03.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Nadun Asiri Gallage 
(02029) ADMIN 02.03.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Mark Florian Jansen 
(02110) AERO AND GEN ENG - 02.03.2024;

Substantive Group Captain Mabulage Pabalu 
Sulochana Marapperuma (01866) REGT - 03.03.2024.

By Order of the Honourable President,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st December, 2023.

02-130/4
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No. 256 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/23/(52).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by the Honourable President

The  undermentioned   Officer   retires   from  the   Sri  
Lanka  Air   Force  with   effect   from 01st March, 2024.

Group Captain Rajapaksha Mudiyanselage Thilina 
Rajapaksha (02101) - Regiment.

By the Honourable President’s  Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
27th December, 2023.

02-130/5

No. 257 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/03/23/(05).

SRI  LANKA  AIR  FORCE 

Promotions  approved  by  the Honourable  
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Substantive Group Captain with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

Temporary Group Captain Randeniya Mudalige 
Laxman Randeniya (02109) LOG - 03.01.2023;

Temporary Group Captain Dineth Eranda Geeganage 
(02322) E ENG - 01.01.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Chandrasekara 
Mudiyanselage Dinusha Chandrasekara (02143) PROV 
- 01.01.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Liyana Arachchige 
Denuvan Prasanna (02503) E ENG - 02.01.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Karunapeli Welagedara 
Nuwan Sarath Dhanushka Welagedara (02249) GDP - 
02.01.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Vajira Sampath Jayakody 
(02156) GDP - 01.02.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Kahagala Hewage Dinesh 
Prasanna Kasagala (02157) GDP - 13.02.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Ratnayake Mudiyanselage 
Chandana Jagath Kumara Ratnayake (02159) GDP - 
14.02.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Jeeth Sumeda Samarasekara 
(02123) GDP - 15.02.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Prabath Shantha 
Abeyruwan (02066) DENT - 16.02.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Mangala Seneviratne 
(02137)	 REGT - 01.03.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Sanjeewa Kolitha 
Weerasekera (02145) REGT - 02.04.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Jayalathge Gunanandana 
Jayalath (02054) ADMIN - 16.04.2024;

Temporary Group Captain Ranathunge Mudiyanselage 
Kanchana Thushara Kumara Gunasekara (02124) AERO 
AND GEN ENG - 25.04.2024.

By the Honourable President’s  Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
20th December, 2023.

02-130/6
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No. 258 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/3T/23/(06).

SRI  LANKA  AIR  FORCE 

Promotions  approved  by  the Honourable  
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Temporary Group Captain with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

Substantive Wing Commander Arambawattage 
Raditha Gihan Rodrigo (02174) LOG - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Chandrasekara Herath 
Mudiyansalage Jinasiri Chandrasekara (02256) 
ADMIN - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Peelawa Gunasenage 
Buddhika Medagewatta (02180) REGT - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Deliwala Gedara 
Nishantha Bandara Senavirathne (02300) GDP - 
01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Priyantha Sampath 
Jayathilake (02479) VET - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander De Silva Malitha 
Sajeewa Rangodage  (02338) AERO AND GEN ENG 
01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Wewakumbura Gedara 
Nalin Darshika Wewakumbura (02374) OPS AIR - 
01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Nishantha Dimuthu 
Ekanayake (02419) CIVIL ENG - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Pramuditha Liyana 
Gunawardhana (02350) E ENG - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Augas Pathirannahelage 
Iroshan Sampath  Kumara (02453) IT ENG - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Gamini Gunawardane 
Rubasinghe (V/0472) EDU - 01.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Pattiyapaulage Don 
Pasan Piyanath Dayananda (02298) GDP - 02.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Liyana Hettirallage 
Lasantha Kumara Liyanahetti (02287) REGT - 
02.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Ponnadura Nalinda 
Jayanath De Silva (02304) AERO AND GEN ENG - 
02.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Ijeshe Chandratilleke 
(02351) E ENG - 02.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Ranapanada Nirosha 
Darshika Senadheera (02286) REGT - 03.01.2024;

Substantive  Wing  Commander Priyanka  Rajaguru 
Herath (02323) GDP 03.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Samanda Marakkala 
Asanka Roshan Silva (02340) AERO AND GEN ENG - 
03.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Kahanawita 
Gamaralalage Kelum Niranjana Wimalarathna 
(02213) REGT - 04.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Kanishka Surendranath 
Balasooriya (02168) AERO AND GEN ENG - 04.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Ratnayake 
Mudiyanselage Asanka Udaya  RATNAYAKE (02339) 
GDP - 04.01.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Vidanapathiranage 
Ranga Sameera Vidanapathirana (02278) GDP - 
01.03.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Gunanda Handi Sanjaya 
Deepthi Amarabandu (02544) E ENG - 01.03.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Nilindra Pradeep 
Perera (02103) REGT - 01.03.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Dodamgoda Liyanage 
Janaka Ruwan Kumara Dodamgoda (02372) OPS AIR - 
01.03.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Padukkage Amith 
Prasanna Priyadarshana (02336) LOG - 02.03.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Priyanka Sampath 
Liyanarachchi (02279) GDP - 02.03.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Upul Indika 
Samaraweera (02545) E ENG - 02.03.2024;
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Substantive Wing Commander Wettapperuma 
Arachchilage Senehas Nuwan Premarathne (02404)
ADMIN - 02.03.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Hetti Arachchige 
Wijaya Priyadarshana Hettiarachchi (02275) REGT - 
02.03.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Mananage Darshana 
Atapattu (04112) CIVIL ENG - 02.03.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Anagipura Bimsara 
Rasanka Wijewardena (02424) GDP - 03.03.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Jayamaha Hitihamilage 
Deepal Kumara Jayamaha (01936) DENT - 01.04.2024;

Substantive Wing Commander Medagamage Dihan 
Rajitha Fernando (02345) GDP	 - 26.04.2024.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
20th December, 2023.

02-130/7

No. 259 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/24/(01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by the Honourable President

The undermentioned Officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect  from 01st January, 2024.

Wing Commander Mohamed Thouwfeek Mohamed 
Safrask (02361) - Regiment.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
04th January, 2024.

02-130/8

No. 260 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RES/24/(01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Resignation of Commission approved by the 
Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the Resignation of 
Commission of the undermentioned Lady Officer with effect 
from 15th January, 2024.

Wing Commander Dinesha Tharangani Hewawasam 
(03838) - Civil Engineering.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
10th January, 2024.

02-130/9

No. 261 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/24/(02).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by the Honourable President

The undermentioned Officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect  from 01st February, 2024.

Wing Commander Polwaththa Gallage Mohan 
Tiroshana (02537) - Regiment.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
10th January, 2024.

02-130/10
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No. 262 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/23/(51).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by the Honourable 
President

The  undermentioned Officer  retires   from  the   Sri  Lanka   
Air   Force   with   effect  from 01st March, 2024.

Wing Commander Heenkenda Mudiyanselage 
Dhananjaya Bandara Heenkenda (02384) - Logistics

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
27th December, 2023.

02-130/11

No. 263 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/23/(49).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by the Honourable 
President

The undermentioned  Officer  retires  from  the  Sri  Lanka  
Air  Force  with  effect  from 03rd March, 2024.

Wing Commander Dinesh Nuwan Sameera Weeraratne 
(02552) - Administrative.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
20th December, 2023.

02-130/12

No. 264 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/23/(53).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by the Honourable 
President

The undermentioned Officer retires from the Sri Lanka   
Air Force with effect from 01st April, 2024.

Wing  Commander Asiri Lakmal Vithanage  (02209) 
- Regiment.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
04th January, 2024.

02-130/13

No. 265 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/02/23/(05).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by the Honourable President

The udermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Wing Commander with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

Temporary Wing Commander Ponnamperuma 
Arachchige Chamira Krishan (02614) GDP 02.02.2023;

Temporary Wing Commander Withana Appuhamilage 
Asela Indrajith Withana (02499) REGT 01.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Sri Rama Brahmana 
Athapaththu Mudiyanselage Ajith Madurasinghe 
(02626) E ENG 01.01.2024;

 
Temporary Wing Commander Chamara Chathuranga 

Manikgamaarachchi (02670) LOG 01.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Udumalagala Uluvitige 
Dasun Manohara (02672) ADMIN 01.01.2024; 
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Temporary Wing Commander Praneeth Sameera 
Kodikara (02680) OPS AIR 01.01.2024;

 
Temporary Wing Commander Halke Widanalage 

Nirosh Wanasinghe (02631) GDP 01.01.2024; 

Temporary Wing Commander Jayakody Arachchige 
Sumith Priyankara (02553) REGT 02.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Sasitha Rangana 
Wijayagunasekara (02667) GDP 02.01.2024; 

Temporary Wing Commander Ranasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Sanka Niranjan Ranasinghe (02683) 
OPS AIR 02.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Uditha Kelum Lakmal 
Mahanama (02587) E ENG 02.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Bulathwaththe 
Walauwe Tilak sumith Bandara (02575) REGT 
03.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Badde Gedara 
Dhanushka Prabhath Jayarathne (02685) OPS AIR 
03.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Maha Hettige Don 
Chanaka Dilantha Maligaspe (02686) OPS AIR 
04.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Rupasinghe Arachchige 
Sampath Sadaruwan Perera (02491) REGT 05.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Subash Priyadarshana 
Thoradeniya (02539) REGT 06.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Kaluwa Dewage 
Harshana Kaushalya (02490) REGT 07.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Ganegodage Manjula 
Chandimal Ganegoda (02555) REGT 08.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Diluka Kavinda 
Kaluarachchi (02578) REGT 09.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Uditha Ishara Addara 
Pathirana (02573) REGT 10.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Polwaththa Walawwe 
Dammike Bandara Rathnayaka (02607) REGT  
11.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Eranga Roshan Waduge 
(02591) REGT 12.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Panagodage Janaka 
Hemachandra (02557) REGT 13.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Wijerathne 
Wickramasinghe Mudiyanselage Himala arunadeepa 
Bandara Wickramasinghe (02536) REGT 14.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Bilingahamula Gedara 
Athula Premachandra (02215) REGT 15.01.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Jayaweera 
Mudiyanselage Upul Janaka Manananda (02563) 
CIVIL ENG 05.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Wijesuriya Nayakage 
Amila Dhanushka Wijesuriya  (02705) ADMIN 
05.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Adhikari Arachchillage 
Srimal Asantha Gunarathne (02707) OPS AIR 
05.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Horadugoda Gamage 
Thasitha Sankalpa Wijayasiriwardhane (02717) GDP 
05.02.2024;

 
Temporary Wing Commander Rathnaweera 

Patabendige Thilan Dusanka Rathnaweera (02711) 
ADMIN 06.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Mallika Arachchige 
Don Chamara Kasun Wijetunge (02721) OPS AIR 
06.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Wikum Asiri Mapatuna 
(02718) GDP 06.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Kalundewa 
Mudiyanselage Sudarshana Bandara (02691) GDP  
07.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Sayakkara Viraj 
Sanjeewa Jayawardene (02716) GDP 09.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Nakandalage Don Isuru 
Dilantha Jayasekara (02722) GDP 10.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Tharaka Chaturnga 
Munasinghe (02695) E ENG 10.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Kumarathge Chathuri 
Dilhani (02660) DENT 26.02.2024;
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Temporary Wing Commander Sasiru Chamika Bandara 
Madurawala (02654) MED 27.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Delgoda Liyanage 
Sadara Chathurangika Liyanage (03824) DENT 
28.02.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Amunugama 
Dissanayakage Siddika Nimalashantha Dissanayake 
(02640) AGRO 01.03.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Subasinghege Don 
Charitha Dhananjaya Subasinghe (03178) E ENG 
01.03.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Loku Kamadi Hennedige 
Rajitha Tharanga Amarasiri (03180) VET 01.03.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Godakanda 
Kankanamge Buddika Priyadarshani Wijewardhana 
(03188) LEGAL) 01.03.2024;

 
Temporary Wing Commander Kulatilaka Attanayaka 

Mudalige Kamal Priyantha Jayasiri (02639) AGRO 
02.03.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Wijesundara 
Ranasinghe Muhandiram Appuhamilage Pramila 
Thushan Wijesundara (02710) LOG 02.03.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Lakkitha Chanaka 
Diyagamage (02693) E ENG 02.03.2024; 

Temporary Wing Commander Magalage Eranda 
Udaya Kumara Perera (02637) AGRO 03.03.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Anton Eranga Pinto 
(02697) LOG 03.03.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Ilangakoon Arachchige 
Kasun Darshana Padmasiri Ilangakoon (02708) LOG 
04.03.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Godakumbure Gedara 
Nihal Chandrajith Godakumbura (02599) CIVIL ENG 
01.04.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Wadduwage Upul 
Pushpa Kumara Perera (02601) CIVIL ENG 02.04.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Wijerathna 
Mudiyanselage Don Nuwan Chamara Andradi (02690) 
CIVIL ENG 03.04.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Udage Mudiyanselage 
Sudath Bandara Ariyarathna (02950) CIVIL ENG 
04.04.2024;

Temporary Wing Commander Nilushan Pethum 
Suranga Sekara Durage (02684) OPS AIR 07.04.2024.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd),
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
20th December, 2023.

02-130/14

No. 266 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/2T/23/(09).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by the Honourable President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the  rank  of  
Temporary  Wing  Commander  with effect from the dates 
mentioned  against their names.

Substantive Squadron Leader Hetti Arachchige 
Sugath Iroshan Abeywardana (02965) CIVIL ENG 
01.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Dissanayake 
Mudiyanselage Eranda Danushka Gunarathna 
(02945)	 E ENG 01.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Owitipana Walawve 
Kosala Prabath Owitipana (02679) REGT 01.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Dahanaka Rallage 
Charitha Rajakumara Wijerathne (03184) AGRO 
01.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Wijaya Keerthi Rankoth 
Pathiranage Gayan Sameera Dharmasiriwardhana 
(02746) OPS AIR 01.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Madduma Patabendige 
Kasun Thilina Kumara (02759) GDP 01.01.2024;
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Substantive Squadron Leader Rammuthu Praneeth 
Suranga Silva (02848) LOG 01.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Kukule Viyannalage 
Nirudaka Thilakarathne (02799) AERO AND GEN 
ENG 01.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Tuan Sameer Saino 
(V/0510) EDU 01.01.2024

Substantive Squadron Leader Thellambura Hetti 
Arachchige Lahiru Hasantha Hettiarachchi (02949)  
CIVIL ENG 02.01.2024

Substantive Squadron Leader Kudathelge Janitha 
Chamara Peiris (02675) REGT 02.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Pambahinne Gedara 
Vidhanaralalage Channa Prabhad Nandasena (02681) 
OPS AIR 02.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Jayawickrama 
Arachchige Rajeev Jayawickrama (02753) GDP 
02.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Radhika Udesh 
Ranaweera (02724) AERO AND GEN ENG 02.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Rawatthe Widane 
Kankanamge Supun Buddika Rawatthe 02855) LOG  
02.01.2024

Substantive Squadron Leader Pathum Harsha 
RAMANAYAKE	(02694) E ENG 02.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Nadeeja Wijenayaka 
(02948) CIVIL ENG - 03.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Waduthanthri Ramedha 
Dhanushka Jayawardhana (02752) OPS AIR - 03.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Baththana Ralalage 
Nuwan Senarath Mudiyanse Medagama (02863) GDP - 
03.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Don Hiran Hemajeeth 
Welgama (02706) LOG - 03.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Nimesh Kasun 
Abeywardana (02800) AERO AND GEN ENG 03.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Ranaweera 
Rathnathilaka Palihana Walauwe Rukshan 
Thilakarathne (02864) - GDP 04.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Benthota Samith 
Gamage (02798) AERO AND GEN ENG 04.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Wijekoon Mudiyanselage 
Chanaka Harsha Bandara (02804) LOG 04.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Shanaka Dulshan 
Menikge  (02879) GDP 05.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Kariyawasam 
Maratigngna Gamage Lakmal Jayasuriya (02801) AERO 
AND GEN ENG 05.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Nadun Umayanga 
Deneththi (02876) GDP 06.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Makawitage Dihan 
Romesh Perera (02849) GDP 07.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Samith Udara Kodikara 
(02857) GDP 08.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Daham Raveendra 
Randunuge (02754) GDP 09.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Manikarachchige 
Arjuna Udantha Manikarachchi (02880) GDP 
10.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Siyambalapitiya 
Arachchige Asanka Sajith Nirmal Siyambalapitiya 
(02668) GDP 11.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Weerakoon 
Mudiyanselage Mogeeth Chathuranga Weerakoon 
(02802) GDP 12.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Gardi Arachchilage 
Thilina Gardiarachchi (02750) GDP 13.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Gabadage Don Dinindu 
Praveen Senarathne (02851) GDP 14.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader tharindu dananjana 
edhirisingha kodituwakku (02868) GDP 15.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Gamlakshage Don 
Malinda Rukshan Gamlakshage (02749) GDP 
16.01.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Herath Mudiyanselage 
Jayampathi Sampath Senevirathna (02978) CIVIL ENG 
01.03.2024;
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Substantive Squadron Leader Warnakula Patabendige 
Nuran Amila Buddhika Barnad Perera (02875) GDP 
01.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Athukorallage 
Subhashana Athukorala (02818) AERO AND GEN ENG 
- 01.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Kalanchi Devage 
Kusumsiri Lal Jayantha Civil ENG (02611) 02.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Hetti Arachchige 
Prabath Kanchana Fernando (02860) REGT - 
02.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Maharage Nimendra 
Ramesh Sylvester Gunawardane (02871) GDP 
02.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Munasinghe Arachchige 
Damith Nuwan Indunil (02816) AERO AND GEN ENG	
- 02.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Kahanduwa Arachchige 
Samantha Deepal Rathnapala (02676) REGT -  
03.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Waharaka Dewage Viraj 
Lakmal (02810) AERO AND GEN ENG - 03.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Amarasinghe Arachchige 
Ruwan Lakshan Jayatissa (02859) GDP - 03.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Wijesinghage Ranga 
Maduraka Jayarathna (02677) REGT - 04.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Walimunige Chathima 
Maduranga Dayarathne (02865) GDP - 04.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Withanage Nuwan 
Indeewara Yalagama (02797) AERO AND GEN ENG 
04.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Nadun Sameera 
Dikkumburage (02806) AERO AND GEN ENG 
05.03.2024;	

Substantive Squadron Leader Eranda Milan 
Attanayake (02678) REGT - 05.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Weerasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Amila Dinesh Weerasinghe (02873) 
GDP 05.03.2024;

Substantive Squadron Leader Malliya Waduge Nelson 
De Silva (02713) GDP 06.03.2024.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
04th January, 2024.

02-130/15

No. 267 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RES/23/(44).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Resignation of Commission approved by the 
Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the undermentioned  Officer with effect 
from 01st March, 2024.

Squadron Leader Muditha Laksri Jayawarna (02951) - 
Information Technology Engineering.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
27th December, 2023.

02-130/16

No. 268 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/01/23/(13).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by the Honourable President

The  undermentioned  Officers  are promoted  to the rank  
of  Substantive  Squadron  Leader with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.
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Temporary Squadron Leader Kurumbara Arachchige 
Nuwan  Sameera Karunarathna (03350) ADMIN - 
28.09.2023;

Temporary Squadron Leader Kumara Pathirannahalage  
Sumith Niroshan Pathirana (02834) CIVIL ENG - 
01.01.2024;

Temporary  Squadron Leader Pitiye Gedara Ranjana 
Kumara (03213) CIVIL ENG - 01.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Manuja Eranda 
Polgampola (03024) REGT - 03.01.2024;

Temporary  Squadron Leader  Edirisinghe  Arachchige  
Charaka Harshadeva Abeyawardane (03025) OPS AIR - 
03.01.2024;

Temporary  Squadron Leader Kiriwandeniye  Gedara 
Dinesh Kumara Kiriwandeniya (03026) REGT - 
03.01.2024;

Temporary  Squadron Leader Shiraj Iroshan Rodrigo	
(03027) OPS AIR - 03.01.2024;

Temporary  Squadron Leader Hitihamillage  Samila 
Rangana Gunasekara (03029) LOG - 03.01.2024;

Temporary  Squadron Leader Malith Hasantha Pilana 
Vithanage (03030) ADMIN - 03.01.2024;

Temporary  Squadron Leader Hewa Ambepitiyage 
Nilanga Madushan Gunarathna (03032) GDP - 
03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Wickramasinghe  
Pathirannahelage  Shakya Prasad Wickramasinghe 
(03033)	 LOG - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Welvidanelage  Don 
Lahiru Praveen Angelo Silva (03036) OPS AIR - 
03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Tharindu  Prabuddha 
Gunawardana (03037) ADMIN - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Sooriya Mudiyanselage 
Tharindu  Lasantha Sooriyakumara (03041) ADMIN 
03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Gorokgodage Priyantha 
Amarasiri (03043) REGT	 - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Thilina Nirmala Perera 
(03045) OPS AIR - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Nuwarapakshe Gedara 
Kasun Dayakumara (03047) REGT - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Miriyagalla 
Kankanamlage Damith Isuranga Miriyagalla (03053) 
ADMIN - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Chamith Nallaperuma 
Dissanayake (03059) ADMIN - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Petikiri Koralage 
Mahesh Lakmal (03063) REGT - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Shanidu Ashan Ranawaka 
(03068) REGT - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Udukuburage Viduranga 
Sameera Bandara (03070) REGT - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Piyadigamage Kushantha 
De Silva (03071) LOG - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Haritha Nadun 
Pinnaduwa (03073) REGT - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Priyanka Bandula 
Patuwatha Withanage (03075) LOG - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Edirisinghe Dewage 
Madushanka Manoj Wijewickrama (03080) REGT - 
03.01.2024

Temporary Squadron Leader Harambage Rajitha 
Srinath Fernando (03083) LOG - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Sudirikku Shanaka Ayesh 
Jayawickrama (03084) LOG- 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Gangodawilage Rashika 
Roshan Gangodawila (03085) REGT - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Batuwita Hewage 
Madushan Denuka Gunathilake (03087) REGT - 
03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Henarath Hetti 
Arachchige Don Kasun Maduranga Hettiarachchi 
(03088) LOG - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Liyanage Niroshan 
Mayuranga (03089) REGT - 03.01.2024;
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Temporary Squadron Leader Nayana Kantha 
Thilakarathna (03091) REGT - 03.01.2024	

Temporary Squadron Leader Chiranjaya Yasas Perera	
(03093) REGT - 03.01.2024	

Temporary Squadron Leader Rehan James Moonemalle 
Goonetileke (03095) GDP - 03.01.2024

Temporary Squadron Leader Rukshan Jayampathi 
(03096) GDP - 03.01.2024

Temporary Squadron Leader Chathura Nilanga 
Deweniguruge (03099) GDP - 03.01.2024

Temporary Squadron Leader	 Nanayakkarawasam  
Mahakapuge Tharindu Yasas Sarathchandra (03116) 
CIVIL ENG - 03.01.2024

Temporary Squadron Leader Oshan Sameera 
Maginarachchi (03117) CIVIL ENG - 03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Rajamuni Dewalage 
Thiwanka Harshana Rajapaksha (03118) CIVIL ENG - 
03.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Siribanddana 
Kankanamge Chinthaka Ruwan Kumara (03366) CIVIL 
ENG - 11.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Praveen Dimantha Perera 
Jayawardana (03367) CIVIL ENG - 11.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Kottal Badde 
Vidanalage Ishan Upendra (03060) REGT - 03.02.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Samarakoon 
Mudiyanselage Kalum Probodana Samarakoon (03064) 
REGT - 03.02.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Weerasekara 
Mudiyanselage Rajitha Bandara (03076) LOG - 
03.02.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Kandhasamy  
Mathiyalahan (03102) REGT - 03.02.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Sheiak Rushly Ahamath 
(03039) LOG - 03.02.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Hetti Arachchige Hishan 
Sri Prasad (03040) LOG - 03.02.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Abeysinghe Pathiranage 
Rajitha Malindu Suresh Abeysinghe (03077) ADMIN - 
03.02.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Kohilamulla Arachchige 
Janith Buddika (03065) LOG - 03.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Ranasinghe Mudalige 
Piyumal Darshana Ranasinghe (03082) REGT - 
03.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Kapila Harsha Kumara 
Lakshman Wickramarathna (03341) ADMIN - 
14.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Gihan Buddhima 
Sampathawadu (03111) OPS AIR - 19.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Amarasingha 
Kankanamlage Chatura Pushpitha Samaranayake 
(03112) LOG - 19.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Rajapaksha Rathnayaka 
Mudiyanselage Thivanka  Mangala Nawarathne 
(03113) OPS AIR - 19.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Bopitiya Arachchilage 
Asanka Madushan Bopitiya (03114) OPS AIR - 
19.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Ipalawaththage Chamika 
IPALAWATHTHAGE (03115) REGT - 19.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Samarappulige Udaya 
Pradeep Krishantha Linkan (03121) ADMIN - 19.03.2024

Temporary Squadron Leader Ekanayake Ranathunga 
Mudiyanselage Shashika Sandaruwan Ekanayake 
(03150) AERO AND GEN ENG - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Wijesinghe Arachchilage 
Don Thisara Namal Jayamanna (03151) AERO AND 
GEN ENG - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Hetti Arachchi Kandage 
Dilantha Lakmal Hettiarachchi (03153) LOG - 
20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Eranga Ransika Athauda 
Pathirana (03155) LOG - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Kande Appuhamilage 
Chamida Prasad Senarathna (03157) AERO AND GEN 
ENG - 20.03.2024;
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Temporary Squadron Leader Ganegoda 
Pathirannehelage Dushintha Prageeth Ganegoda 
(03158) CIVIL ENG - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Gee Kiyanage Don 
Buddika Jayampathi Dissanayake (03160) AERO AND 
GEN ENG - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Uwe Gedara 
Mudiyanselage Malaka Nuwan Bandara (03161) AERO 
AND GEN ENG - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Bandara Pathiranage 
Vidura Ranapriya (03162) CIVIL ENG - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Shehan Anthony 
Lakshan Samarasinghe (03163) CIVIL ENG- 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Heepitiye  Gedara 
Nethmina  Janaka Bandara Dayananda (03132) LOG - 
20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Ukwaththa Janage 
Chandana Kumara (03166) E ENG - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Batalawattage Dileepa 
Nuwan Wickramsinghe (03135) REGT - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Wijethunga 
Mudiyanselage Pradeep Thushara Dilrukshan 
Wijethunga (03138) REGT - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Herath Mudiyanselage 
Thushara Chaminda Kumara Herath (03140) REGT - 
20.03.2024;	

Temporary Squadron Leader Mohammed Musthafa 
Musnif Ahamed (03146) REGT - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Wanasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Chinthaka Pramoth Wanasinghe 
(03147) REGT - 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Mahamadachchige 
Sachitha Anjula Mahamadachchige (03148) REGT - 
20.03.2024;  

Temporary Squadron Leader Munasinghe Arachchige 
Chathuranga Nuwanjith Munasinghe (03167) AERO 
AND GEN ENG 20.03.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Colombo 
Hapuarachchilage Sameera Madhusanka  
Hapuarachchi (03136) REGT 20.04.2024.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
20th December, 2023.

02-130/17

No. 269 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/01/23/(14).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotion approved by the Honourable President

The undermentioned Officer is promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Squadron Leader with effect from the date 
stated against his name. 

Flight Lieutenant Praveen Ediriweera Galappaththi 
(03505) - MED - 01.01.2024.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,

20th December, 2023.

02-130/18
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No. 270 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/1T/23/(08).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by the Honourable President

The under mentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Temporary Squadron Leader with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

Flight Lieutenant Thalgas Duwage Chathuranga 
Vishma Kumara  (03086) LOG 01.02.2021;  

Flight Lieutenant Nirmal Dhanuddhara Hiripitiya 
(03565) AERO AND GEN ENG 17.04.2023;  

Flight Lieutenant Edirisingha Arachchilage Shanaka 
Manoj Edirisingha (03691) LOG 2208.02.2023;

 		
Flight Lieutenant Menuka Rajitha Bandara 

Thibbotumunuwe (03482) GDP 01.01.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Mapa Mudiyanselage Nadun 
Sampath Jayathilaka (03999) IT ENG 14.01.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Podduwa Kankanamge Prasad 
Priyantha  (04003) IT ENG 14.01.2024; 			 
		    

Flight Lieutenant Amila Chandika Jayasinghe (03647) 
GDP 08.02.2024; 		

			    
Flight Lieutenant Hashen Nirmal Perera (03649) GPD 

08.02.2024; 		
		   		
Flight Lieutenant Karasin Kankanamge Lahiru 

Ranganath (03651) AERO AND GEN ENG 08.02.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Edirisinghe Mudiyanselage Dunith 
Chanduka Edirisinghe (03652) log 08.02.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Gayan Tharuka Jayasinghe (03653) 
admin 08.02.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Thibbutumunuwa Arachchillage 

Ishara Maduka Mayadunna (03654) ops air 
08.02.2024; 

			 
Flight Lieutenant Thotamuna Kankanamge Lasith 

Hasanjana Kumarasinghe (03655) log 08.02.2024; 

Flight Lieutenant Muthunamagonnage Royce Leon 
Navinthaka Fernando (03657) gdp 08.02.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Hewa Thondilege Imesh Imantha 
Somathilaka (03658) regt 08.02.2024; 		
	

Flight Lieutenant Ranamuka Achchilage Shashika 
Sanjaya Samarakoon (03659) log 08.02.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Udaweediye Arachchillage Kusal 
Hasintha Amarathunga (03661) aero and gen eng 
08.02.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Rihan Javahir Jayampathi (03662) 

aero and gen eng 08.02.2024; 		
		
Flight Lieutenant Ilandarage Pubudu Madushanka 

Chandrarathne (03663) regt 08.02.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Mahanthe Gamage Ranuka 
Lakshitha Premathilaka (03665) gdp 08.02.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Rubasinghage Buddhika Nuwan 
Viduranga  (03666) regt 08.02.2024;

 		
Flight Lieutenant Makavitage Mark Romesha Vimada 

Perera Wijayawardana (03669) regt 08.02.2024; 

Flight Lieutenant Adikari Mudiyanselage Chathurika 
Gayashan Adikari (03670) regt 08.02.2024; 

		
Flight Lieutenant Dissanayake Mudiyanselage 

Chanuaka Asiri Kumara Bandaranayaka (03672) regt 
08.02.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Weerasingha Mudiyanselage 

Saranga Prabath Weerasingha (03673) ops air 
08.02.2024;

 		
Flight Lieutenant Randunu Pathirannehelage Ashan 

Eranda Herath (03674) regt 08.02.2024; 		
	

Flight Lieutenant Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Asanka 
Saliya Bandara (03676) admin 08.02.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Karunamuni Charunda Pathum 
Bandara (03677) regt 08.02.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Ekanayake Arachchige Kalpa 

Priyasad Ekanayake (03678) ops air 08.02.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Jayasuriya Arachchilage Don 
Anton Sandamal Appuhamy (03680) aero and gen 
enG 08.02.2024; 		
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Flight Lieutenant Rashmi Tharaka Lokuliyana (03684) 
gDP 08.02.2024; 

			 
Flight Lieutenant Dewpura Dewayalage Chathura 

Dilshan Rupasinghe (03685) e eng 08.02.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Hashani Sithara Liyanage 
(OW/01127) log 08.02.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Denike Herath Mudiyanselage 

Gamage Umavi Thilothma Wijerathne (OW/01128) 
ADMIN 08.02.2024; 	

		  	
Flight Lieutenant Kulawansha Mudiyanselage 

Nishadi Shiromala Menike Jayasinghe (OW/01129) 
regt 08.02.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Hemachandra Pathiranage Vinma 

Rangari Sadaruwani Rathnasooriya (OW/01130) regt 
08.02.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Igala Mandira Bashini Dissanayake 

(OW/01131) log 08.02.2024; 		
		
Flight Lieutenant Bagya Kinkini Morawaka 

(OW/01132) regt 08.02.2024; 		
		
Flight Lieutenant Erangi Daksha Nanayakkara 

(OW/01133) prov 08.02.2024; 		
		
Flight Lieutenant Geeganage Hanshani Chiranga 

(OW/01134) REGT 08.02.2024; 		
		
Flight Lieutenant Weerathunga Arachchige Shehan 

Uvindu De Costa (03625) log 16.03.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Pasquvelge Don Pradeep Suran 
Bernard (03626) aero and gen enG 16.03.2024; 	
	

Flight Lieutenant Malagoda Gamage Madhushan 
Rasanga Malagoda (03627) aero and gen enG 
16.03.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Kurukulasooriyage Don Promod 

Chinthaka Kurukulasooriya (03630) aero and gen 
enG 16.03.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Herath Mudiyanselage Imithra 

Waruna Bandara Herath (03631) civil enG 
16.03.2024;

 		
Flight Lieutenant Gadiwinne Vithanage Sidath 

Sanjeewa Vithanage (03632) civic eng 16.03.2024;

Flight Lieutenant Wijenayaka Mudalige Nadeesha 
Madushanka Wijenayaka (03633) LOG 16.03.2024; 

 			 
Flight Lieutenant Herath Mudiyanselage Krishan 

Namal Madhusanka Herath (03634) CIVIL ENG 
16.03.2024;

Flight Lieutenant Aluth Gedara Nuwan Bandara 
Dharmakeerthi (03635) Civil ENG 16.03.2024; 

 
Flight Lieutenant Sarath Sisira Kumarage Sampath 

Namal Bandara Rathnayaka (03638) regt 16.03.2024;

Flight Lieutenant Ilekuttige Shehan Dhanushka 
Fernando (03641) e eng 16.03.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Chathura Sahan Wickramathilaka 

Midigaspe (03712) e eng 16.03.2024; 		
		
Flight Lieutenant Wanasingha Arachchige Kavindu 

Samindra Wanasinghe (03713) civil enG  16.03.2024; 	
		

Flight Lieutenant Hetti arachchige kasun Sampath 
Atigala (03628) e eng 16.04.2024; 		

		
Flight Lieutenant Nikagahage Ravidu Sampath Perera 

(03636) regt 16.03.2024. 		
		

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
20th December, 2023.

02-130/19

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/1T/23/(09).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

An amendment to a Date of Promotion approved 
by the Honourable President

The effective date of promotion to the Temporary Squadron 
Leader of the undermentioned Lady Officer, which was 
effected with effect from 17th March, 2023 by the Gazette 
bearing No. 2321 dated 24th February, 2023 has been 
amended as mentioned against her name. 
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Flight Lieutenant Satharasinghe Arachchige Nimesha 
Thushangi Satharasinghe (OW/01118) Log - 23.11.2023.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
15th December, 2023.

02-130/20

No. 271 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/TNV/23/(07).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Invalidation on Medical Grounds approved by the 
Honourable President

The undermentioned Officer is Invalidated on Medical 
Grounds from the Sri Lanka Air Force on 08th December, 
2023. 

Flight Lieutenant Ratnayake Appuhamillage Chamath 
Pandula Ratnayake (03668) Regiment.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
13th December, 2023.

02-130/21

No. 272 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RES/24/(02).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Resignation of Commission approved by the 
Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the Resignation of 
Commission of the undermentioned Officer with effect from 
31st December, 2023.

Flight Lieutenant Wijesekara Arachchige Thilina 
Madusanka Senarath (03092) - Logistics.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
09th January, 2024.

02-130/22

No. 273 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RES/24/(01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Resignation of Commission approved by the 
Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the Resignation of 
Commission of the undermentioned Officer with effect from 
01st April, 2024.

Flight Lieutenant Shamika Milan Somasundara 
(03823) - Civil Engineering.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
10th January, 2024.

02-130/23
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No. 274 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/01/23/(12).

SRI  LANKA  volunteer Air  force

Promotions approved by the Honourable President

The undermentioned Volunteer Officers are promoted to 
the rank of Substantive Squadron Leader with effect from 
the date stated against their names.

Temporary Squadron Leader Inimankada Kankanamge 
Janaka Preethi Kumara (V/0569) Education - 18.01.2024;

Temporary Squadron Leader Nawarathna 
Mudiyanselage Upendra Indra Pathma Landewela 
(V/0570) Education - 18.01.2024.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
23rd January, 2023.

02-130/24

No. 275 of 2024

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RES/23/(43).

SRI  LANKA  Volunteer  Air  force

Resignation of Commission approved by the 
Honourable President

The Honourable President has approved the Resignation of 
Commission of the under mentioned Volunteer Officer with 
effect from 07th December, 2023.

Flying Officer Deef Malsha Asurarachchi (V/0625) - 
Civil Engineering.

By the Honourable President’s Command,

	 General Kamal Gunaratne (Retd)
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc MPhil
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
11th December, 2023.

02-130/25

Appointments &c., by the Cabinet of Ministers

No. 276 of 2024

Appointment

It is hereby notified  that, in terms  of the provisions of 
Article 55(2) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka, the Cabinet of Ministers has 
appointed Mr. K. Kanakeshwaran, Special Grade Officer of 
the Sri Lanka Administrative Service to the post of District 
Secretary/Government Agent of the Administrative District 
of Mannar, with effect from 23rd December, 2023.

By Order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

	 W. M. D. J. Fernando,
	 Secretary to the Cabinet of Ministers.

29th January, 2024.

02-116/1

No. 277 of 2024

Appointment

It is hereby notified  that, in terms  of the provisions of 
Article 55(2) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka, the Cabinet of Ministers has appointed 
Mr. R. M. P. Rathnayake, Special Grade Officer of the Sri 
Lanka Administrative Service to the post of Commissioner 
General of Buddhist Affairs, with effect from 04th January, 
2024.

By Order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

	 W. M. D. J. Fernando,
	 Secretary to the Cabinet of Ministers.

29th January, 2024.

02-116/2
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Government Notifications

Registrar  General’s  Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/25/2020/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	 I, hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in 
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

	 02.	 The Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands Matale, 09.02.2024 to 23.02.2024 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working 
days.

	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 01.03.2024. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

	 W. R. A. N. S. Wijayasinghe, 
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3, 
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha, 
Battaramulla, 

No. 278 of 2024

Appointment

It is hereby notified  that, in terms  of the provisions of Article 55(2) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka, the Cabinet of Ministers has appointed Miss G. D. S. Gunawardana, Grade I Officer of the Sri Lanka 
Administrative Service to act full time in the Post of Director General of the Land Use Policy Planning Department, with 
effect from 08th January, 2024.

By Order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

	 W. M. D. J. Fernando,
	 Secretary to the Cabinet of Ministers.

29th January, 2024.

02-116/3
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Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Extract bearing LDO D 15/162  	 All that allotment of land Lot No. 368     	 01.	 ud/m%/9416 & 21.03.1990 grant and  
of the Land Registry Mathale		 marked depicted in Plan No. w...ms.w.		  presented by the Secretary to the       
in Mathale District.		 334 made by the Surveyor General of the       		  president.
		 land called “Babaragaswewa Janapadhaya” 
		 situated at Manahinda in Galewela	 02.	 Form of ud/m%/9416 dated 21.12.2010
		 Divisional Secretariat Division in 			  of nomination of Successor by the 
		 Babaragaswewa Grama Niladhari		  Assistant Divisional Secretary.
		 Division in the District of Mathale
		 bounded on the Central Province.   	 03.	 Deed of Convenes No. 649 written	

	and attested by N. W. T. B. Nugapola,
	 North by	 :	Lot No. 345, 354 and 369;			  Notary Public on 21.12.2010.
	 East by 	 :	Lot No. 369 and 370;							   
	 South by	 :	Lot No. 370 ad 367;	
	 West by	 :	Lot No. 367 and 345;		
	 Extent  	 :	00A., 00R., 00P. Hec. 0.871
		
02-107

Registrar  General’s  Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/35/2021/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	 I, hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in 
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

	 02.	 The Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands Gampaha, 09.02.2024 to 23.02.2024 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working 
days.
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	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 01.03.2024. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

	 W. R. A. N. S. Wijayasinghe, 
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3, 
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha, 
Battaramulla, 

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Extract bearing LDO 27/05  	 All that allotment of land marked depicted     	01.	.ï/m%/8581 & 29.11.1985 grant and  
of the Land Registry Gampaha		 Lot No. 48 in Plan No. uq.ms...ï. 809 made		  presented by the Secretary to the       
in Gampaha District.		 by the Surveyor General of the land called       		 president.
		 “Mikadowattha” land situated at Hiripitiya
		 in Atthanagalla Divisional Secretariat 	
		 Division in 329 - Hiripitiya Grama  			   
		 Niladhari Division in the District of 		
		 Gampaha bounded on the,
				     	
	 North by	 :	 Road Reserve;			 
	 East by 	 :	 Lot No. 46;							   
	 South by	 :	 Lot No. 49;	
	 West by	 :	 Entrance Road;		
	 Extent  	 :	 00A., 01R., 05P.
		
02-108

Registrar  General’s  Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/65/2021/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	 I, hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in 
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

	 02.	 The Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands Kurunegala, 09.02.2024 to 23.02.2024 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working 
days.
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	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 01.03.2024. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

	 W. R. A. N. S. Wijayasinghe, 
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3, 
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha, 
Battaramulla, 

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Extract bearing No. LDO B 140/  	 All that allotment of land marked     	 01.	 l=re/m%/25601 & 08.02.1991 grant  
2911/91 of the Land Registry		 Lot 82 depicted in Plan No. w...ms. 1877		  and presented by the Secretary to        
Kurunegala in Kurunagala		 m.w. 02 made by the Surveyor General of       		  the president.
District.		 the land called “Ankendamukalana” 
		 situated at Mapegamuwa in Polpithigama 	
		 Divisional Secretariat Division in  			   
		 Moragollagama Grama Niladhari Division 		
		 in the District of Kurunegala bounded on the,
				     	
	 North by	 :	 Lot No. 84;			 
	 East by 	 :	 Lot No. 84 and Siyambala wewa
				   Village;							   
	 South by	 :	 Lot No. 83;	
	 West by	 :	 Lot No. 84;		
	 Extent  	 :	 Hec. 1.045.
		
02-109

Registrar  General’s  Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/17/2021/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	 I, hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in 
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.
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	 02.	 The Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands Kurunegala, 09.02.2024 to 23.02.2024 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working 
days.

	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 01.03.2024. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

	 W. R. A. N. S. Wijayasinghe, 
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3, 
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha, 
Battaramulla, 

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Extract bearing No. LDO B   	 All that allotment of land marked Lot 53     	01.	 l=re/m%/114481 & 26.02.1997 grant  
13554/97 of the Land Registry		 depicted in Plan No. 3127 made by the		  and presentd by the Secretary to        
Kurunegala in Kurunagala		 Surveyor General of  the land called      		  the president.
District.		 “Kadurugaswewa Yaya” situated at 
		 Galgiriyawa in Polpithigama Divisional 	
		 Secretariat Division in Galgiriyawa - 335 			   
		 Grama Niladhari Division in the District  		
	  of Kurunegala bounded on the,
				     	
	 North by	 :	 Land belongs to Premarathna;			 
	 East by 	 :	 Reservation for Galgiriyawa 	
				   Wewa;							   
	 South by	 :	 Land belongs to Karunarathna;	
	 West by	 :	 Galgiriyawa village edge;		
	 Extent  	 :	 01A., 00R., 00P.
		
02-110

Registrar  General’s  Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/133/2023/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	 I, hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in 
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column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

	 02.	 The Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands Delkanda, 09.02.2024 to 23.02.2024 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working 
days.

	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 01.03.2024. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

	 W. R. A. N. S. Wijayasinghe, 
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3, 
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha, 
Battaramulla, 

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Folio Nos. 156, 157 of Volume 45   	 All that allotment of land marked     	 01.	 Deed of Transfer No. 597 written and  
of Division Dehi. of the Land 		 Lot No. 11BA9 in the land called		  attested by G. C. Abeyarathne,         
Registry Delkanda in Colombo		 “Aluth watta and Apothakariyawattha”        		  Notary Public on 21.01.1971.
District.		 in Dehiwala - Mt. Lavinia Municipal 
		 Council Limits in the District of 	 02.	 Deed of Transfer No. 451 written
		 Colombo, Western Province and  		  and attested by M. D. J. P. Fernando,
		 bounded on the,  		  Notary Public on 20.05.1971.	

	
	 North by	 :	 Y1A, Y2A, Y2B;			 
	 East by 	 :	 11BA8;							   
	 South by	 :	 11BA17 reserved for road;	
	 West by	 :	 Road;		
	 Extent  	 :	 00A., 00R., 28.93P.
		
02-111

Registrar  General’s  Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/70/2021/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	 I, hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in 
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column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

	 02.	 The Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands Gampaha, 09.02.2024 to 23.02.2024 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working 
days.

	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 01.03.2024. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

	 W. R. A. N. S. Wijayasinghe, 
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3, 
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha, 
Battaramulla, 

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Extract bearing LDO 47/12 of the   	 All that allotment of land marked     	 01.	 .ï/m%/w;a/29 & 28.02.1994 grant and  
Land Registry Gampaha in		 depicted Lot No. 47 in Plan No. A453		  presented by the Secretary to the         
Gampaha District.		 made by the Surveyor General of the        		  president.
		 land called “Yakadawala Mukalana” 
		 land situated at Makalana in Attanagalla 	
		 Divisional Secretariat Division in   		
		 Makalana Grama Niladhari Division in  		
		 in the District of Gampaha bounded
		 on the,
		
	 North by	 :	 Lot No. 29;			 
	 East by 	 :	 Entrance Road;							   
	 South by	 :	 Entrance Road;	
	 West by	 :	 Entrance Road;		
	 Extent  	 :	 01A., 00R., 03P.
		
02-112
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Department of Debt Conciliation Board

Notice Under Section 25 & 26 of The Debt Conciliation Ordinance No. 39 of 1

The Debt Conciliation Board Wishes to make an attempt to bring about a Settlement between the Creditor and the  Debtor 
indicated against the application number in the Schedule hereto under the Debt Conciliation Ordinance Act No. 39 of 1941, 
No.5 of 1959, No. 24 of 1964 No.41 of 1973 and No. 19 of 1978.

Therefore, in terms of Section 25(1) and 26(1) of the Ordinance the relevant Creditors are hereby required to 
furnish to the Board before the date they are required to appear before it the particulars of debt due to them from the under 
mentioned debtors. 

	 Subhasini Dayananda,
	 Secretary,
	 Department of Debt Conciliation Board.

Department of Debt Conciliation Board,
No.35A, Dr.N.M. Perera Mawatha,
Colombo 08,
13th December, 2023.    

No. Name & Address of Debtor Name & Address of Creditor
(01 

GAM 
129

Mrs. Hiraya Pathirannahalage Badrani Jayarathna
No. 4/B
Unagahadeniya, Rukgahavila,(Nittambuwa)

Mr. Kasthurirathna Hettiarachchi Nimal Wijayarathna,
No. 155/10,
Wendesimawatha, Palagama,
Wewaldeniya

(02)
GAM 
225

Mr. Rankoth Pedige Rathnanjali Manoja 
Jayarathna
No. 165/72, 
Krishnapura Kolani, Akaragama

Mr. Wijesundara Jayasuriya Arachchilage Podi 
Appuhami
No. 416/C
Rajagahapura Ehala Madampalla,Mirigama

(03)
41412

Mrs. Sihappuli Withanage Lalani Withana 
No. 100/B, Walikadamulla, Aththanagalla. 

Mr. Dolawaththage Nihal
No. 63/A, Walikadamulla,Aththanagalla

(04)
GAM 
261

Mrs. Wijesuriya Arachchige Anusha hemamali 
Wijesuriya
No. 235/3,
Colombo Road, Gampaha

Mr. Edirippulige Ravendra Pradeep Kumara,
No. 146, Wele Road, Vidiya Waththa,
Udugampala.

(05)
GA 203

Mr. Mohomed Kamsin Mohomad Ramsi
No. 41/6, Bathutha Road, Mathara

Mr. Niroshan Wickramarathna
Pannala Waththa, Polathugoda, Tihagoda

(06)
GA 204

Mrs. Uththamawadu Chandrika Irangani 
65/B, Thuduwamulla, Ambalangoda

Mr. Maddage Asanka Prabath
No. 1/7,
Vilegoda,Amblangoda

(07)
GA 172

Mr. Urawaththa Pati Arabage Janitha Chamari
15/1 A, Thalgasgoda
Road, Polwatha, Ambalangoda

Mr. Pettigam Pemananda De Silwa Sri Buddadantha, 
polwatha, Ambalangoda 
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No. Name & Address of Debtor Name & Address of Creditor

(08)
GA 147

Mr. Hinipallage Ranjith
Pothuvilahena, Polathugoda, Thihagoda

Mr. Niroshan Wickramarathna
Pannalawaththa, Polathugoda, Thihagoda

(09)
GA 193

Mr. Loku Suriyage Ranjani Sriyalatha 
Kandewaththa, Denipitiya

Pramoda Shashi Trust And Investment PVT LTD 
No. 02, Welawaththa, Walipitiya

(10)
GA 127

Mr. Jasin Korale Arachchige Ganedra Jagath 
“Jagath”
No 209 /2, Panadugama,Akurassa 

Mr. Kaliduwa Munasinhage Yomal Hemantha 
Munasinha,
“Wickramawasa”, porathota, Godapitiya
Akurassa

(11)
GA 27

Mrs. Hini pallage Yamuna Nilmini Egodaha 
Kanaththa, Urapola (East), Thihagoda

Mrs. Chandima Mahadurage
Paraharagewaththa, Kandegoda

(12)
GA 21

Mr. Ranagalage Upul Indrajith 
“sriya” Araliya Mawatha
Kithalagama (West), Thihagoda

Mr. Niroshan Wickramarathna
Pannala Waththa, Polathugoda, Thihagoda

(13)
GA 191

Mr. Hewa Edirige Chameera Eranda 
Chandra sarath
No, 159/3, pehembiya,Dikwalla

Mr. Pitiduwa Badulla Anil
No. 518/2/A, Ihala Hanwalla, Hanwalla

(14)
GA 201

Mr. Kariyawasam Haputhantrige Darshana
Pradeep
Wiledeniya Waththa, Thalgasyaya, Akmimana

Mr. Hettiarachchige Sumith Wickramarathna 
Wakunugoda Road, Galle

(15)
GAM 
292

Mr. Kurukulasooriya Joshap Osvin Antanie peris
56/6, Rejina Road, Munnakkaraya, Negombo.

The Credit Club (Pvt) Ltd
No. 515/8/A Pinkoowaththa, Dalupotha, Negombo

(16)
44315

Mr. Katugaha Senadeerage Yohan Mangala 
Darmasena
Dewappriya House, C/96, Rahala (East), 
Aranayaka

Mr. Dibula Madagedara Nawarathna Bandara
Arama, Aranayaka

(17)
46438

Mr. Suriya Arachchige Maheshika Lakshani.
No. 29, Sithawaka, Awissawella,

Mr. Weerasooriya Mahawaththage Chamalee Jasintha
No. 61,1st Lane, Rathnapura Road, Awissawella

(18)
43018

Mr. Jayawardana Rupasingha
Mudiyanselage Nayanananda kumara
Amarasingha.
Badu Gedara Waththa, Kahawaththa, Dewalegama

Mr.Hetti Arachchilage Gunarathna Bandara 
Kahawaththa, Dewalegama

(19)
45774

Mr. Senaka Ralalage Shyamali Renuka Senarathna
74/D, Nagahawaththa, Ussapitiya

Mr. Kuruvitage Sarath
328/48, Ma-oya, Garden Road,  
Anwarama, Mawanalla

02-115
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Revenue & Expenditure Returns

S W R D  BANDARANAIKE  NATIONAL  MEMORIAL FOUNDATION 
 

Financial Statements  for the Year ended  31st December, 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Management of S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation (“the 
Foundation”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2022, and the statement of income 
and expenditure, statement of changes in funds, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial 
Statements, including a summary of significant Accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Foundation as at 31st December, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium - sized Entities (“SLFRS for SMEs”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of 
our report. We are independent of the Foundation in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of 
Ethics) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Board of Management is responsible for the other information. These Financial Statements do not comprise 
other information.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of the Board of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements that give a true and fair view 
in accordance with SLFRS for SMEs, and for such internal control as the Board of Management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Management is responsible for assessing the Foundation’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board of Management either intends to liquidate the Foundation or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Foundation’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these Financial Statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements is located at Sri Lanka 
Accounting and Auditing Standars website at: http://slaasc.com/auditing/auditorsresponsibility.php. This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report.

	 Chartered Accountants.

Colombo, Sri Lanka,
13th December, 2023.

Statements of Financial Position

     As at 31 December, 2022 2021
Note Rs. Rs.

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3      1,392,837,353      1,472,372,584
Intangible assets 4           42,344,922           19,342,155
Non-current financial assets 5           54,760,077           54,443,758
Total non-current assets

Current assets

     1,489,942,352      1,546,158,497

Inventory 6           34,231,781           17,523,792
Trade and other receivables 7         186,143,410         191,117,560
Short term investments 8      3,050,268,061      2,664,257,318
Deposits, prepayments and advances 9           60,581,362           27,966,093
Cash and cash equivalents 10         115,112,804         104,156,196
Total Current assets 3,446,337,418 3,005,020,959
Toal assets 4,936,279,770 4,551,179,456
 
Funds and liabilities
Funds
Capital reserve                925,522                925,522
Capital aid fund 11.1         348,672,197         353,409,055
CHOGM fund 11.2             9,202,390             9,385,543
S.W.R.D. Bandaranaike fund (Accumulated fund)      3,751,094,954      3,455,938,870
Revaluation reserve         486,581,630         486,581,630
Total funds

Non-current liabilities

     4,596,476,693      4,306,240,620

Employee benefits obligation 12           53,573,108           54,136,863
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     As at 31 December, 2022 2021
Note Rs. Rs.

Total current liabilities	        	  286,229,969	 190,801,973 

Total liabilities	         	 339,803,077	 244,938,836
Total funds and liabilities 	      	 4,936,279,770	 4,551,179,456

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

          53,573,108           54,136,863

Trade and other payables 13         184,351,478         133,168,969
Accrued expenses 14         101,878,491           57,633,004

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these Financial 
Statements of the Foundation.

	 Aruna Dharshana,	 Manuja Kariapperuma,
	 Head of Finance.	 Chief Executive/Director.

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements in accordance 
with SLFRS for SMEs.

Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

	 Board Member.	 Board Member.

05th December, 2023,
Colombo.

Statement of Income and Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December, 2022 2021
Note Rs. Rs.

Income 15   1,298,830,619     694,693,038

Direct operating expenses     (682,294,891)    (321,658,271)

Gross surplus      616,535,728     373,034,767

Other income 16        26,542,111       48,464,559

Administrative expenses     (312,011,986)    (161,162,991)

Marketing expenses       (10,692,003)      (10,916,497)

Finance expenses 17            (572,650)           (215,534)

Other expenses 18       (24,645,116)        (1,468,665)

Surplus before tax expense 19      295,156,084     247,735,639

Income tax expense                     -                    -
Surplus after tax expense      295,156,084     247,735,639

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these Financial 
Statements of the Foundation.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Note Rs. Rs.

Surplus before tax expense

Adjustments for non-cash income and expenses:

      295,156,084      247,735,639

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment       137,446,755        63,104,517
Amortisation of intangible assets           2,026,256             398,458
Interest income      (377,022,878) (160,713,044)
Provision for retiring gratuity           9,104,538             854,741
Write back of payables          (1,735,698)                     -
Provision for doubtful debts          (1,513,443)                     -
Write off of bad debtors         79,346,780                     -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment           5,831,745 (7,775,000)
Gain on disposal of scrap items          (3,289,887)                     -
Loss on disposal of inventories              610,180                     -
Amortisation of restricted funds          (4,920,011)                     -
Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in;

      141,040,421      143,605,311

Increase in inventories        (17,347,089) (2,645,121)
Increase in trade and other receivables        (72,859,187) (97,674,578)
(Increase) / decrease in deposits, prepayments and advances        (32,615,269)        11,672,734
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables, and accrued expenses         97,163,694 (3,733,364)
Net cash flows from operations       115,382,570        51,224,982

Gratuity paid          (9,668,293)
      

(10,707,704)
Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

      105,714,277        40,517,278

Interest income received         14,058,934      246,196,815
Sales proceeds from sale of scrap items           3,289,887                     -

Sales proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment           5,309,443                     -

Purchase of property, plant and equipment        (68,673,576) (49,931,913)

Purchase of intangible assets        (24,975,722) (2,580,000)

Investments in fixed deposits   (6,195,051,173) (223,721,618)

Withdrawals of fixed deposits    6,172,004,386                     -

Investments in WIP             (432,449) (12,791,241)

Sales proceeds from sale of inventory                28,920          8,153,192

Changes in staff loan receivables             (316,319) (875,951)

Net Cash used in investing activities        (94,757,669) (35,550,716)

Statement of Cash Flows
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Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities - -

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10,956,608 4,966,563
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 104,156,196 99,189,633

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  10  115,112,804 104,156,196

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these Financial 
Statements of the Foundation.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31st December, 2022.

1. Accounting policies 
 
	 1.1 	 Reporting entity 
 
		  S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation (“the Foundation”) is established under S W R D Bandaranaike 

Foundation Law No. 02 of 1975 of the National State Assembly. The registered office and principal place of operation 
is situated at Bauddhaloka Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

 
		  Principle activities and nature of operations  
 
		  S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation 

		  Principle activities of the Foundation are to promote international peace, understanding and co-operation and to 
promote the study and discussion of international problems in the economic, political, educational, cultural, and 
social fields and the dissemination of knowledge on international affairs and renting out premises for offices and 
hiring of the halls for public use. 

 
		  Bandaranaike Center for International Studies 

		  Principle activities of the Centre are to encourage and promote the studies of research into all aspect of international 
relations, international peace law and diplomacy. 

 
1.2 Basis of preparation 
 
	 (a) 	Statement of compliance 
		
		  The Financial Statements of the Foundation comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, 

statement of income and expenditure, statement of changes in funds, statement of cash flows and notes to the 
Financial Statements.  



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2024'02'09

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 09.02.2024 683

		 Basis of measurement 

		  The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. No adjustments have been made for 
inflationary factors in the Financial Statements. 

 
	 (b) 	Functional and presentation currency 

		  These Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR), which is the Foundation’s functional 
currency.  

 
	 (c) 	Use of estimates and judgments 
 
		  The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with SLFRS for SMEs requires management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of 
which form the basis of making the judgment about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 
		  The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only the financial year or in 
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future financial years. 

 
1.3 Significant accounting policies 
 
		  The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial 

Statements. 
 
	 (a) 	 Foreign currency transactions 
 
		  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to rupees at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the 

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated 
to rupees at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Foreign exchange differences arising on 
translation are recognized in the statement of income and expenditure.  

 
	 (b) 	 Property, plant and equipment 

	 (i) 	 Recognition and measurement 
 
		  Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses.  
 
		  Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and bringing the assets to 

its working condition. 
 
		  Gains/losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 

disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised net within “other 
income” in the statement of income and expenditure.  

 
	 (ii) 	 Depreciation 

		  Depreciation is recognized in the statement of income and expenditure on a straight-line method for S W R D 
Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation and CHOGM fund over the estimated useful lives of the asset.  
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		  The depreciation rate of assets for the current and comparative periods are as follows: 
  
	 Depreciation rate 
	

Building  2% 
Library books  20% 
Plant and machinery 10% 
Motor vehicle              25% 
Furniture and fitting              20% 
Conference system 
Other equipment 
Carpet and curtain 
Crockery and cutlery 
Electrical equipment 
Linen 
Container 
Roads 
Stalls 

12.5%
20% 

          33.3% 
             20% 

        20% 
          12.5% 
             10% 
             10% 
             10% 

 

CHOGM 2013 Fund Assets 

 

 Depreciation rate 
Hybrid building 
SBMEC hall building 

               3% 
               2% 

PVC covers              50% 
Motor vehicle              25% 
Furniture and fitting              20% 

 
	 (c) 	 Intangible asset 
 
		  Computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire and bring to use specific 

software. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful life of eight years on reducing balance method. 
 
	 (d) 	 Leased assets 
 
		  Property, plant and equipment on finance leases, (which effectively transfer to the Foundation substantially 

the entire risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items) are capitalized at their cash price and 
depreciated/amortized over the period the Foundation is expected to benefit from the use of the leased assets. The 
corresponding principal amount payable to the lessor is shown as a liability.  

 
		  The interest element of the rental obligation applicable to each financial year is charged to the statement of income 

and expenditure over the period of the lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability for each period. 

 
	 (e) 	 Inventories 
 
      		  Inventories are valued at the cost. The cost of inventories is based on the first in first out principle, and includes 

expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing 
location and condition.    

 
	 (f)	 Investments 
  
		  Short term investments in treasury bills and fixed deposits are valued at amortized cost.  
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	 (g)	 Trade and other receivables 
 
		  Other receivables are carried at anticipated realizable value. An estimate is made for bad and doubtful receivables 

based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. 
 
	 (h) 	 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
		  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with bank. 
 
		  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at 

call with bank, and net of bank overdrafts. In the statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are included in 
current liabilities. 

 
		  Statement of cash flows 
		  Statement of cash flows has been prepared using the indirect method. 
 
	 (i) 	 Impairment 
 
		  The carrying amounts of the Foundation’s non-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated.  

 
		  An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognised in statement of income and expenditure.  
  
	 (j) 	 Liabilities and provisions 
 
		  Liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when there is a present obligation as a result of 

past events, the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits. 
Obligations payable at the demand of the creditors or within one year of the reporting date are treated as current 
liabilities in the statement of financial position. Liabilities payable after one year from the reporting date are treated 
as non-current liabilities in the statement of financial position. 

 
		  A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Foundation has a present legal or constructive obligation 

that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation.  

 
	 (k) 	 Specifics funds 
 
		  Where funds are received for use in an identified activity, such funds are held in a specific fund account and transferred 

to the Statement of income and expenditure to match with expenses incurred in respect of that identified activity. 
Unutilized funds are held in their respective fund accounts and included in the Statement of financial position until 
such time as they are required. 

 
	 (l) 	 Taxation 
		  Income taxation 
 
		  The Foundation is exempt from income tax under the Inland Revenue Act, No.24 of 2017 and subsequent amendments 

thereto. 
 
	(m) 	 Employee benefits 
 
	 i. 	 Defined benefit obligation 
 
		  The Foundation’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is measured annually using the 
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projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting 
the estimated future benefit that employee have earned in return for their services in the current and prior 
period.  

 
		  Gains and losses arising from changes in the assumptions, current service cost and interest are recognized in 

the statement of income and expenditure in the period in which they arise. 
 
		  Provision is made for retirement gratuity for all employees in respect of gratuity payable under the Payment of 

Gratuity Act, No.12 of 1983. The provision is not invested in a fund outside the Foundation. The provision is 
not externally funded, nor has it been valued by an actuary. This item is grouped under noncurrent liabilities in 
the statement of financial position. 

 
	 ii. 	 Defined contribution plan 
 
		  Obligations to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the income statement as incurred. 

The Foundation contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of employees as Provident Fund and Trust Fund 
contribution respectively. 

 
	 (n) 	 Revenue 
 
		  Revenue recognition 
 
		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Foundation and 

the revenue and associated cost incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and turnover taxes. 

 
	 (o) 	 Expenses 
 
		  All expenditure incurred in the operations of the Foundation and in maintaining the capital assets in a state of 

efficiency have been charged in arriving at the Foundation’s surplus for the year. 
 
	 (p) 	 Finance expense 
 
		  Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, bank charges and debit tax. All borrowing cost are 

recognised in statement of income and expenditure. 
 
	 (q) 	 Comparative information  
       
		  Where necessary, comparative figures have been rearranged to confirm with the current year’s presentation.  
 
	 (r) 	 Events occurring after the reporting date 
 
		  All material post reporting events have been considered and where appropriate adjustments or disclosures have been 

made in respective notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
	 (s) 	 Commitments and contingencies 
  
		  Contingencies are possible assets or obligations that arise from a past event and would be confirmed only on the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events, which are beyond the Foundation’s control.  
 
		  Commitments and contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 22 to the Financial Statements. 
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S W R D BANDARANAIKE NATIONAL MEMORIAL FOUNDATION	 `
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022,

2	. Operating segments

	 2.1	 Basis for operating segments

		  The Foundation has the following two divisions which are its reportable segments. These divisions offer different 
services and are managed seperately because they require different strategies in operation and marketing. 

		  -	BMICH Conference and Exhibition Centre (BMICH)
		  -	Bandaranaike Centre for International Studies (BCIS)

	 2.2	 Information about reportable segments - 2022

		  Segment Statement of Income and Expenditure

Reportable segments Total

BMICH
Rs.

BCIS
Rs.

BNMF
Rs. 

Revenue       1,237,583,354            61,247,265      1,298,830,619

Direct operating expenses        (673,503,933)            (8,790,958)        (682,294,891)

Gross surplus         564,079,421            52,456,307         616,535,728

Other income           26,203,583                 338,528           26,542,111

Gross surplus after other income         590,283,004            52,794,835         643,077,839

Administrative expenses        (250,278,903)          (61,733,083)        (312,011,986)

Marketing expenses            (9,297,049)            (1,394,954)          (10,692,003)

Finance costs               (538,671)                 (33,979)               (572,650)

Other expenses          (19,433,457)            (5,211,659)          (24,645,116)

Tax expense                        -                        -                        -

Net surplus/(deficit) 310,734,924 (15,578,840) 295,156,084

Segment Statement of Financial Position

BMICH
Rs.

BCIS
Rs.

BNMF
Rs. 

Total non-current assets      1,489,942,352                        -      1,489,942,352

Total current assets      3,531,284,792          295,258,156      3,826,542,948

(-) Elimination of inter-segment receivables        (380,205,530)                        -        (380,205,530)

Total assets      4,641,021,614          295,258,156      4,936,279,770

Total funds      4,694,954,680          (98,477,987)      4,596,476,693

Total non current liabilities           49,790,859              3,782,249           53,573,108

Total current liabilities         276,481,606          389,953,894         666,435,500
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Reportable segments Total

BMICH
Rs.

BCIS
Rs.

BNMF
Rs. 

(-) Elimination of inter-segment payables                        -        (380,205,531)        (380,205,531)

Total funds and liabilities      5,021,227,145          (84,947,375)      4,936,279,770

Revenue         646,559,728       48,133,310 694,693,038

Direct operating expenses       (314,308,379)        (7,349,892) (321,658,271)

Gross surplus         332,251,349       40,783,418 373,034,767

Other income           46,669,753         1,794,806 48,464,559

Gross surplus after other income         378,921,102       42,578,224 421,499,326

Administrative expenses       (119,242,240)      (41,920,751) (161,162,991)

Marketing expenses           (9,427,926)        (1,488,571)         
(10,916,497)

Finance costs              (193,551)             (21,983)              
(215,534)

Other expenses                (27,913)        (1,440,752)           
(1,468,665)

Tax expense                       -                    -                     -

Net surplus/(deficit) 250,029,472 (2,293,833) 247,735,639

BMICH
Rs.

BCIS
Rs.

BNMF
Rs. 

Total non current assets      1,546,158,497                    -      
1,546,158,497

Total current assets      3,071,635,740     276,538,843      
3,348,174,583

(-) Elimination of inter-segment receivables       (343,153,624)                    -       
(343,153,624)

Total assets      4,274,640,613     276,538,843 4,551,179,456

Total funds      4,389,301,527      (83,060,907)      
4,306,240,620

Total non current liabilities           49,822,449         4,314,414           
54,136,863

Total current liabilities         178,670,262     355,285,335         
533,955,597

(-) Elimination of inter-segment payables                       -    (343,153,624)       
(343,153,624)

Total funds and liabilities      4,617,794,238      (66,614,782)
     

4,551,179,456

Segment Statement of Income and Expenditure - 2021

Segment Statement of Financial Position
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Cost  Balance as at 01 
January 2022 

Additions / 
Transfers

 Disposals / 
Transfers 

 Balance as at 31 
December 2022 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Building       1,006,094,900 55,144,021       (11,048,000) 1,050,190,921
Plant and machinery          201,216,061                     -                     - 201,216,061
Motor vehicles            84,205,000                     -                     - 84,205,000
Other equipment            40,718,901          3,088,016                     - 43,806,917
Furniture and fittings          114,652,685          1,115,255            (669,393) 115,098,547
Carpets and curtains            55,411,248          2,841,500         (1,333,204) 56,919,544
Electrical equipment          124,101,841          6,389,892                     - 130,491,733
Roads            33,621,139               94,892                     - 33,716,031

      1,660,021,775        68,673,576       (13,050,597) 1,715,644,754

Accumulated depreciation  Balance as at 01 
January 2022 

Depreciation for 
the year

 Depreciation on 
disposals 

 
Balance as at 31 
December 2022 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Building         158,135,474 17,605,345 (1,890,384) 173,850,435
Plant and machinery                 109,058 20,121,547                     - 20,230,605
Motor vehicles                         - 21,051,332                     - 21,051,332
Other equipment                 108,425 8,352,552                     - 8,460,977
Furniture and fittings                   29,087 22,884,319 (4,402) 22,909,004
Carpets and curtains                 739,921 18,891,356 (14,609) 19,616,668
Electrical equipment                 289,837 25,599,430                     - 25,889,267
Roads            28,928,251 2,940,873                     - 31,869,124

         188,340,053 137,446,754         (1,909,395) 323,877,412

Work-in-progress Balance as at 01 
January 2022

Additions  Capitalization  Balance as at 31 
December 2022 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Building 690,862 36,274,301 35,895,152 1,070,011
Carrying Value     690,862 36,274,301 (35,895,152) 1,070,011

1,472,372,584 1,392,837,353

3 Property, plant and equipment

    Freehold Assets

4 Intangible assets Intangible 
assets

WIP Total

Cost
Balance as at 01st January, 2022 4,619,492 16,426,523 21,046,015

Additions during the year 24,975,722 53,300 25,029,022

Balance as at 31st December, 2022 29,595,214 16,479,823 46,075,037



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2024'02'09

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 09.02.2024
690

Amortisation
Balance as at 01st January, 2022 1,703,859 - 1,703,859
Amortisation during the year 2,026,256 - 2,026,256
Balance as at 31st December, 2022 3,730,115 - 3,730,115

Carrying value 25,865,099 16,479,823 42,344,922

5 Non-current financial assets
Staff loans

2022
Rs.

2021
Rs.

Balance the beginning of the year 54,443,758 55,319,709

Loans granted during the year 27,409,410 23,272,724
Loans repaid during the year (11,064,140) (22,230,235)
Net change in prepaid staff cost during the year (16,028,951) (1,918,440)
Balance at the end of the year 54,760,077 54,443,758

6 Inventory
Inventory 34,231,781 19,259,490
Less:  Provision for inventory                    - (1,735,698)

34,231,781 17,523,792
7 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables (Note 7.1) 161,988,135 183,160,848
Other receivables - Reimbursements (Note 7.2) 1,398,531 7,126,538
Sundry debtors (Note 7.3) 241,210 241,210
Other receivables (Note 7.4) 22,515,534 588,964

186,143,410 191,117,560
7.1 Trade receivables

Trade receivables 217,787,869 240,455,275
Less:  Provision for trade receivables (55,799,734) (57,294,427)

161,988,135 183,160,848
7.2 Other receivables - Reimbursements

Other receivables - Reimbursements 32,996,507 38,743,264
Less:  Provision for other receivables (31,597,976) (31,616,726)

1,398,531 7,126,538

7.3 Sundry debtors
Sundry debtors 241,210 241,210

241,210 241,210
7.4 Other receivables

Other receivables 6,643,078                    -
VAT receivables 15,872,456 588,964

22,515,534 588,964

Intangible 
assets

WIP Total
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As at 31 December, 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.

8 Short term investments

Fixed deposits       2,830,462,263       2,578,139,895
Interest receivable          219,805,798            86,117,423

      3,050,268,061       2,664,257,318

9 Deposits, prepayment and advances

Advances to staff              4,773,645              4,153,005
Refundable deposits (Note 9.1)                         -              3,246,854
Prepayments            11,175,050                 357,544
Advance payments (Note 9.2)            34,304,500              9,880,523
WHT receivables            10,328,167            10,328,167

           60,581,362            27,966,093

9.1 Refundable deposits

Refundable deposits                         -              3,246,854
                        -              3,246,854

9.2 Advance payments

Advance payments            34,304,500            11,761,082
Less: Provision for advance payments                         -             (1,963,459)
Cash advance                         -                   82,900

           34,304,500              9,880,523

10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank          114,989,750            63,658,692
Cash in hand                 123,054                 120,100
Call deposits                         -            40,377,404

Cash and cash equivalents for the statement of cash flows          115,112,804          104,156,196

11 Specific funds

Capital Aid fund (Note 11.1)          348,672,197          353,409,055

CHOGM 2013 Year fund (Note 11.2)              9,202,390              9,385,543
         357,874,587          362,794,598

11.1 Capital Aid fund

Balance at the beginning of the year          353,409,055          332,888,982

Increase in the fund during the year                         -            43,432,816

Uilisations during the year (4,736,858)           (22,912,743)

Balance at the end of the year          348,672,197          353,409,055

11.2 CHOGM fund

Balance at the beginning of the year              9,385,543              9,610,796
Increase in the fund during the year                         -                         -
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As at 31 December, 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.

Uilisations during the year (183,153)                (225,253)
Balance at the end of the year 9,202,390              9,385,543

12 Employee benefits obligation

Balance at the beginning of the year            54,136,863        63,989,826
Provision made during the year              9,104,538             854,741

63,241,401        64,844,567
Payments made during the year (9,668,293) (10,707,704)
Balance at the end of the year 53,573,108 54,136,863
The principal assumptions used as follows;
Expected annual average salary increment rate 10% 6%
Discount rate / Interest rate 18.5% 11.9%
Retirement age of employees 61 years 61 years 

13 Trade and other payables
Trade payables           36,468,247        28,456,623
Other payables             6,035,970        12,778,873
Refundable deposits           24,359,535               49,047
Advances received from customers           98,100,782        86,093,585
Tax payable           19,386,944          5,790,841

        184,351,478      133,168,969
14 Accrued expenses

Statutory payables             2,964,579             876,299
Incentive payable           59,772,070        18,106,140
Sundry accrued expenses                753,530        29,311,207
Unpaid wages                        -          4,836,574
Audit and other services           38,388,312          4,502,784

 101,878,491  57,633,004
15 Income

Hiring income         440,179,722      170,044,634
Rent income         451,375,424      242,001,218
Interest income         377,022,878      160,713,044
Commission income -          88,000,000
Language course fee           11,006,670          8,919,200
International relation course fee           19,245,925        25,014,942

      1,298,830,619       694,693,038 
16 Other income

Amortisations and revaluations             4,920,010        23,137,997
Payables /Provisions write back             3,230,391                     -
Tax on social security contribution             7,814,648                     -
Sundry receipt income             6,948,647          2,064,436
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Telephone income                        -        12,421,104
Gain on disposal of assets             3,289,887          7,775,000
Miscellaneous income                325,344          1,392,756
Seminar and related income                        -          1,673,266
Exchange gain                  13,184                     -

           26,542,111         48,464,559 

17 Finance expenses
Bank charges           572,650          215,534

          572,650          215,534
18 Other expenses

Donations        2,748,071                  -
Advertisment & sales promotion - YLA        1,573,860                  -
Garden maintenance - culture hub building             69,601                  -
Rise up school meal program -CSR        8,600,000                  -
Loss of disposal of fixed assets and inventory        6,441,925                  -
Other expenses        5,211,659       1,468,665

     24,645,116       1,468,665

19 Surplus before tax
The following items have been recognised as expenses in determining surplus before tax;

Staff costs 311,383,406   219,914,551
Defined contribution plan - EPF and ETF  23,563,396     18,902,595
Defined benefit plan - Gratuity 9,104,538          854,741
Depreciation and amortisation 139,473,010     63,502,975
Auditor’s remuneration 2,000,000       1,700,000

20	 Related party transactions

20.1	 Transactions with key management personnel

The Foundation considers its members of the Board of Management as key management personnel of the 
Foundation. Compensation paid to key management personnel of the Foundation is as follows: 

2022 2021
Rs. Rs.

Short term benefits                  -                 -
               -                 -

21	 Commitments and contingencies

There were no material capital commitments or contingencies as at the end of the reporting date which require 
adjustments to or disclosures in the Financial Statements.

As at 31 December, 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
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22	 Litigations and claims

There were no litigations and cliams as at the reporting date.

23	 Events occurring after the reporting date

There were no material events that occurred after the reporting date which require adjustments to or disclosures in 
the Financial Statements.

24	 The Board of Management’s responsibility on financial statements

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements in 
accordance with SLFRS for SMEs.

25	 Approval of Financial Statements

These Financial Statements were approved by the members of the Board of Management and authorised for issue 
on 5 December 2023.

02-131

Miscellaneous Departmental Notices
Amana Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)—

nintavur branch

(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ 
a Banking Public Company duly Incorporated 

under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Amana Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 4 of 1990

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
that at a meeting held on 17.06.2023  by the Board of  
Directors of Amana Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously.

Whereas Mohamed Aliyar Mohamed Thahir, Segu 
Ismail Mohamed Riyas and Mohamed Aliyar Thawseer 
as “Obligors” have made default in payments due  on  
facility  granted related to Primary Mortgage Bond  
No. 8250 and another Primary Mortgage Bond  
No. 8248 both dated 29th  April, 2021 and all attested by 
A. M. Badurdeen Notary Public of Kalmunai in favour of 
Amana Bank PLC bearing Registration No. PB 3618 PQ 
a Company duly incorporated under the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of  2007 and having its registered office and 
principal place of business at No.486, Galle Road, 
Colombo 03 in the Democratic Socialist Republic 
of Sri Lanka and there is now due and owing to the 
Amana Bank PLC as at 31st March, 2023 a total sum of 
Rupees Seventy Three Million Seventy Two Thousand 

Two Hundred Sixty Three and cents Thirty Two only 
(Rs. 73,072,263.32) together with profit/markup/rental 
thereon from 01st April, 2023 to the date of sale on a 
sum of Rupees Fifty One Million Four Hundred Sixty 
Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty Three only 
(Rs.51,468,763.00) at a profit rate of AWPLR+ 3.5% per 
annum (with a cap of  14%  per annum and floor of 7.50% 
per annum), on a sum of Rupees Four Million Seven 
Hundred Twenty Eight Thousand Five Hundred Thirty 
only (Rs. 4,728,530.00) at a profit rate of 4.69% per 
annum, on a sum of Rupees Four Million Nine Hundred 
Fourteen Thousand Four Hundred Sixty Two only (Rs. 
4,914,462.00) at a profit rate of 9.6% per annum, on a 
sum of Rupees Seven Million Seven Hundred Thousand 
Nine Hundred Ninety only (Rs.7,700,990.00) at a rate 
of 14% per annum and a sum Rupees One Million Five 
Hundred and Sixty Two Thousand Seven Hundred and 
Thirty Seven and Cents Fourteen only (Rs. 1,562,737.14) 
at a zero profit on the said Bonds together with costs 
of advertising, any other costs and charges incurred, 
less payments (if any) since received and the Board 
of Directors of Amana  Bank PLC under the powers 
vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No.4 of  1990,  do  hereby  resolve  that  
the  properties  morefully  described  in the Schedule 
hereto and  mortgaged to Said Amana  Bank  PLC by 
the said  Mortgage  Bond  No. 8248 and 8250 be sold by 
Public Auction by Nishantha Upul Jayasuriya, Licensed 
Auctioneer of No. 369/1, Dutugamunu  Mawatha, 
Lewella Road, Mawilmada, Kandy.
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SCHEDULE

Property 1 :

All that divided and defined Northern portion amalgamated 
of Lot Nos. 6976 and 75959 depicted in Plan Nos. 173137 
and 188769 situated in the village of  Addappallam  in  the 
Grama Niladhari’s Division of Addappallam Nintavur 10, 
in Nintavur Pattu within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and 
Divisional Secretariat Division of Nintavur, in the District 
of Ampara, Eastern Province and presently bounded on 
the North by Wawwal Odai, on the East by Wawwal Odai, 
State land and Beach Road, on the South by the property  
belonging to Nadia llham Mariam Ishak and on the West by 
the land mentioned in the  Plan Nos. 118251, 173138 and 
179405 containing in extent Six Acre One Rood Eight and a 
half Perches (6A., 1R., 8 1/2P.). The whole of together with 
everything therein contained and this has been mentioned in 
LRC Plan No. AM422 and registered in Vol/Folio L 136/141 
at the land Registry Kalmunai.

The said allotment of land is according to a recent survey 
and description bearing No.1446 dated 10.01.2021 made by 
S.M. Ibrahim Licensed Surveyor, described as follows;

An allotment of land marked as Lot 1called “Wawwal 
Odai”-part of (being a resurvey of part lot 1in PPAM422- part 
of lot 1 in Plan No. 1415 dated 2020.12.16) situated in the 
village of Addappallam in the Grama Niladhari’s Division 
of Addappallam  Nintavur-10,  in Nintavur Pattu within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha limits of Nintavur in the Divisional 
Secretariat Division of Nintavur in the District of Ampara, 
Eastern Province, and bounded on the North by Wawwal 
Odai, on the East by Kadatkaraippoomi and state, on the 
South by the garden Lot 1 in PPAM422 (garden presently 
claimed by N. I. Mariam Ishak) and path and on the West 
by garden claimed on TP118251 and path and containing in 
extent Six Acre  Thirty Seven Decimal Zero Zero Perches 
(6A., 0R., 37.00P.) or 2.52170 Hectares. The whole of this 
together with  everything there  in contained.

Property 2 :

An allotment of state land called “Vempu Poomi” situated 
in the village of Nintavur in the Grama Niladhari’ s Division 
of Nintavur-05 within the Pradeshiya Sabha limits of 
Nintavur in the Divisional Secretariat Division of Nintavur, 
in Nintavur Pattu in the District of Ampara Eastern Province 
and depicted as Lot 37 in Plan No. PP/AM/1165 made  by  
M. Gnanapaskaran Surveyor and containing in extent Zero 
Decimal One One One Hectare (0.111Hectare) and bounded 
on the North by Lot No.10 on the East by Road, on the South 
by Lot No. 10, and on the West by Road. The whole of this 
together with everything therein contained and registered in 

Vol/folio LDO/L 08/66 at the Land Registry  Kalmunai.

The said allotment of land is according to a recent figure 
of survey Plan No. 3742/21 dated 21.01.2021, made by 
Ahamed M. Maharoof, Licensed Surveyor, described as 
Follows;

An allotment of land situated at 3rd Cross street in the 
village of Nintavur in the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Nintavur 05 within the Pradeshiya Sabha limits of Nintavur 
in the Divisional Secretariat Division of Nintavur, in 
Nintavur Pattu in the  District  of  Ampara Eastern Province 
and presently bounded on the North by the land claimed 
by Shirasiya and Jaseela, on the East by Road on the South 
by the land claimed by N. Wisriya and W. Fasiha, and on 
the West by Road and containing in extent Zero Decimal 
One One One Hectare (0.111 Hectare). The whole  of this 
together  with everything therein  contained.

It is also further resolved to authorise Mr. Rizah Ismail, 
Head of Remedial Management, Amana Bank PLC to sign 
the above Board Resolution at the time of publication.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

	 Rizah Ismail,
	 Head - Remedial Management.

02-215

SAMPATH  BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank  Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Sampath Bank PLC under Section  04  of  the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act,  No.  04 of  1990 amended  by  No.  01  of  

2011 and No. 19 of 2011

H. K. S. Hettiarachchi. 
A/C No. 0205 5000 0025.

At a meeting held on 14/l2/2023 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Hettiarachchige Krishanth Srimal  Hettiarachchi 
in the Democratic Socialist Republic  of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facilities granted against the security of the  property  and  
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premises morefully in the Schedule  hereto  mortgaged  
and  hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond Nos. 64l dated 
04th January, 2013 attested by S. Bandaranayake,  149 
dated 09th April, 2014, 826 dated 30th April, 2015, 
1787 dated 18th July, 2016 and 5640 dated 23rd March, 
2022 all attested  by  A. W.  S. Kalhari, Notaries Public 
of  Kandy in favour  of  Sampath  Bank  PLC  holding 
Company  Registration  No. PQ  144  and  having  
its  Registered Office  at  No. 110, Sir  James Peiris 
Mawatha, Colombo 02 aforesaid  and  there is now due 
and  owing on the said  Bond  bearing Nos. 641, 149,  
826, 1787 and  5640 to  Sampath  Bank  PLC aforesaid  
as at 09th October, 2023 a sum of Rupees Twenty One 
Million Five Hundred and Sixty Four Thousand Nine 
Hundred and Eighteen and Cents Forty Nine only  
(Rs. 21,564,918.49) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being 
the total amount outstanding on the said  Bonds and the 
Board  of Directors of Sampath  Bank  PLC aforesaid 
under the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks  (Special  Provisions)  Act, No. 04 of  1990 
do hereby resolve  that  the  property  and  premises  
morefully  described  in  the  Schedule  hereto  mortgaged  
to Sampath  Bank  PLC aforesaid as  security for  the  
said  credit facilities by the said Bonds  bearing Nos. 641, 
149,   826, 1787  and  5640 to  be  sold  in  public  auction  
by  N. U. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy 
for the recovery  of the said sum of Rupees Twenty 
One Million  five  Hundred and Sixty Four Thousand 
Nine Hundred and Eighteen and Cents Forty Nine only  
(Rs. 21,564,918.49) of lawful money of Sri Lanka 
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Twenty 
Million One Hundred and Twenty Thousand only  
(Rs. 20,120,000.00) at the rate of Twelve decimal Five 
per centum  (12.5%) per annum and further interest 
on a sum of Rupees Four Hundred and Eighty Three    
Thousand Seven Hundred  and  Seventy and  Cents 
Eighty One  only (Rs. 483,770.81)  at  the rate of Twelve 
decimal  Five  per  centum   (12.5%)  per  annum from 
10th October, 2023 to date of satisfaction of the total debt 
due upon the said Bond bearing Nos. 641, 149, 826, 1787 
and  5640 together with costs of advertising and other  
charges incurred  less payments  (if any) since received .

SCHEDULE

1. All  that divided and  defined  allotment of land  
marked  Lot  G depicted in Plan  No. 8290A dated 14th of  
January,  2001 made by S. Iddamalgoda, Licensed Surveyor   
of the land called “Katakalagahawatte and Aswaddume 
Kumbura” (being allotment of land depicted in Plan   
No.  4437  dated  02nd  June, 1995)  situated in  the  Village  
of Wewaldeniya in the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Weweldeniya, Ihalagama  - West and within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of  Mirigama  in  Pahalagama  in  Udugahapattu   

of  Hapitigam Korale in the Divisional Secretariat Division 
of Meerigama in the District of Gampaha, Western Province 
and which said Lot G is bounded on the North by ramaining 
portion of Lot 7 depicted in Plan No. 5219 made by  
P. Jayakodi, Licensed Surveyor, on the East by Part of Lot 13 
in Plan No. 8290A, on the South by Lot I and on the West by 
Lot E (Reservation for Road) and containi ng in extent Nine 
Decimal Four Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 9.40P.) or 0.0238 
Hectare together with soil, trees, plantations, buildings 
and everything standing thereon according to said Plan  
No. 8290A and registered  in Vol/Folio H 60/126 at the Land  
Registry,  Attanagalla.

2. All  that divided and  defined  allotment  of land  
marked  Lot 7A depicted in Plan  No. 4221 dated 24th 
August, 2012 made by W. A. Yapa, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Katakalagahawatte and Aswaddume Kumbura” 
(being  allotment  of  land depicted  in  Plan  No.  5219 
dated  08th of May, 1997 made by P. Jayakodi,  Licensed 
Surveyor) situated in the Village of Wewaldeniya in the  
Grama  Niladhari  Division  of Weweldeniya, Thalagama  
West and  within the  Pradeshiya  Sabha  Limits  of Mirigama  
in  Pahalagama  in  Udugahapattu  of  Hapitiga m Korale  
in  the  Divisional  Secretariat  Division of  Meerigama  in  
the  District  of  Gampaha,  Western Province  and  which  
said  Lot 7A is bounded on  the North  by  Lot 4 depicted  
in  Plan  No.  4437, on  the East by  Lot  1 3 (Reservation  
for Road) depicted  in  Plam  No.  4437,  on the South by  
Lot G depicted in  Plan  No. 8290A and on the West by Lot  
11  depicted in Plan No. 4437 (Road 10 feet wide) and 
containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.)  or 0.0253 
Hectare together with soil, trees, plantations, buildings  
and  everything  standing  thereon  according  to said  Plan   
No. 4221 and registered in  Vol/ Folio   H 60/111 (Remarks   
Column) at the Land Registry, Attanagalla.

Which said Lot 7A is a resurvey of following land to wit:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
7A depicted in Plan No. 5219 dated 05th August, 2010 made 
by P. Jayakodi, Licensed Surveyor of contiguous allotment 
of land called “Katakalagahawatte and Aswaddume 
Kumbura” situated in the Village of Wewaldeniya in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Weweldeniya, Ihalagama - 
West and within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Mirigama 
in Pahalagama in Udugahapattu of Hapitigam Korale in the 
Divisional Secretariat Division of Meerigama in the District 
of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot 7A is 
bounded on the North by Lot 4 depicted in Plan No. 4437 
dated 02nd June, 1997, on the East by Lot 13 depicted in Plan 
No. 4437 (Reservation for Road), on the South by remaining 
portion of Lot 7 and on the West by Lot 11 depicted in Plan 
No. 4437 and containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 
10P.) together with soil, trees, plantations, buildings and 
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everything standing thereon according to said Plan No. 5219 
and registered in Vol/Folio  H  60/125  at  the  Land Registry,  
Attanagalla.

By order of the Board, 

	 Company Secretary.

02-254

SAMPATH  BANK  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

	
Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

1. New Asha Wine Stores - A / C No. 0061 1000 7602.
2. R. M. Goluhewage & D. K. Wijesekera - A/C No. 0061 
5001  2609.

At a meeting held on 14.12.2023 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Rasika Manjula Goluhewage being the Sole 
Proprietor of the business carried on in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka under the name and style of 
“New Asha Wine Stores” as the Obligor has made default 
in the repayment of the credit facilities granted against the 
security of the properties and premises morefully described 
in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 277 dated 10th November, 2014, 1532 
dated 27th March, 2018, 1333 dated 20th April, 2017, 159 
dated July, 2014, 279 dated 11th November, 2014, 1335 
dated 20th April, 2017, 157, 162 both dated 02nd July, 
2014, all attested by T. Karunathilake, Notary Public of 
Colombo in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office at 
No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02.

Whereas Rasika Manjula Goluhewage and Dayani 
Kumari Wijesekera in the Democratic Socialist Republic of 
Sri Lanka as the Obligors and Rasika Manjula Goluhewage 
as the Mortgagor have made default in the repayment 
of the credit facilities granted against the security of the 
properties and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage 
Bond No. 5340 dated 04th November, 2021 attested by  
Y. N. Delpechithra, Notary Public of Colombo in favour of 
Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration No. PQ 
144 and having its Registered Office at No.110, Sir James 
Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 aforesaid.

And there is now due and owing on the said Mortgage 
Bond Nos. 277, 1532, 1333, 159, 279, 1335, 157, 5340 & 162 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 23rd November, 2023 
a sum of Rupees One Hundred and Twenty Seven Million 
Seven Hundred and Fifty Four Thousand Eight Hundred 
and Eighty  Cents Nine only (Rs. 127,754,880.09) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
together with interest on the said Mortgage Bond Nos. 277,  
1532,  1333,  159,  279,  1335,  157,  5340  &  162  and  the 
Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under 
the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve 
that the properties and premises morefully described in the 
Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid 
as security for the said credit facilities by the said Mortgage 
Bond Nos. 277, 1532, 1333, 159, 279,  1335, 157, 5340 
&  162 to be sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, 
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the 
said sum of One Hundred and Twenty Seven Million Seven 
Hundred and Fifty Four Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Eighty Cents Nine only (Rs. 127,754,880.09) together with 
further interest on a sum of Rupees One Hundred and Fifteen 
Million One Hundred  and  Eighty Thousand  One  Hundred  
and Ninety Eight Cents Thirty only (Rs. 115,180,198.30) at 
the rate of Average Weighted Prime Lending  Rate + Two per 
centum  (AWPLR+ 2% p.a.)  per  annum  and further interest 
on a sum of Rupees Four Million Six Hundred and Seventy 
Five Thousand only (Rs. 4,675,000) at the  rate Twelve per  
centum  (12%  p.a.) per annum from 24th November, 2023 
to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said  
Nos. 277, 1532, 1333, 159, 279, 1335, 157, 5340 & 162 
together with costs of advertising and  other charges incurred 
less payments (if any) since received.

SCHEDULE

1. All that Condominium Unit No. A /G/ 1 depicted in Plan 
No.2492 dated 24th June, 1986 made by I. A. C. Senaratna, 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Kahatuduwewatta 
together with the buildings trees plantations soil and 
everything standing thereon bearing Assessment No. 88, 
Kirula Road, situated at Narahenpita in ward No. 41, Kirula 
with in the Grama Niladhari Division of Kirula within the 
Divisional Secretariat of Thimbirigasyaya and within the 
Municipal Limits of Colombo in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale 
in the District of Colombo Western Province and which said 
Condominium Unit No. A/G/1 is bounded as follows :-

The Unit A /G /1 is bounded  as follows :-

North by : O of W Sep A / G/ 1 from AU 1.
East by : O of W Sep A / G/1 from CE3.
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South by O of W Sep A / G/1 from CE3.
West by C of W Sep A / G/1 from AU2 and O of W Sep 

A / G/ 1 from AUl
Zenith by C of F  of A / 1/1
Nadir by Floor of A / G/ 1

Containing a floor area  1304  Square feet share value in 
whole  50.

And  registered  in Volume/ Folio  CON  E50/ 114 at the  
Land  Registry  Colombo .

1. All that Condominium Unit No. A/ 1 /1 depicted 
in Plan No. 2492 dated 24th June 1986 made by I. A. 
C. Senaratna Licensed Surveyor of the land  called   
Kahatuduwewatta”  together  with  the  buildings trees 
plantations soil and everything standing thereon bearing 
Assessment Nos. 86 and 92 (part) presently bearing 
Assessment No. 88 1/1 Kirula Road, situated at Narahenpita 
in ward No. 41 Kirula  with  in the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Kirila within the Divisional Secretariat of 
Thimbirigasyaya and within the Municipal Limits of 
Colombo in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of  
Colombo  Western Province and which said Condominium 
Unit No. A 1/ 1 is bounded as follows :-

The  Unit A / 1 / 1  is bounded  as follows :-

North by O of W Sep A / 1/1 from AU l.
East by O of W Sep A / 1/1 from AU5.
South by O of W Sep A /1 / 1 from CE3.
West by C of W Sep A /1 /1 from AU2 and O of W Sep 

A /1 / 1 from AU4
Zenith by Ceiling of A / 1 / 1 
Nadir by C of F of A / 1 / 1

Containing a floor area  1358  Square feet share value in 
whole  50.

And registered in Volume / Folio CON E50/116 at the 
Land Registry Colombo.

1. Accessory Units- (Description) - (Appurtenant To 
Unit)

AUl  - (Garden) - (A/ G/ 1) is bounded  as follows  :-

North by premises No.92 (Kirula Road)
East by CE3
South by O of W of A / G/1 and AU2 Sep AUl from  

A / G/1 and AU2.
West by CE l
Zenith by unlimited and Floor of  AU4
Nadir by unlimited and Floor of  AU4

Containing a floor area 558  Square feet.

AU2 - (Stair  Well) - (A/1/1) is bounded  as follows :-

North by O of W of AU2 Sep AU2 from AU l and AU4.
East by C of W of AU2 sep AU2 from A / G/ 1 and  

A /1 /1 and O of AU2 Sep AU2 from CE3
South by O of W of AU2  Sep AU2 from CE3 and 

premises No.  18/5 Pathiba  Road
West  by O of W of AU2  Sep AU2 from  CE2 and AU3
Zenith  by Ceiling of AU2
Nadir by Floor of AU 2

Floor Area 145 Square feet Dimensions L 17’.0” x 8’ .0” 
x 18’.6”. 

AU3 - (Balcony) - (A/1 / 1) is bounded as follows :-

North by O of W of AU3 Sep AU3 from CE l
East by O of W of AU2 Sep AU3 from AU2 and  AU4.
South by O of W of AU3 Sep AU3 from premises No. 

18/5. (Pathiba  Road)
West by O of W of AU3 Sep AU3 from premises No.86 

(Kirula Road) 
Zenith by unlimited.
Nadir by C of F of AU3  Sep AU3 from  CE2

Floor Area 310 Square feet Dimensions 20’.0” x 19’.0”

AU4 - (Balcony) - (A/1/1) is bounded as follows :-

North by O of W of AU4 Sep AU4 from AU 1
East by O of W of A / 1/ 1 Sep AU4 from A / 1/1
South by O of W of AU2 Sep AU4 from AU2
West by AU3 and Railing Sep AU4 from CE l and AU l 
Zenith by Ceiling of AU4 
Nadir by Floor of AU4.

Floor Area 96 Square feet Dimensions 31’.0” x 3’.0” x 
9’.0”

AU5 - (Balcony) - (A/1/1) is bounded as follows :-

North by O of W of AU5  Sep AU5  from  CE 3  
East by Railing Sep AU5  from CE3 
South by O of W of AU5  Sep AU5  from  CE3
West by O of W of A / 1 / 1 Sep AU5 from A / 1 / 1
Zenith by Ceiling of AU5
Nadir by Floor of AU5

Floor Area 129 Square feet Dimensions 43’ .0” x 3’ .0” 
x 9’ .0”
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COMMEN  ELEMENT - (DESCRIPTION) 

CEl  - (Garden) is bounded  as follows  :-

North by Road and premises No. 92 (Kirula  Road)
East by AU l
South by CE2
West by premises No.86 Kirula Road 
Zenith by unlimited 
Nadir by unlimited

Floor Area 682 Square feet .

CE2 - (Garden) is bounded  as follows  :-

North by CE l
East by O of W of AU2  Sep CE2 from  AU2  and  CE3 
South by O of  W  of  CE2  Sep  CE2 from premises   

No. 18/5,  Pathiba Road
West by O of W of CE2 Sep CE2 from premises No.86 

Kirla Road
Zenith by C of C of CE2 Sep CE2 from AU3 and AU2
Nadir by Floor of  CE2

Floor Area 400  Square feet Dimension 20’ .0” x 20’ .0” 
x 9’.6”

CE3 - (Garden) is bounded  as follows  :-

North by premises No. 92 Kirula Road
East by premises No. 94 Kirula Road
South by premises  No. 18/5  Pathiba Road
West by O of W of CE2 . AU2 and A / G/ 1 Sep CE3 from 

CE2 . AU2 and A/ G/1 and AU l.
Zenith  by unlimited and Floor AU5
Nadir by unlimited

Floor Area 713 Square feet

SHARE IN COMMON  ELEMENTS APPURTENANT 
TO EACH  UNIT:

	 Unit	 Floor Area	 Share
A / G/1  - Assessment No. 88	 1304 Sq: ft	 50%

A/1/1 - Assessment No. 88 / 1/1	 1358 Sq: ft	 50%

SCHEDULE OF COMMON ELEMENT:

Common Element serving Unit A/ GI 1 and A / 1/ 1: 

CE l - Garden 682 Sq: ft
CE2 - Garden 400 Sq: ft
CE3 - Garden 713 Sq: ft

Common Elements not depicted in  Plan:

	1.	 Land on which building stands 
	2.	 Foundation and all supporting structures of building. 
	3.	 Sewers, mantholes and drains.
	4.	 Water Pipe lines. Water pumps and Water tanks.
	5.	 Electric power cables.
	6.	 All other installations for common use.

Together with the right of way in common both by foot 
or by vehicular traffic and the right to lay over wires, electric 
mains, water pipes, telephone wires and over head wires 
drainage water pipes, sewer lines and all other necessary 
contrivances or conveniences of whatsoever kind or nature or 
to park the vehicles in over and along the Road Reservation 
marked Lot 2 in the said Plan No. 268 dated 28th July, 1981 
made by Siri De Weerasuriya Licensed Surveyor.

All that Reservation for a Road marked Lot 2 in the 
said Plan No. 268 dated 28th July, 1981 made by Siri 
De Weerasuriya, Licensed Surveyor of  the  land called   
Kahatuduwewatta situated at Narahenpita aforesaid and 
which  said  Lot  2 is bounded  on  the  North  by  Kirula  
Road, on  the  East by  Lot  3, on  the South by Lot 4 and  on 
the West by Lot 1 and  containing in  extent  One  Decimal  
Six Naught (0A., 0R., 1.60P.) according to the said Plan 
No.268  and registered in Volume /Folio A 682/234 at the 
Land Registry  Colombo.

(Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 277, 1532 & 1333).

3. All that allotment land depicted as Lot B2A in 
Plan No. 3246/9000 dated 1st March, 2005 made by  
S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Madatiyasahawatta bearing Assessment No. 368, Pannipitiya 
Road now known as Denzil Kobbekaduwa Road situated at 
Battaramulla with in the Kaduwela Proseshiya Sabha within 
the Grama Niladari Division of No. 492A, Battatamulla 
South and Divisional Secretary Division of Kaduwela in 
Palle Pattu Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo 
Western Province and which said Lot B2A is bounded on the 
North by Lot B1 in Plan No. 303 by P. Pathirana, Licensed 
Surveyor, on the East by Road (Lot B3 Plan No. 303 by  
P. W. Pathirana, Licensed Surveyor), on the South by New 
Road and on the West by the land of E. Chularatne (House 
No. 1108) and the land of Engelthina Perera (St. Vincent) 
and containing in extent Twenty Five Perches (0A., 0R., 
25P.) toget her with the trees, plantations and everything 
else standing thereon.

Which  said Lot B2A is a resurvey of land described   
below:
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All that allotment land depicted as Lot B2 in Plan No.303 
dated 30th December 1983 made by P. W. Pathirana Licensed 
Surveyor of the land called Madatiyagahawatta bearing 
Assessment No.  368, Pannipitiya Road now known as 
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Road situated at Battaramulla with in 
the Kaduwela Pradeshiya Sabha within the Grame Niladari 
Division of No. 4924-, Battatamula South and Divisional 
Secretary Division of Kaduwela in Palle Pattu Hewagam 
Korale in the District of Colombo Westem Province and 
which said Lot B2 is bounded on the North by Lot Bl of 
the same Land, on the East by Lot B3 of the same Land 
on the South by the Road which is called Pannipitiya Road 
and on the West by the land of E. Chularatne and the land 
of Engelthina Perera and containing in extent Twenty Five 
Perches (0A., 0R., 25P.) together with the trees plantations 
and everything else standing thereon and Registered at the 
Land Registry Homagama in Volume/folio B 297 /112.

Together with the right of way in common both by 
foot or by vehicular traffic and the right to lay over wires, 
electric mains, water pipes, telephone wires and over 
head wires drainage water pipes, sewer lines and all other 
necessary contrivances or conveniences of whatsoever 
kind or nature or to park the vehicles in over and along The 
Rood Reservation marked Lot B3 in Plan No. 303 aforesaid 
morefully described hereunder;-

All that Reservation for a Road marked Lot B3 depicted 
in Plan No. 303 dated 30th December, 1983 made by 
P. W. Pathirana Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Madatiyagahawatta situated at Battaramulla  aforesaid and 
which is bounded on the North by Lot B1  of the same Land 
on the East by Land of  L. L. Dhanawathi Perera and others,  
on the South by Pannipitiya Road and on the West by Lot 
B2 of the same land and containing in extent Two Decimal 
Six Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 2.60P.)  and registered in 
the Homagama  Land Registry under Volume  and Folio B   
704-/62.

(Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond Nos.159,  279 & 1335)

4-. All that divided and defined allotment ofland marked 
Lot Al depicted in Plan No. 6592 /9000 dated 2nd August, 
2012 made by S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of 
the land called “Victor Rudrigo Land” together with the 
soil, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Off 9th Lane at Atulkotte within Grama Niladhari 
Division 521A, Ethul Kotte, West Divisional  Secretariat 
Division Sri Jayawardenapura - Kotte within the Municipal 
Council limits of Sri Jayawardenapura - Kotte in Palle 
Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo Western 
Province and which said Lot Al is bounded on the North 
by premises bearing Assessment No. l5A / 12 9th Lane on 

the East by Lot B in Plan No. 4472 by A. E. Wijesuriya, 
Licensed Surveyor & Road 15ft wide (Lot 6 in Plan  
No. 4472), on the South by Masonry Drain, on the West by 
Reservation for Ditch and containing in extent Ten Perches 
(0A., 0R., 10P.)  or  (0.0253 Ha)  and according  to  the  said  
Plan No.6592/9000.

Which said Lot Al is a resurvey of land described  below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
A depicted in Plan No. 4472 dated 9th August, 1995 made by 
A E Wijesuriya Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Victor 
Rudrigo Land” together with the soil, trees, plantations and 
everything  else  standing  thereon  bearing  Assessment 
No.15 /02,9th Lane situated in Etul Kotte in Etul Kotte West 
within Grama Niladhari Division of 521A, Ethul Kotte, West 
Divisional Secretariat and the Municipal Council limits of 
Sri Jayawardenapura - Kotte in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale 
in the District of Colombo Westem Province and which 
said Lot A is bounded, on the North by Lot 1 depicted in 
Plan No.590A dated 16th November 1974 made by A. E. 
Wijesuriya, Licensed Surveyor, on the East by Lot B in Plan 
No. 4472 and Lot G being reservation for Road 15 feet wide 
in Plan No. 4472, on the South by the Drain on the WEST 
by land belonging to Sri Kantha Mudalali and containing in 
extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) and according to the said 
Plan No. 4472 and registered under volume /folio A 202/24  
at the Land Registry Delkanda -  Nugegoda.

(Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond No. 157 &   5340)

5. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot B 1 depicted in Plan No. 6593 /9000 dated 2nd August, 
2012 made by S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of 
the land called “Victor Rudrigo Land” together with the 
soil, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Off 9th Lane at Atulkotte  within  Grama Niladhari  
Division 52 lA, Ethul Kotte,  West Divisional  Secretary 
Sri Jayawardenapura within the Municipal Council limits 
of Sri Jayawardena pura  Kotte in Palle Pattu of  Salpiti 
Korale in the District of Colombo Western  Province and 
which said Lot Bl  is bounded  on the North by  premises  
bearing  Assessment  No.  l5A/ 12 9th  Lane,  on  the  East  
by  Lot  C in  Plan  No. 4472  by  A.  E. Wijesuriya, Licensed  
Surveyor on the South by Road  15ft wide  (Lot 6 in Plan 
No. 4472),  on the West by Lot A  in Plan No. 4472  by  
A.  E.  Wijesuriya,  Licensed  Surveyor  and containing in 
extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.)  or (0.0253 Ha) and 
according to the said Plan No. 6593 /9000.

Which said Lot B1 is a resurvey of land described below:
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All that divided  and defined allotment  of land marked  
Lot B depicted  in Plan No.4472  dated 9th August 1995 
made  by  A  E  Wijesuriya  Licensed  Surveyor  of  the  land  
called  “victor  rudrigo  land” together   with  the  soil,  
trees,   plantations   and  everything  else  standing  thereon  
bearing  Assessment No.15 /02,  9th Lane situated  in Etul 
Kotte  in Etul Kotte  West within  Grama Niladhari  Division  
of 52 l A, Ethul Kotte,  West Divisional Secretariat and the 
Municipal  Council limits of Sri Jayawardenapura  - Kotte in  
Palle  Pattu  of  Salpiti  Korale  in  the  District  of  Colombo  
Western  Province  and  which  said  Lot  B is bounded 
on the North by Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 590A dated 
16th November, 1974 made by A. E. Wijesuriya Licensed 
Surveyor on the East by Lot C in Plan No. 4472, on the 
South by Lot 5 being reservation for Road 15ft wide and 
on the West by Lot A and containing in extent Ten Perches 
(0A., 0R., 10P.) and according to the said Plan No. 4472 and 
registered under volume/folio A 202/25 at the Land Registry 
Delkanda - Nugegoda.

(Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond No. 162)

By order of the Board, 

	 Company Secretary.

02-252

NATIONS  TRUST  BANK  PLC 

Notice of Resolution Passed by The Directors of 
Nations Trust Bank Plc Under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 4 of 1990

Asia Capital PLC.

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed 
by  the Board of Directors of Nations Trust Bank PLC on 
18.12.2023.

Whereas by Mortgage Bond bearing No. 1389 dated 22nd 
August, 2019 attested by Lakshika Ruvini Neththasinghe 
Rathnayaka Notary Public of Colombo, Asia Capital PLC 
as the obligor and River House (Private) Limited as the 
mortgagor mortgaged and hypothecated the rights, property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto in 
favour of Nations Trust Bank PLC of No. 242, Union Place, 
Colombo 02 as a security for the due repayment of the 
financial facilities obtained by the said  Asia Capital PLC;

And Whereas the said Asia Capital PLC has made default 
in the payment due on the facilities secured by the said Bond.

It is hereby resolved under the powers vested  by Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special  Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
that the rights property and premises morefully described  
in the Schedule hereto be sold by  Public  Auction  by   
Mr. L.  B. Senanayake  of Thrivanka  &  Senanayake  
Auctioneers  of  No. 200, 2nd Floor,  Hulftsdorp  Street,  
Colombo  12  for  the  recovery  of  a  sum  of  Rupees  
Fifty  Seven  Million  Six Hundred and Five Thousand 
Four Hundred and Seventy and Cents Forty Four  
(Rs. 57,605,470.44) with further  interest  from  15.09.2023  
as  agreed  on  a  sum  of  Rupees  Fifty  Six  Million  Nine  
Hundred  and Eighty Eight Thousand  Six and Cents Twenty  
Eight (Rs. 56,988,006.28)  being the  capital outstanding 
on the   Banking  Facilities  as  at   14.09.2023   together   
with  attendant cost,  statutory   levies,  costs  of advertising 
and any other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 150/2017 dated 24.10.2017 
made by R. Percy Wijayasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of 
the land called Ittakkara Bodaralla and Ranacombu  Aviya  
Wagakalawatia  Kiriyegewatta, Kodala Kiriyege  Wela    and 
Delgahakoratuwe Watta situated at Walagedara within the 
Grama Niladhari Division of 89A - Walagedara within the 
Divisional Secretariat Division of Balapitiya within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Balapitiya in Wellaboda Pattu 
in the District of Galle Southern Province together  with  the  
buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing 
thereon and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North by 
Road and property of heirs of late Dr. Colvin R. De Silva 
and Others, on the East by Madu Ganga, on the South by 
Lot 2 (Marsh) and on the West by Kurakkanwatta and 
Delgahakoratuwa P. Wimalawathie, Somasiri De Silva and 
others and containing in extent Three Acres Three Roods 
And One Decimal Seven Six Perches (3A., 3R., 0l.76P.) or 
1.5220 Hectares according to the said Plan No. 150/2017.

Which said allotment of Lot 1depicted in the said Plan 
No. 150/2017 described above is a resurvey and sub-division 
of the land described as follows;

All that divided and defined allotment of land 
depicted in Plan No. 7675 dated 01st August, 2003 
made by T. B. A. De Silva, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called Ittakkara Bodaralla and Ranacombu Aviya 
Wagakalawatta Kiriyegewatta, Kodala  Kiriyege  Wela  And  
Delgahakoratuwe  Watta situated at Walagedara within the 
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Grama Niladhari Division of 89A - Walagedara within the 
Divisional Secretariat Division of Balapitiya within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Balapitiya in Wellaboda Pattu 
in the District of Galle Southern Province  together  with the  
buildings, trees,  plantations  and everything else standing 
thereon and which said allotment of the land is bounded on 
the North by Road and property of heirs of late Dr. Colvin 
R. De Silva and Others, on the East by Madu Ganga on the 
South by Galmusugodellawatta alias Jonju Kankanama 
Padinchi Watta and Welabadawatta, claimed  by Susilanona 
and Others and on the West by Kurakkanwatta and 
Delgahakoratuwa claimed by P. Wimalawathie, Somasiri 
De Silva and others and containing in extent Six Acres One 
Rood and Thirty Six Perches (6A., 1R., 36P.) or 2.62107 
Hectares according to the said Plan No. 7675.

Which said allotment of land depicted in the said Plan 
No.7675 described above, is a resurvey of the land described 
as follows;

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
in Plan No. 2552 dated 27th April, 1997 made by C. De 
S. Gunetilleke, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Ittakkara Bodaralla And Ranakombu Aviye Wagakala Watta 
Kiriyegewatta Kodala Kiriyagewala And Delgahakoratuwe 
Watta situated at Walagedara within the Grama Niladhari 
Division of 89A - Walagedara within the Divisional 
Secretariat Division of Balapitiya within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Balapitiya in Wellaboda Pattu in the District 
of Galle Southern Province together with the buildings, 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon and 
which said allotment of land is bounded on the North by 
Road and property of heirs of late Dr. Colvin R. De Silva 
and others, on the East by Madu Ganga, on the South by 
lands of A. Gilman Silva and others and on the West by 
lands of Somasiri De Silva and others and containing in 
extent Six Acres, One Rood And Thirty Six Decimal Three 
Naught Perches (6A., 1R., 36.30P.) according to the said 
Plan No.2552.

Which said allotment of land depicted in the said Plan  
No. 2552 described above, is a resurvey of the land described 
as follows;

All  that  divided  and  defined  allotment  of  land  
marked  Lot  A  depicted  in  Plan No. 211  dated  15th 
September,  1993 made by V. Godahena,  Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called “Ittakkara  Bodaralla and  Ranakombu  
Aviye  Wagakala  Watta  Kiriyegewela  Kodala  Kiriyage  
Wela  and  Lot  1 of Delgaha Koratuwe Watta whereon 
Enadi Aviye resided situated at Walagedara within the 
Grama Niladhari Division of 89A - Walagedara within the 
Divisional Secretariat Division of Balapitiya within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Balapitiya in Wellaboda Pattu 

in the District of Galle Southern Province together with the 
buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing 
thereon, and which said allotment of land is bounded on the 
North by Road and land claimed by natives, on the East by 
land claimed by natives, on the South by Madu Ganga and 
on the West by land claimed by natives and containing in 
extent Six Acres One Rood and Fifteen Perches (6A., 1R., 
15P.) according to the said Plan No.211and registered under 
D 145/87  at the Balapitiya Land  Registry.

Together with right of road way over and along Lot 3 
in Plan No. 150/2017 dated 24.10.2017 made by R. Percy 
Wijayasinghe, L/S.

By order of the Board, 

	 Peshala Attygalle, 
	 Company Secretary.

242, Union Place,
Colombo.

02-118

NATIONS  TRUST  BANK  PLC 

Notice of Resolution Passed by The Directors of 
Nations Trust Bank Plc Under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act No.4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed 
by the Board of Directors of Nations Trust Bank PLC on 
26.07.2023.

Alagiah Nishanthan carrying on a business as Sole 
Proprietorship under the name style and firm of “Earth Tech 
Engineering”

Whereas by Mortgage Bond bearing No. 11773 dated 
08th December 2017 attested by Vethavanam Kanagaratnam 
Notary Public of Batticaloa, Alagiah Nishanthan as obligor/
mortgagor mortgaged and hypothecated the rights, property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto in 
favour of Nations Trust Bank PLC of No. 242, Union Place, 
Colombo 02 as securities for the due repayment of the 
financial facilities obtained by the said Alagiah Nishanthan;
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And whereas the said Alagiah Nishanthan has made 
default in the payment due on  the facilities secured by the 
said Bond;

It is hereby resolved under the powers vested by 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special  Provisions) Act,  
No. 4 of 1990 that the rights property and premises 
morefully described  in the Schedule  hereto be sold by  
Public  Auction  by  Thrivanka &  Senanayake  Auctioneers  
of  No. 200, 2nd  Floor,  Hulftsdorp  Street, Colombo  12 for  
the  recovery  of  a  sum  of  Rupees Twenty  Four  Million 
Four  Hundred and  Fifty  Eight Thousand Three  Hundred 
and Fifty  Six  and Cents  Fifty (Rs. 24,458,356.50)  with 
further  interest from 12.06.2023  as agreed on a  sum of  
Rupees Twenty  One  Million Six  Hundred and Fifty Seven 
Thousand Three  Hundred and  Ninety Six  and  Cents  Ten  
(Rs. 21,657,396.10)  being the  capital outstanding  on the 
Banking facilities,  as at  11.06.2023  together  with  attendant  
cost,  statutary  levies,  costs of  advertising and any other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

An  allotment  of  land  called  “Thamarikkerney  Vithal  
Poomi”  situated  in the  village  of  Eravur,  in  G  N  Division 
Eravur, in Eravur Pattu, in the District of Batticaloa, Eastern 
Province, bounded on the North by Thamaraikkulam,  on  
the  East  by  Land  of  Markkandu,  on  the  South  by  
other  share  of  Nallathamby Vithanai  and on the West  by 
Land of  Karunaiammah  presently  Land of  N. Veluppillai  
and  Magenthiran and 5m wide frontage belonging to 
Kumaraveliyar  Road and containing in Extent One Acre, 
Three Roods and Thirty  decimal  Seven Perches (01A., 03R., 
30.7P.) This together  with  all rights therein  contained and 
registered in A 293/62, C 0010/31,C 0010/122, C 0010/123 
and C 0010/125.

The land described in Schedule above is depicted in 
Plan No. SA/510B/2017/EP dated 25.07.2017 drawn by  
S. Anthonypillai,Licensed Surveyor  is as follows:

An allotment of land called “Thamarikkerney Vithal 
Poomi”, depicted in Plan No. SA/510B/2017/EP dated 
25.07.2017 drawn by S. Anthonypillai, Licensed Surveyor, 
situated at Kumaraveliar Road, in the village of Eravur, 
in the G N Division Chenkalady No. 195 - C within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Eravur Pattu, in the Divisional 
Secretariat of Eravur Pattu, in the District of Batticaloa, 
Eastern Province, bounded on the North by Thamarai Kulam 
on the East by Garden claimed by Markandu on the South 
by Garden of Nalathamby G. S  and on the West by Garden 
of N. Velupillai and containing in extent 0.7859 Hectare 

or One Acre, Three Roods and Thirty decimal Seven Zero 
Perches (01A., 03R., 30.70P.). This together  with  all  rights 
therein contained.

By order of the Board, 

	 Theja Silva,
	 Company Secretary.

242, Union Place,
Colombo.

02-119

The  bank  of ceylon

Notice Under Section 21 of The Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended  by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 Act, No.  10 of 1974 and  
Act, No. 54 of  2000

At a meeting held on 08.01.2024 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously:

1. That a sum of Rs. 7,800,079.92 (Rupees Seven 
Million Eight Hundred Thousand and Seventy Nine and 
cents Ninety Two) on account of the principle and interest 
up to 11.12.2023 and together with further interest on   
Rs.  6,010,273.02  (Rupees  Six Million and Ten Thousand 
Two Hundred and Seventy Three and  cents  Two)  at the rate 
of Thirteen decimal Five (13.50%) per centum per annum  
from  12.12.2023 till date of payment on BOC Housing Loan,  
is  due  from  Mr. Dissanayaka Mudiyanselage Munkotuwe 
Gedara Priyankara Weerakumara Dissanayaka of No. 105/3, 
Wattalpola Road, Walana, Panadura on Mortgage Bond 
No. 5550 dated 22.06.2011 attested by W. A. S. Chandanie 
Mathew, N.P.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap 397) and its amendments Mr. Mudugamuwe 
Hewawasam Thusith Karunarathne, M/s  T & H Auctions, 
the Auctioneer of  No. 50/3,  Vihara  Mawatha,  Kolonnawa, 
be  authorized and empowered to sell by public auction the 
property mortgaged to  the  Bank  of Ceylon and described in 
the Schedules hereunder, for the recovery of the said a sum 
of Rs. 7,800,079.92 (Rupees Seven Million Eight Hundred 
Thousand and Seventy Nine and cents Ninety Two) on 
BOC Housing Loan on the said Mortgage Bond No.5550 
dated 22.06.2011 together with interest as aforesaid from 
12.12.2023 to date of sale, and costs and monies recoverable 
under Section 26 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and 
the Manager of Parliament Complex Branch of the Bank 
of Ceylon to publish notice of this resolution in terms of 
Section 21 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.
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THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked  
Lot  24  depicted  in Plan  No.  2145 dated 24th December, 
2003 made by H. K. Mahinda, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Delgahawatta” bearing Assessment No. 587/5J 
Hokandara Road situated at Thalangama North within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kaduwela (Battaramulla  
Sub Office) in the Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the 
District of Colombo Western  Province and which said 
Lot 24 is bounded on the North by Lots 23 and B in Plan  
No. 2124, on the East by Lot B in Plan No. 2124 and Lot 25, 
on the South by Lots 25 and 26 and on the West by Lots 26 
and 23 and containing in extent Ten Decimal Nine Perches 
(0A., 0R., 10.9P.) together with the trees, plantations 
buildings and everything else standing thereon according to 
the said Plan No. 2145 and registered in B 15/85 at the Land 
Registry, Kaduwela.

Together with the right of way over Lot B (reservation  
for Drain) in Plan No. 2124 and  Lot 26 (reservation for 
Road and Drain 3.6) in Plan No. 2145 aforesaid.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of  
Ceylon.

	 Mrs. I.  T.  L. Geeganage, 
	 Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Parliamentary Complex Branch.

02-405

SEYLAN BANK PLC—udappu branch
(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 

Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)  Act, No. 4 

of  1990

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
that at a meeting held on 30th January, 2024 by the Board 
of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially 
and unanimously.

Account No.: 1190-31409852-001.

Whereas Kathirgamanathan Jeyakanthan  and Wairaiyah 
Kathirgamanathan  both of Udappu as ‘Obligors/Mortgagor’  
have  made default  in payment  due on Mmtgage  Bond  
No.1709 dated 22nd July, 2016 attested by Sunethra  
N.  Fernando, Notary  Public in favour of Seylan Bank 
PLC (Company Registration No.PQ 9 under the Companies 
Act, No. 07 of 2007) and there is now due and owing to the 
Seylan Bank PLC account of principal and interest up to 
05th December, 2023 a sum of Rupees Seven Million Three 
Hundred  and Thirty Eight Thousand  Seven Hundred  and 
Forty Nine and Cents Twenty (Rs. 7,338,749.20) together 
with interest on Rupees Seven Million Three Hundred  and  
Four  Thousand  Six Hundred  and  Twenty  Seven  and Cents 
Fifty Eight (Rs. 7,304,627.58) at the rate of  Seventeen  Point  
Five Percent (17.5%)  per  annum  from 06th December,  
2023 in respect  of the Revolving  Short Term  Loan  facility 
on the  said Bond  and the Board  of Directors of  Seylan 
Bank PLC under   the   powers vested by the Recovery of  
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 as 
amended, do hereby resolve that Mrs. Chandima Gamage, 
Licensed Auctioneer be authorized to sell the property and 
premises morefully  described in the Schedule hereto and 
mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by the said Mortgage Bond  
No,1709 by Public  Auction  for recovery  of the  said  sum  
of Rupees  Seven Million  Three  Hundred  and Thirty Eight 
Thousand Seven Hundred and Forty Nine  and Cents Twenty 
(Rs. 7,338,749.20) together with interest as aforesaid from 
06th December, 2023 up to the date of recovery of full sum, 
with costs of advertising, any other charges under Section 
13 of the said Act, less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that  divided  and defined  allotment of land marked  
Lot  01 depicted  in Plan  No. 4038  dated 17.01.2016 made 
by M. K. M. S. Priyankara, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called ”Bambuwattan Estate” situated at Bambiwattan 
village in the Grama Niladhari Division of 597A, 
Poonapitiya within the Divisional Secretariat Division of 
Mundel and within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kalpitiya 
in Mel Akkaraipattu South of Kalpitiya Korale within the 
Registration Division and in the District of Puttalam, North 
Western Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the 
North by Land of K. Mahendran, on the East by Lagoon 
on the South by Land of K. Jeyakanthan (Lot 2 in Plan  
No. 4894 dated 28.05.2005 made by M. M. P. D. Perera, 
Licensed Surveyor) and on the West by Road (P.S.) and 
containing in extent Fourteen Acres Two Roods and 
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Seventeen Perches  (14A., 2R., 17P.) together with  buildings,  
trees,  plantations  and  everything  else standing thereon.

	 Mrs. V. A. Paranagama,
	 Attorney-at-Law,
	 Assistant General Manager - Legal. 

02-410/1

SEYLAN  BANK  PLC—dam street 
branch

(Registered  under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 
Companies Act, No.  7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors  
of Seylan Bank  PLC under  Section 4 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)  
Act, No. 4 of  1990

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery  
of Loans  by  Banks  (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
that at a meeting held on 30th January, 2024 by the Board  
of Directors  of Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially 
and unanimously. 

Account No.: 0690-34520802-101.

Whereas Jayaweera Gamaethiralalage Indika Udayanga 
Jayaweera  of  Ratnapura Mount Lavinia as ‘Obligor/
Mortgagor has made default in payment due on Mortgage 
Bond No. 776 dated 17th March, 2017 attested by K. K. 
G. G. Samintha, Notary Public in favour of Seylan Bank 
PLC (Company Registration No.PQ 9 under the Companies 
Act, No. 07 of 2007) and there is now due and owing to the 
SeyIan Bank PLC on account of principal and interest up 
to 22nd November, 2023 a sum of Rupees Seven Million 
Nine Thousand Five Hundred and Seventy Four and Cents 
Fifty Nine (Rs. 7,009,574.59) together with interest on 
Rupees Six Million Seventy Six Thousand Nine Hundred 
and Sixty and Cents Eight (Rs. 6,076,960.08) at the rate of 
Fourteen Percent (14%) per annum from 23rd November, 
2023 in respect of the Term Loan I facility on the said Bond 
and the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under the 
powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 as amended, do hereby 
resolve that Mrs. Chandima Gamage, Licensed Auctioneer 
be authorized to sell the property morefully described in the 
Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by the 
said Mortgage Bond No. 776 by Public Auction for recovery 

of the said sum of Rupees Seven Million Nine Thousand 
Five Hundred and Seventy Four and Cents Fifty Nine  
(Rs. 7,009,574.59) together with interest as aforesaid from 
23rd November, 2023 up to the date of recovery of full sum, 
with costs of advertising, any other charges under Section 
13 of the said Act, less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 5 depicted in Plan No. 3167 dated 15.12.2015 made by  
P. M. Sunil, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Othudena 
Dawatagahadeniya alias Dawatagahadeniya together with 
the trees, plantations and everything standing thereon 
situated at Pepiliyana within the Urban Council Limits 
of Boralesgamuwa in the Grama Niladhari Division of  
No. 535, Pepiliyana West, within the Divisional Secretary’s 
Division of Kesbewa in the Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale 
in the  District of Colombo, Wester Province and which 
said Lot 5 is bounded  on the North  by  Lots 3,  R2 
and 04 in Plan No. 3167, on the East by Lot C in Plan  
No. 121, on the South by Assessment No. 47/1, Vihara 
Mawatha and on the West by Lot B in Plan No. 1254 and 
containing in extent Eight decimal Two Naught Perches 
(0A., 0R., 8.20P.) or 0.0208 Hectare, according to the said 
Plan No. 3167.

Together with the right of way over and  along;

3. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 5 (Reservation for Road) depicted in Plan No. 315 dated 
26.12.1969 made  by  Lionel  S.  Pitigala,  Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called Othudena  Dawatagahadeniya  alias  
Dawatagahadeniya together with the trees, plantations and 
everything standing thereon situated along Vihara Mawatha 
in Pepiliyana aforesaid and which said Lot 5 is bounded on 
the North by Lot 4 on the East by Lot 8 on the South by Lots 
7 and 6 and on the West by Vihara Mawatha and containing 
in extent Five  Decimal  Seven  Naught  Perches  (0A., 0R., 
5.70P.) according to the said Plan No. 315. Together with the 
right of way over Lot D in Plan No. 121.

4. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot R2 depicted in Plan No. 3167 dated 15.12.2015 made by 
P. M. Sunil, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Othudena 
Dawatagahadeniya alias Dawatagahadeniya together with 
the trees, plantations and everything standing thereon 
situated at Pepiliyana aforesaid and which said Lot R2 is 
bounded on the North by Lot R2 in Plan No. 3167 on the 
East by Lot 4 in Plan No. 3167 on the  South by Lot  5 in 
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Plan No.3167  and on the West by Lot 3 in Plan No. 3167  
and containing in extent One Decimal Five Five Perches  
(0A., 0R., 1.55P.) or 0.0039 Hectare, according to the said 
Plan No. 3167.

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

	 (Mrs.) V. A. Paranagama,
	 Attorney-at-Law,
	 Assistant General  Manager - Legal.

02-410/2

THE BANK OF CEYLON 

Notice Under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law No. 10 of 1974

At a meeting held· on 08th January, 2024, the Board 
of Directors of this Bank resolved specially and 
unanimously:	

l .  That  a  sum  of Rs. 11,165,127.86  (Rupees  Eleven  
Million   One  Hundred   Sixty  Five  Thousand  One 
Hundred Twenty Seven and Cents Eighty Six) on account of 
the principal and interest up to 15.11.2023 and together with 
further interest on Rs. 9,998,200.00 (Rupees Nine Million 
Nine Hundred Ninety Eight Thousand Two Hundred) at the 
rate of Ten (10%) per centum per annum from 16.11.2023  
till date of payment on the 1st Loan, a sum of Rs. 3,104,904.26 
(Rupees Three Million One Hundred Four Thousand Nine 
Hundred  Four and Cents Twenty Six) on account of the 
principal  and  interest up  to 15.11.2023 and together with 
further interest on Rs. 2,766,000.00 (Rupees Two Million 
Seven Hundred Sixty Six Thousand) at the rate of Ten (10%) 
per centum per annum from 16.11.2023 till date of payment 
on the 2nd Loan, a sum of Rs. 5,694,099.85 (Rupees Five 
Million Six Hundred Ninety Four Thousand Ninety Nine 
and Cents Eighty Five) up to 15.11.2023 and together with 
further interest on Rs. 5,217,335.61 (Rupees Five Million 
Two Hundred Seventeen Thousand Three Hundred Thirty 
Five and Cents Sixty One) at the rate of Eight Decimal One 
One (8.11%) from 16.11.2023 till date of payment on the 
3rd Loan, a sum of Rs. 2,456,254. 33 (Rupees Two Million 
Four Hundred Fifty Six Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Four 
and Cents Thirty Three) up to 15.11.2023 and together with 
further interest on Rs. 2,197,372.72 (Rupees Two Million 
One Hundred Ninety Seven Thousand Three Hundred 
Seventy Two and Cents Seventy Two) at the rate of Eight 
Decimal One One (8.11%) per centum per annum from 
16.11.2023 till date of payment on the 4th Loan, and a sum 
of Rs. 4,637,701.25 (Rupees Four Million  Six  Hundred  

Thirty  Seven  Thousand  Seven Hundred  One  and  Cents 
Twenty  Five)  up to 15.11.2023 and together with further 
interest on Rs. 4,162,907.75 (Rupees Four Million One 
Hundred Sixty Two Thousand Nine Hundred Seven and 
Cents Seventy Five) at the rate of Eight Decimal One One 
(8.11%) per centum per annum from 16.11.2023 till date of 
payment on the 5th Loan are due from Liyana Gedara Sujith 
Priyantha of 6th Mile Post, Giritale Road, Diyabeduma 
on Mortgage Bond No. 2818 dated 03rd December 2016 
attested by A. A. Abeywardana Notary Public.

2.  That in terms of section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments Mr. Thusitha 
Karunarathna, M/s T&H Auctions, the Licensed auctioneer 
of No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorized 
and empowered to sell by public auction the property 
mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the 
schedule hereunder, for the recovery of the said sum of 
Rs. 11,165,127.86 (Rupees Eleven Million One Hundred 
Sixty Five Thousand One Hundred Twenty Seven and 
Cents Eighty Six) on the 1st Loan, sum of Rs. 3,104,904.26 
(Rupees Three Million One Hundred Four Thousand Nine 
Hundred Four and Cents Twenty Six) on the 2nd Loan, sum 
of Rs. 5,694,099.85 (Rupees Five Million Six Hundred 
Ninety Four Thousand Ninety Nine and Cents Eighty 
Five) on 3rd Loan, sum of Rs. 2,456,254.33 (Rupees Two 
Million Four Hundred Fifty Six Thousand Two Hundred 
Fifty Four and Cents Thirty Three) on the 4th Loan and the 
sum of Rs. 4,637,701.25 (Rupees Four Million Six Hundred 
Thirty Seven Thousand Seven Hundred One and Cents 
Twenty Five) on the 5th Loan on the said Bond No. 2818 
dated 03rd December 2016 attested by A. A. Abeywardana, 
Notary Public and together with interest as aforesaid from 
16.11.2023 to date of sale and costs and monies recoverable 
under section 26 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance 
and the Manageress of Diyabeduma Branch of the Bank 
of  Ceylon to publish notice of this resolution in terms of 
Section 21 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

THE SCHEDULE

All that an allotment of Land Marked Lot 1 depicted 
in  Plan No. 2015/Po/70  A dated 23.08.2015 made by 
P.B. Illangasinghe Lincesed Surveyor of the Land called 
“Palugaha Watta & Girithale Mukalana” Situated at Girithale 
village in Grama Niladari Division No. 39 Puranagama in 
Sinhala Pattuwa within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and 
the Divisional Secretary’s Division of Hingurakgoda in 
the District of Polonnaruwa, North Central Province and 
which said Lot No. 1 is bounded on the North by Lot 1 in 
plan No. 149, on the East by Lots l & 2 in Plan No. 149 
on the South by Lot 2 in Plan No. 149 & Lot 653 in F.T.P. 
9 (Road Reservation) and on the West by Lot 1 in Plan  
No. 149 & Lot 652 in F.T.P. 9 (Diyabasna Ela) and containing 
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in extent One Acre (01A., 0R., 0P.) together with the trees, 
plantations, buildings and  everything  else standing thereon  
and Registered  in  G/4/119 at the District  Land  Registry, 
Polonnaruwa.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon.

	 Mrs. G. P. D. C. Samarasinghe, 
	 Branch Manager.

Bank of Ceylon, 
Diyabeduma Branch. 
12th January, 2024.

02-399

BANK OF CEYLON 

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974

At  a  meeting  held  on  08th January, 2024,  the  Board   
of  Directors   of  this   Bank   resolved   specially  and 
unanimously:

..
1. That a sum of Rs. 14,446,450.74 (Rupees Fourteen 

Million Four Hundred ‘ Forty Six Thousand Four Hundred 
Fifty and Cents Seventy Four) on account of the principal 
and interest up to 14.12.2023 and together with further 
interest on Rs. 11,387,980.00 (Rupees Eleven Million Three 
Hundred Eighty Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty) at 
the rate of Fifteen Decimal Eight Six (15.86%) per centum 
per annum from 15.12.2023 till the date of payment  is due 
on  1st  loan  and  the  sum  of  Rs. 9,639,731.76 (Rupees 
Nine Million Six Hundred Thirty Nine Thousand Seven 
Hundred Thirty One and Cents Seventy Six) on account of 
the  principal  and  interest  up  to  14.12.2023  and  together  
with  further  interest  on  Rs. 8,248, 136.72 (Rupees Eight 
Million Two Hundred Forty Eight Thousand One Hundred 
Thirty Six and Cents Seventy Two) at the rate of Eight 
Decimal Nine Three (8.93%) per centum per annum from 
15.12.2023 till the date of payment is due on 2nd loan from 
M/S  I. S. Asia Home (Private) Limited of Watadageya  
Road,  Medirigiriya  (Directors  are:  Mr.  Wellabadage Saliya  
Janandana  Jayasinghe  and Mrs.Rathnayake Mudiyanselage  
Imesha  Jayamali  Abeywardhane  of  No.  65,  Tract  02,  
New Town, Medirigiriya) on Mortgage Bond No. 3548 
dated 29.07.2019 attested by Ariyasena Gallage  N.P.

2. That in  terms  of Section  19 of the Bank  of Ceylon  
Ordinance  (Cap. 397) and  its  amendments,  Mr. M. H. T. 
Karunarathne of T & H Auction, The Licensed auctioneer of 
No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorized and 
empowered to sell by Public auction the property mortgaged 
to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the first schedule 
hereunder subjected to the terms and conditions described 
in the Second Schedule hereunder, for the recovery of the 
said sum  of  Rs. 14,446,450.74 (Rupees Fourteen Million 
Four Hundred Forty Six Thousand Four Hundred Fifty 
and Cents Seventy Four) on 1st loan and Rs. 9,639,731.76 
(Rupees Nine Million Six Hundred Thirty Nine Thousand  
Seven Hundred Thirty One and Cents Seventy Six) on 2nd 
loan on the said Mortgage Bond No. 3548 dated 29.07.2019 
attested  by  Ariyasena Gallage N.P. and together  with  
interest  as  aforesaid  from 15.12.2023  date of sale, and 
costs and monies recoverable under Section 26 of the said 
Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and the Manager of Medirigiriya 
Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to publish notice of this 
resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance.	

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined an allotment of land marked 
Lot No. 0 l depicted in Plan No. 180/2016 dated 02.04.2016 
made by W.A. Premarathna Licensed Surveyor of the Land 
called ‘Goda Idama’ situated at Kauduluwewa Stage l 
village in No. 86 - Gajabapura Grama Niladhari Division 
in Sinhala Pattuwa within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and 
the Divisional Secretary’s Division of Medirigiriya in the 
District of Polonnaruwa, North Central Province aforesaid 
and which said Lot No. 01 is bounded on the NORTH by Lot 
No. 04 in F.C.P. Po. 76 & Part of Lot 01 in Plan No. 2011/
Po/58 A, on the East by Part of Lot 01 in Plan No. 2011/Po/58 A, 
on the South by Part of Lot 01 in Plan No. 2011/Po/58 A and 
on the West by Part of Lot 01 in Plan No. 2011/Po/58 A & 
Lot 04 in F.C.P. Po 76 and containing in extent One Rood 
And Twenty Eight  Perches  (0A., 1R., 28P.) together  with 
the trees,  plantations,  buildings  and  everything standing 
thereon and Registered  in L.D.O. F/14/122 at the District 
Land Registry, Polonnaruwa.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE

RESERVATIONS:

1. The title to all minerals (which term shall in this grant 
include precious stone) in or upon the holding and the 
right to dig for, search for, work and carry away any such 
minerals, are reserved to the state.
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2. The owners title to the holding is subject to any right of 
way or other servitude existing over the holding at the date 
of this grant.

CONDITIONS:

	 01.	 The owner shall not dispose of a divided portion of 
the holding less in extent than the unit of sub division 
specified herein namely 1/4 acres highland l 1/2 acres 
irrigated land.

	 02.	 The owner shall not dispose of an undivided share of 
the holding less than the minimum fraction specified 
herein, namely 1/8.

	 03.	 No person shall be the owner of a divided portion of 
the holding less in extent than the unit of sub- division  
specified  in condition 1.

	 04.	 No person shall be the owner of an undivided share of 
the Holding less than the Minimum fraction specified 
in condition 2.

	 05.	 If the holding or any part of it is irrigable or becomes 
irrigable hereafter  by  any  irrigation work already 
constructed in the course of construction, or to be 
constructed hereafter, the owner shall comply, in 
respect of the irrigable area, with the provisions of 
the irrigation  ordinance (chapter 453) and any rules 
framed there  under.

	 06.	 The owner shall not dig or search for, take, appropriate, 
sell or otherwise dispose of any minerals in or upon 
the land, unless he has obtained permission in writing 
from the Government Agent and a license from the 
appropriate authority.

	 07.	 No disposition of the holding or any portion  thereof 
shall  be made except with  the prior  permission in 
writing of the Divisional Secretary.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon.

	 Mr. H. M. P. S. Herath, 
	 Branch Manager. 
Bank of Ceylon, 
Medirigiriya  Branch,
31st January, 2024.

02-398

THE BANK OF CEYLON 

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  
No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974 and  

Act, No. 54 of 2000

At a meeting held on 02.10.2023 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously:

1. That a sum of Rs. 5,945,034.24 (Rupees Five Million 
Nine Hundred Forty  Five Thousand Thirty  Four and 
Cents Twenty Four Only), Rs. 10,430,626.66 (Rupees 
Ten Million Four Hundred  Thirty Thousand Six Hundred 
Twenty Six and Cents Sixty Six Only), Rs. 1,617,908.86  
(Rupees  One  Million  Six Hundred Seventeen Thousand 
Nine Hundred Eight and Cents Eighty Six Only),  
Rs. 94,071.53 (Rupees Ninety Four Thousand Seventy One 
and Cents Fifty Three  Only),  Rs.  2,053,863.46  (Rupees 
Two Million Fifty Three Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty 
Three and Cents Forty Six Only), Rs. 3,304,505.78 (Rupees 
Three Million Three Hundred Four Thousand Five Hundred 
Five  and  Cents  Seventy Eight Only), Rs. 2,399,283.44 
(Rupees Two Million Three Hundred Ninety Nine Thousand  
Two Hundred Eighty Three and Cents Forty Four Only),  
Rs. 1,877,063.72 (Rupees One  Million  Eight  Hundred 
Seventy Seven Thousand Sixty Three and Cents 
Seventy Two Only), Rs. 506,312.01 (Five Hundred Six 
Thousand Three Hundred Twelve and Cents One Only),  
Rs. 813,366.66  (Rupees  Eight  Hundred Thirteen 
Thousand Three Hundred Sixty Six and Cents Sixty Six 
Only) are due from Mr. Mututantri Patabendige Sachith 
Dinethra Cooray director of Brush Lanka Industries (Pvt) 
Ltd of No. 234/A, Diggala Road,  Kesel Watta, Panadura  
Jointly  and  Severally on account of principal and interest 
outstanding up to 29.08.2023 on Permanent Overdraft  
Facility of Rs.5,000,000.00  (Rupees Five Million Only) 
on Term Loan of Rs.8,500,000.00 (Rupees Eight Million 
Five Hundred Thousand Only) on Short Term Sub Loan I 
of Rs. 1,235,000.00 (Rupees One Million  Two Hundred  
Thirty  Five Thousand  only) on Short Term Sub Loan II 
of Rs.72,000.00 (Rupees Seventy Two  Thousand  only),  
Short Term  Sub Loan III of Rs.1,573,000.00 (Rupees One 
Million Five Hundred Seventy Three Thousand only) on 
Short Term Sub Loan IV of Rs.2,551,000.00 (Rupees Two 
Million Five Hundred Fifty One Thousand only) Short Term 
Sub Loan V of Rs.1,860,000.00 (Rupees One Million Eight 
Hundred  Sixty Thousand  only) on Short Term Sub Loan 
VI of Rs.1,457,000.00 (Rupees One Million Four Hundred 
Fifty  Seven Thousand only) on Short Term Sub Loan VII of 
Rs.402,000.00 (Rupees Four Hundred Two Thousand only) 
on Short Term Sub Loan VIII of Rs.665,000.00 (Rupees Six 
Hundred Sixty Five Thousand only) respectively together 
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with further interest to be accumulated from 30.08.2023 on 
the capital outstanding of the said Permanent Over Draft 
Facility of s.5,000,000.00 (Rupees Five Million Only) 
at the rate of 26.75% (Twenty Six point Seven Five) per 
centum per annum, on the Rescheduled B Term Loan of 
Rs.8,500,000.00  (Rupees Eight Million  Five Hundred  
Thousand  Only)  at the rate  of 25.75% (Twenty-Five Point 
Seven Five) per centum per annum, on the Short Term 
Sub Loan I of Rs. 1,235,000.00 (Rupees One Million Two 
Hundred Thirty Five Thousand only) at the rate of 25.75% 
(Twenty Five Point Seven Five) per centum per annum,   
on the Short Term  Sub Loan II of Rs.72,000.00 (Rupees 
Seventy Two Thousand only) at the rate of 25.75% (Twenty 
Five Point Seven Five) per centum per annum, on the Short 
Term Sub Loan III of Rs. 1,573,000.00 (Rupees One Million 
Five Hundred Seventy Three Thousand only) at the rate of 
25.75% (Twenty Five Point Seven Five) per centum per 
annum on the  Short  Term  Sub  Loan  IV  of  Rs.2,551,000.00  
(Rupees  Two  Million  Five  Hundred  Fifty One Thousand 
only) at the rate of 25.75% (Twenty Five Point Seven Five) 
per centum per annum, on the Short Term Sub Loan V of 
Rs.1,860,000.00 (Rupees One Million Eight Hundred Sixty 
Thousand only) at the rate of 25.75% (Twenty Five Point 
Seven Five) per centum per annum, on the Short Term Sub 
Loan VI of Rs.1,457,000.00 (Rupees One Million Four 
Hundred Fifty Seven Thousand only) at the rate of 25.75% 
(Twenty Five Point Seven Five) per centum per annum, on 
the Short Term Sub Loan VII of Rs. 402,000.00 (Rupees 
Four Hundred Two Thousand only) at the rate of 25.75% 
(Twenty Five Point Seven Five) per centum per annum, on 
the Short Term Sub Loan VIII of Rs.665,000.00 (Rupees Six 
Hundred Sixty Five Thousand only) at the rate of 25.75% 
(Twenty Five Point Seven Five) per centum per annum till 
the date of payment on Mortgage Bond No. 4136 dated 
02.08.2022 attested by Deepthi Weerasuriya N.P. ·

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordin:pice (Cap. 397) and its amendments, Mr. M. H. T. 
Karunaratne of T & H Auctions, the Auctioneer of 50/3, 
Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorized and empowered 
to sell by public auction the property mortgaged to the Bank 
of Ceylon and fully described in the Schedule hereunder for 
the recovery of the said sum of Rs. 29,042,036.36 (Rupees 
Twenty Nine Million Forty Two Thousand Thirty Six and 
Cents Thirty Six Only) due on the said Mortgage Bond 
No. 4136 together with further interest as aforesaid from 
30.08.2023 to date of sale, and costs and monies recoverable 
under Section 26 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and 
that the Senior Manager, Recovery & Credit Supervision, 
Metropolitan Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to publish 
notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said 
Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No.22 dated 30th October 2021 made 
by I.D.Malwenna Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Tuttiripitiyahena situated at Batuwita in Grama Niladhari 
Division of 611B Batuwita South and in Divisional 
Secretary’s Division of Horana within the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Horana in Kumbuke Pattu of Raigam Korale in 
the District of Kalutara Western Province and which said 
Lot A is bounded on the North by Lot 1 of Lot B in Plan 
No. 2499 made by Mr. James O.Orr, Licensed Surveyor and 
Lot 2A in Plan No. 1184 dated 9th July 1983 made by D.H. 
Athulathmudali, Licensed Surveyor, on the East by Kosgoda 
Dammawansa Lane on the South  by Lot 2C in the said Plan 
No. 1184  and on the West by Lot 3 of Lot B in Plan No.2499  
made by Mr. James 0.Orr Licensed Surveyor and Lot A of 
the Tuttiripitiyahena containing in extent Three Roods and 
Thirty Six decimal Seven Six Perches (0A., 3R., 36.76P.) or 
Naught decimal Three Nine Six Five of a  Hectare (0.3965 
of a Hectare) according to the said Plan No.22 together with 
everything   thereon.

Which said allotment of land marked Lot A is a re survey 
of the land described   below

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2B depicted in Plan No.1184 dated 09th  July, 1983 
made by D.H. Athulathmudali, Licensed Surveyor ·of the 
land called Tuttiripitiyahena situated at Batuwita aforesaid 
and which said Lot 2B is bounded on the North by Lot 1 
of the same land on the East by V C Road on the South by 
Lot 2C and on the WEST by Lot A of the  same  land and 
containing  in extent One Acre  (1A., 0R., 0P.)  according to 
the said Plan No.1184  together with  everything thereon and 
registered  in A532/07 at the land registry of Horana. The 
above schedule is in order.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of  
Ceylon.

	 W. M. H. A. S. S. B. Ekanayake, 
	 Senior Manager, 
	 Recovery  & Credit Supervision.

Bank of Ceylon,
Metropolitan Branch. 

02-401
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BANK OF CEYLON

	 Notice under section 21 of the Bank of 
Ceylon ordinance (Chapter  397) as  amended by 

Act, No. 34 of 1968 and Law No. 10 of 1974
	
At  a  meeting  held  on 04.12.2023 the  Board of Directors  
of this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

It is hereby resolved:

1. That a sum of Rs; 6,171,163.40 (Rupees Six Million 
One Hundred and Seventy One Thousand One Hundred and   
Sixty  Three and Cents Forty) on account of the principal 
and  interest  up to 10.10.2023  and  together  with  further  
interest on Rs. 3,829,419.54 (Rupees Three  Million Eight  
Hundred  and Twenty.Nine  thousand  Four Hundred  and 
Nineteen and Cents Fifty Four) the rate of Seventeen 
Decimal Nine Eight (17.98%) per centum per annum from  
l1.10.2023 till the date of payment on Loan facility  l; sum of  
Rs. 8,015,442.36 (Rupees Eight Million Fifteen Thousand  
Four  Hundred  and Forty Two and Cents Thirty Six) on 
account of the principal and interest up to 10.10.2023 and 
together with further interest on Rs. 4,794,735.42 (Rupees 
Four Million Seven Hundred and Ninety Four Thousand 
Seven Hundred -Thirty Five and Cents Forty Two) at the 
rate of Twenty Three Decimal Two Five (23.25%) per 
centum per annum from 11.10.2023 till the date of payment . 
on Loan facility 2, sum of Rs. 35,678,967.59 (Rupees Thirty 
Five Million Six Hundred and Seventy Eight Thousand. 
Nine Hundred and Sixty Seven and Cents Fifty Nine) on 
account of the principal and interest up to 10.10.2023 and 
together with further interest on Rs.  21,418,315.94  (Rupees 
Twenty One Million Four. Hundred and Eighteen· Thousand 
Three Hundred and Fifteen and Cents  Ninety  Four)  at  the  
rate of  Twenty  Three Decimal  Two Five  (23.25%) per 
centum per annum from 11.10.2023 till the date of payment  
on Loan facility  3 and  sum of Rs. 2,096,063.18 (Rupees 
Two Million Ninety Six Thousand Sixty Three and Cents 
Eighteen) on account of the principal and further interest 
up to 10.10.2023 and together with further interest on Rs. 
1,256,154.43 (Rupees One Million Two Hundred and Fifty 
Six Thousand. One Hundred and Fifty Four and Cents 
Forty Three) at the·rate of Twenty Three Decimal Two 
Five (23.25%) per centum per annum from 11.10.2023 
till the date of payment on Loan facility 4 are due from 
M/S Supuna Rice Mill, (Partners - Mr. Wanninayake 
Mudiyanselage Udara · Supun Kumara Wanninanayake · 
and Mr. Wanninayake   Mudiyanselage   Herath   Bandage   
Jayasundara)   of     Hulogedara, Nikaweratiya on Mortgage 
Bond No. 3161 dated 25.09.2014, Mortgage Bond  
No. 2262 dated 12.01.2012, Mortgage Bond No. 3948 dated 
22.04.2016,  Mortgage  Bond No. 1908 dated 21.01.2011 

and Mortgage Bond No. 2882 dated 19.02.2014 both attested 
by R. M. K. S. M. Rathnayake, Notary Public.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap.397) and its amendments Mr. M. H. T. 
Karunarathna, the Auctioneer of T & H Auctions, No. 50/3, 
Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorized.and empowered 
to sell by public auction, the properties mortgaged to the 
Bank . of Ceylon and described in the Schedule hereunder 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rs. 6,171,163.40  (Rupees  
Six Million One Hundred and Seventy One Thousand One 
Hundred and Sixty Three and Cents Forty) on account of 
the principal and interest up to 10.10.2023 and together with 
further interest on Rs. 3,829,419.54 (Rupees Three Million 
Eight Hundred and Twenty Nine Thousand Four Hundred 
and Nineteen and Cents Fifty Four) at the rate of Twenty 
Three Decimal Two Five (23.25%) per centum per annum 
from 11.10.2023 till the date of sale on Loan facility 1, the 
said sum of Rs. 8,015,442.36 (Rupees Eight Million Fifteen 
Thousand Four Hundred and Forty:Two  and  Cents Thirty  
Six) on account of the principal and interest up to 10.10.2023 
and together with further interest on Rs. 4,794,735.42 
(Rupees Four Million Seven Hundred and Ninety Four 
Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty Five and Cents Forty Two) 
at the rate of Twenty Three Decimal Two Five (23.25%) per 
centum per annum from 11.10.2023 till the date of sale on 
Loan facility 2, sum of Rs. 35,678,967.59 (Rupees Thirty 
Five Million Six Hundred and Seventy Eight Thousand Nine 
Hundred and Sixty Seven and Cents Fifty Nine) on account 
of the principal and interest up to 10.10.2023 and together 
with further interest on Rs. 21,418,315.94 (Rupees Twenty 
One Million Four Hundred and Eighteen Thousand Three 
Hundred and Fifteen and Cents Ninety Four) at the rate of 
Twenty Three Decimal Two Five (23,25%) per centum per 
annum from 11.l0.2023 till the date of sale on Loan facility 
3 and the sum of Rs. 2,096,063. 18 (Rupees Two Million 
Ninety Six Thousand Sixty Three and Cents Eighteen) on 
account of the principal and interest up  to  10.10.2023  
and   together  with  further  interest  on Rs. 1,256, I 54.43  
(Rupees  One Million Two Hundred and Fifty Six Thousand 
One Hundred and Fifty Four and Cents Forty Three) at 
the rate of Twenty Three Decimal Two Five (23.25%) per 
centum per annum from 11.10.2023 till the date of sale 
on Loan facility 4 are due on the said Mortgage Bond No. 
3161 dated   25.09.2014, Mortgage Bond No. 2262 dated 
12.01.2012, Mortgage Bond No. 3948 dated 22.04.2016, 
Mortgage  Bond  No. 1908 dated  21.01.2011  and  Mortgage  
Bond  No.2882  dated   19.02.2014  both  attested   by R. M. 
K. S. M.  Rathnayake,  Notary Public,  and costs and  monies  
recoverable  under Section 26  of the  said  Bank of Ceylon  
ordinance  and,that  the Manager, Nikaweratiya Branch of 
Bank of Ceylon, to publish notice of this resolution in terms 
of Section 21 of the said Bank of Ceylon ordinance.
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THE SCHEDULE

THE SCHEDULE REFERRED IN THE MORTGAGE  
BOND  Nos. 1908, 2262, 2882 & 3161

All  that  divided and  defined allotment  of Crown 
land  situated at  Wahannehera Village within the Grama  
Niladhari Division of   321 - Hulogedara in  Divisional 
Secretary’s Division of Nikaweratiya within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Nikaweratiya in Magul Othota Korale of 
Wanni Hatpattu in the District of Kurunegala North Western 
Province  and bounded on the North by Land of R. B.   
Wanninayake, on the East by Athdanduwa Kumbura, on  the 
South by  Land of  W. M. Gunasekara  and  on the  West  
by Gammaim  Road  and  containing  in  extent  One Acre   
(1A., 0R., 0P.) together with everything standing thereon.   
Registered  in LDO Nika Nika/92/100 at Nikaweratiya   
Land Registry.

Which  said land  is now called  Addanduwawa Kele  
depicted  as Lot  1 in Plan No. 6608 dated 27.07.2005 
made by W. A. Sirisena, Licensed Surveyor situated at 
Wahannehera  village aforeaid and bounded on the North   by  
Land  claimed by R. B. Wanninayake,  East  by Athdanduwa 
Kumbura,  South  by  Land  claimed by W. M.  Gunasekara  
and  on  the  West   by Road from  Main  Road  to  Houses 
and containing in extent One Acre (1A., 0R., 0P.) together 
with everything else standing thereon.

RESERVATIONS

	 1. 	 The title to all Minerals (which term shall in this grant 
include previous stones) in or upon the holdings and 
the right to Dig for, search for, work and carry away 
any such minerals are reserved to the State.

	 2. 	 The Owner’s Title to the.holding  is subject to any 
right of way or other  servitude existing over the 
holdings at the date of this Grant

CONDITIONS:

	 1.	 The owner shall not dispose of a divided portion of 
the holding less in extent than the unit of sub division 
specified herein namely .......... Hectares/Acres 
highland ...........Hectares/Acres  irrigated land

	 2.	 The owner shall not dispose of an undivided share of 
the holding less that the minimum  fraction specified 
herein  namely  .........

	 3.	  No person shall be the owner  of a divided  portion  of 
the holding  less in  extent than the unit of sub division 
specified in condition 01

	 4. 	No person shall be the owner of an undivided share of 
the holding less than the minimum  fraction specified 
in the condition 02

	 5.	 If the holding or any part of it is irrigable or becomes 
irrigable here after by any irrigation work already 
constructed in the course of constructions or to be 
constructed hereafter the owner shall comply in 
respect of irrigable area, with the provisions of the 
irrigations Ordinance (chapter 453) and any rules 
framed there under;

	 6.	 The owner shall not dig or search for take appropriate 
sell or otherwise dispose of any minerals in ‘or upon 
the land unless he has obtained permission in writing 
from the Government Agent and License from.the 
appropriate authority.

	 7.	 No disposition of the holding or any.prtion thereof 
shll be made ecept with the prior permission in 
writing.of the Divisional Secretary.

THE  SCHEDULE  REFERRED  IN THE  MORTGAGE  
BONd No. 3948

All that divided and defind allotment of Crown land 
situated at Wahannehera village within the  Grama  Niladari  
Division  of  321-Hulogedara  in  Divisional   Secretary’s 
Division  of  Nikaweratiya  within  the  Pradeshiy  Sabha  
Limits  of  Nikaweratiya   in Magul Othota Korale of 
Wanni Hatpattu in the District of Kurunegala North 
Western Province and bounded on the North by Land of 
Jayasundara, East by Addanduwa Wela, South by Land of R. 
B. Hemapala and on the West by Road from Mawatha Wewa 
and containing in extent Two Roods (0A., 2R., 0P.) together 
with everything else standing thereon. Registered in, LDO 
Nika/Nika 88/33 at Nilaweratiya Land Registry.

Which said land is now called Kapuyaya Hena depicted 
as Lot 1 in Plan No. 14188 dated 16.05.2014 made by  
S. M. Ariyadasa, Licensed Survyor situated at Wahannehera 
Village within the Grama Niiladhari  Division  of 321 

.	 .
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-  Hulogeda in Divisional  Secretary’s Division  of 
Nikaweratiya  within the .Pradeshiya  Sabha Limits of  
Niweratiya in Magul Othota  Korale of  Wanni Hatpattu in  
the District of Kurunegala  North  Western  Province and 
bounded on the NORTH  by Land  claimed by  Jayasundara  
East  by  Addaduwa   Wela, South by Land claimed by R. B. 
Hemapala  and  on the West  by  Road  from  Maho  Road  
to Tank  and containing  in extent Two Roods (0A., 2R., 0P.) 
together with everything else standing thereon.

RESERVATIONS

	 1. 	 The title to all Minerals (which term shall in this grant 
include previous stones) in or upon the holdings and 
the right to Dig for, search for, work and carry away 
any such minerals are reserved to the State.

	 2. 	 The Owner’s Title to the.holding  is subject to any 
right of way or other  servitude existing over the 
holdings at the date of this Grant

CONDITIONS:

	 1.	 The owner shall not dispose of a divided portion of 
the holding less in extent than the unit of sub division 
specified herein namely .......... Hectares/Acres 
highland ...........Hectares/Acres  irrigated land

	 2.	 The owner shall not dispose of an undivided share of 
the holding less that the minimum  fraction specified 
herein  namely  .........

	 3.	  No person shall be the owner  of a divided  portion  of 
the holding  less in  extent than the unit of sub division 
specified in condition 01

	 4. 	No person shall be the owner of an undivided share of 
the holding less than the minimum  fraction specified 
in the condition 02

	 5.	 If the holding or any part of it is irrigable or becomes 
irrigable here after by any irrigation work already 
constructed in the course of constructions or to be 
constructed hereafter the owner shall comply in 
respect of irrigable area, with the provisions of the 
irrigations Ordinance (chapter 453) and any rules 
framed there under;

	 6.	 The owner shall not dig or search for take appropriate 
sell or otherwise dispose of any minerals in ‘or upon 
the land unless he has obtained permission in writing 
from the Government Agent and License from.the 
appropriate authority.

	 7.	 No disposition of the holding or any portion thereof 
shall be made except with the prior permission in 
writing of the Divisional Secretary.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of  
Ceylon,

	 Mr. V. A. R. P.  Vithanarachchi, 
	 Manager.

Bank of Ceylon, 
Nikaweratiya.

02-402

BANK OF CEYLON

Notice under section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
ordinance (Chapter  397) as  amended by  

Act, No. 34 of 1968 and Law No. 10 of 1974

At a meeting held on 08.01.2024 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously-

	 1.	 That a sum of Rs. 2,544,448.77 (Rupees Two Million 
Five Hundred Forty Four Thousand Four Hundred 
Forty Eight and Cents Seventy Seven Only) on 
account of the principle and interest up to 04.10.2023 
and together with further interest on Rs. 2,438,275.30 
(Rupees Two Million Four Hundred Thirty Eight 
Thousand Two Hundred Seventy Five and Cents Thirty 
Only) at the rate of 4%  per annum from 05.10.2023 
till the date of payment isdue on the Working Capital 
Loan and sum of Rs. 47,687,425.04 (Rupees  Forty  
Seven  Million  Six  Hundred  Eighty Seven Thousand 
Four Hundred and Twenty Five and Cents Four 
Only) on account of the principle and interest up 
to 04.10.2023 and together with further interest on  
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Rs. 37,919,707.61 (Rupees Thirty Seven Million Nine 
Hundred Nineteen Thousand Seven Hundred Seven 
and Cents Sixty One Only) at the rate of 18.11% per 
annum from 05.10.2023 till the date of payment  is 
due on the Term Loan (Term Loan 1) and sum of  
Rs. 3,561,894.95 (Three Million Five Hundred Sixty 
One Thousand Eight hundred Ninety Four and Cents 
Ninety Five Only) on account of the principle and 
interest  up  to 04.10.2023 and together with  further 
interest on Rs. 3,491,337.23 (Three Million Four 
Hundred Ninety One Thousand Three Hundred 
Thirty Seven and Cents Twenty Three only) at the 
rate of 7.25% per annum from 05.10.2023 till the 
date of payment is due on the Term Loan (Term 
Loan 2) and sum of Rs. 4,753,335.25 (Four Million 
Seven Hundred Fifty Three Thousand Three Hundred 
Thirty Five and Cents Twenty Five Only) on account 
of the principle and interest up to 04.10.2023 and 
together with further interest on Rs. 4,209,518.84  
(Four Million Two Hundred Nine Thousand Five 
Hundred Eighteen and Cents Eighty Four Only) at the 
rate of 15.5%, per annum from 05.10.2023 till the date 
of payment is due on the Moratorium Sub Loan are 
due from Kotmale Food Products {Private Limited) 
of New Town, Kotmale on Mortgage Bond No. 299 
dated 11.12.2018, attested by Mrs. H. M. U. P. Herath 
N.P. and Mortgage Bond No.4913 dated 12.09.2022 
attested by Mrs. R. V.  Andarawewa N.P

	 2. 	That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap 397) and its amendments, Mr. Thusitha 
Karunarathna, M/S T& H Auction, the Auctioneers of 
No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorised 
and empowered to sell by Public auction the property 
mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the 
schedule hereunder, for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rs. 2,544,448.77 (Two Million Five Hundred Forty 
Four Thousand Four Hundred Forty-Eight and Cents 
Seventy Seven Only) on the Working capital Loan 
and sum of Rs. 47,687,425.04 (Forty Seven Million 
Six Hundred Eighty Seven Thousand Four Hundred 
Twenty Five and Cents Four Only) on the Term 
Loan (Term Loan 1), and sum of Rs. 3,561,894.95 
(Three Million Five Hundred Sixty One Thousand 
Eight Hundred Ninety Four and Cents Ninety Five 
Only) on the Term Loan (Term Loan 2), and sum of  
Rs. 4,753,335.25 (Four Million Seven Hundred Fifty 
Three Thousand Three Hundred Thirty Five and Cents 
Twenty Five Only) on the Moratorium Sub Loan, on 
the said Mortgage Bond No: 299 dated 11.12.2018, 
attested by Mrs. H. M. U. P. Herath N.P. and Mortgage 
Bond No. 4913 dated 12.09.2022 attested by  
Mrs. R. V. Andarawewa, N.P. together with interest 
as aforesaid from 05.l 0.2023 to date of sale and costs 

and monies recoverable under Section 26 of the said 
Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and the Manager of the 
Nawalapitiya Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to publish 
notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the 
said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of Jayabhoomi 
land called Balapokuna Watta marked Lot 12 depicted in 
Plan No. NU 1966 authenticated by the surveyor General 
and kept in his charge situated at Panamgammana and 
Sangilipalama village in Grama Niladhari Division of 
474 Ramboda and Pradeshiya Sabha limits of Kothmale in 
Ramboda Korale in the Divisional Secretariat of Kothmale 
and District of Nuwara Eliya Central Province containing in 
extent Naught Decimal Naught five four (0.054) Hectare  
and bounded on the North by Lots 17 1/2 and 13 on the 
East by Lot 13 and 14 on the South by Lots 14 and Lot 9 
and on the West by Lots 11 and 17 1/2 in accordance with 
the survey and description of aforesaid Plan No. NU 1966 
together with everything standing thereon and Registered in 
LDO Q 07/97 at the Land Registry Nuwara Eliya.

All that divided and defined allotment of Jayabhoomi 
Land called Balapokuna watta marked Lot 10 depicted in 
Plan No. NU 1966 authenticated by the surveyor General 
and kept in his charge situated at Panamgammana and 
Sangilipalama Village in Grama Niladari Division of  
No. 474 Ramboda and Pradeshiya Sabha limits of Kothmale 
in Ramboda Korale in the Divisional Secretariat of Kothmale 
and District of Nuwara Eliya Central Province containing in  
extent Naught Decimal Naught Three Seven Hectare (0.037 
Hec.) and bounded on the North by Lot 7 and 17 1/2, on the 
East by Lots 17 1/2 and 11, on the South by Lot 11and Lot 
9 and on the West by Lots 9,8 and 7 in accordance with the 
survey and description of the aforesaid Plan No. NU 1966 
thereon with everything standing thereon and Registered in 
LDO Q 07/98 at the Land Registry Nuwara Eliya.

RESERVATIONS

	 l. 	The title to all minerals (which term shall in this grant 
include precious stone) in or upon the holding and the 
right to dig for, search for work and carry away any 
such minerals, are reserved to the State

	 2. 	The owners title to the holding is subject to any right 
of way or other servitude existing over the holding at 
the date of this grant.
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CONDitiONS

	 1.	 The owner shall not dispose of a divided portion of the 
holding.  

	 2.	 The owner shall not dispose of an undivided share of 
the holding.

	 3.	 No person shall be the owner of a divided portion of 
the holding.

	 4.	 No person shall be the owner of an undivided Share of 
the holding.

	
	 5. 	 If the holding or any part of it is irrigable or becomes 

irrigable hereafter by any irrigation work already 
constructed in the course of construction. or to be 
constructed hereafter, the owner shall comply in 
respect of the irrigable area, with the provisions of 
the irrigation Ordinance (Chapter 453) and any rules 
framed thereunder.

	 6.	 The owner shall not dig or search for take appropriate, 
sell or otherwise dispose of any minerals in or upon 
the land unless he has obtained permission in writing 
from the Government Agent and a license from the 
appropriate authority.

	 7.	 No disposition of the holding or any portion thereof 
shall be made except with the prior permission in 
writing of the Divisional Secretary.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of  
Ceylon,

	 D. M. P. Dissanayaka,
	 Manager.

Bank of Ceylon, 
Nawalpitiya Branch.

02-395

COMMERCIAL BANK OF CEYLON  PLC
narammala branch

Resolution  adopted  by  the  Board  of  Diretors  of  
Commercial  Bank  of  Ceylon  PLC (Registration  
No. PQ 116)  under Section 4 of the Recovery  of  

Loans by Banks  (Special Provisions)  
Act, No. 4 of  1990

	
Loan Account No. : 2868580 & 2868572.

S T K Multy Engineers (Private)  Limited.   

At a meeting held on 20th December, 2023, the Board of 
Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved 
unanimously as follows: -	

Whereas s t k multy engineers (private) limited, a 
Company duly  incorporated in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka bearing Registration No. PV 96002 
and having  its  Registered  office at Bangalawatta,  Sirigala,  
Dambadeniya, as  the  Obligor, mortgaged and  hypothecated  
the  land  and premises  morefully  described  in the  First 
Schedule hereto by Mortgage  Bond  Nos. 423  dated 27th 
December, 2016  and 712 dated 12th July,  2018  both attested  
by s. B.  P. T. S. Pathirana,  Notary  Public of  Kurunegala, 
in favour  of Commercial  Bank  of  Ceylon   PLC,  as  
security  for  the  repayment  of  the aforesaid  facilities,  and  
the  said  S  T  K  Multy  Engineers  (Private)  Limited  has 
made default in payment due on the said Mortgage Bond 
Nos. 423  and 712.

And Whereas  the said S T K Multy Engineers  (Private)  
Limited, as the Obliger, and Adhikari Pathirannehelage 
Lasantha Sampath Adhikari of Bangalawatta Sirigala, 
Dambadeniya, as the Mortgagor, mortgaged and 
hypothecated the  land   and  premises   morefully   described 
in  the   Second   schedule   hereto   by Mortgage  Bond 
No.  546 dated  11th August, 2017  attested  by  s. B. P. 
T.  S. Pathirana, Notary Public of  Kurunegala, in favour  
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC, as security for  
the  repayment of the  aforesaid facilities, and the said S 
T K Multy Engineers (Private) Limited and Adhikari   
Pathirannehelage Lasantha Sampath Adhikari have made 
default in payment due on the said Mortgage Bond No. 546.

And  Whereas  there  is,  inter  alia,  now due  and  
owing  to  the  Commercial  Bank  of Ceylon  PLC,  as  
at  03rd    November,   2023,  on   account   of   capital  
and  interest,   an aggregate sum  of Rupees  Forty  Million  
Three   Hundred  and Ninety  One Thousand   Twenty   
Three   and   Cents   Eighty   Two   (Rs. 40, 391,023.82), 
as described  herein  below,  upon  the  said,  Bonds  in  
respect  of  the  Rescheduled  Term Loan No. 2868580 and 
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COVID  19 Review Loan  No. 2868572  and the Board of  
Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC under the 
powers vested by the recovery of Loans by  Banks  (Special 
Provisions)  Act,  No. 4 of  1990 do  hereby  resolve  that  
the land  and premises   morefully   described   in   the   
Schedules   hereto   and  mortgaged to the Commercial Bank 
of Ceylon PLC by the said Bond Nos. 423, 712,  and 546  be 
sold by Public Auction by Arawwawala Susila Kumari of  
No. 109/21, Pelengasthuduwa Road, Borella, Colombo 08, 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Forty Million 
Three Hundred and Ninety One Thousand Twenty Three 
and Cents Eighty Two  (Rs. 40,391,023.82) with further 
interest as set out herein below and together with costs of 
advertising and any other charges incurred less payments  (if  
any)  since received:

	 (a) 	 In respect of Rescheduled Loan No. 2868580 an 
aggregate sum of Rs. 33,240,036.27,  as at 03rd  
November, 2023,  together  with  further  interest  on 
the balance capital sum of Rs. 26,678,000.00 at the 
rate of 16% per annum from 04th November, 2023 to 
the date of sale and

	 (b) 	 In respect of COVID 19 Review Loan	No. 2868572, 
a sum of Rs. 7,150,987.55 as at 03rd November, 2023,  
together  with further  interest on the  balance capital 
sum of  Rs.  6,710,004.91 at the  rate of  8.5% per 
annum  from  04th November, 2023  to the date of 
sale. 

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

PROPERTY 01	

All that divided  and  defined  allotment  marked  Lot 
01 depicted  in Plan  No. 2927/16 dated 22.09.2016 made 
by L. W.  I. Jayasekara,  Licensed Surveyor  (resurvey 
of Lot 01 in Plan No. 1933 dated 23.06. 1993 made by  
H. M. H. Wijekoon,  Licensed Surveyor)  of the land called  
Bangalawatta  Estate (Part  of)  situated  at Dambadeniya  
Village in the Grama Niladhari  Division of Dambadeniya 
in the  Divisional Secretary  Division of  Narammala within 
the  Pradeshiya  Sabha  Limits of  Narammala  in Udukaha  
Korale West of Dambadeni Hathpaththu in the District 
of Kurunegala North Western Province and bounded on 
the	

North by 	 :	 main road from Giriulla to Kurunegala and Lot 
02 in the said Plan No. 2927/16, 	

East by 	 :	 Lot 02 in the said Plan No. 2927 /16 and Ela,

South by 	 :	 Ela, land claimed by Bandula Samarasinghe 
and land claimed by A.M. Jayawathie Menike

West by  	 :	 land  claimed  by  Bandula  Samarasinghe,  land  
claimed  by  A. M. Jayawathie Menike  and  
Main  Road  from  Giriulla  to  Kurunegala, and   
containing  in  extent  One   Rood  and   One  
Decimal  Five Perches  (A:00  R:01  P:01 50)  
together  with  trees,  plantations and everything 
standing thereon.

Which said Lot 01 in Plan No. 2927/16 is a more   recent 
resurvey and amalgamation of the lands morefully described 
below;

(A) All that divided and defined allotmet marked Lot 
16 depicted in Plan No. 481 dated 19.01.1963 made by 
C. W.  De Neese,  Licensed Surveyor  of the  land called 
Bangalawatta  now  bearing assessment  No.  192  situated  
at Dambadeniya Village aforesaid and bounded on the

North - 	by main road,
East -	 by Lot 17 of this land in the said Plan No. 481,
South - 	by the fields of Samarasinhe and Mudiyanse and
West - 	 by Lot 15 of this land in thf said Plan No. 481 

and land of Samarasinghe,	 .

and containing in extent Twenty-Four  Decimal Five 
Naught Perches (00A., 00R., 24.50P.)  together  with trees,  
plantations  and  evrything standing thereon.  The said land 
is  registered  under  Volume  / Folio F  606  / 294  at  the  
Kurunegala Land Registry.	

(B)  All  that  divided  and  defined  allotment  marked  Lot  
17 depicted  in  Plan  No. 481 dated  19.01. 1963 made by  
C. W.  De Neese,  Licensed  Surveyor  of the  land called 
Bangalawatta  now  bearing  assessment  No.  192  situated  
at Dambadeniya Village aforesaid and bounded on the, 

North - by main road, 
East -	 by Lot 18 of this land in the said Plan No. 481,
South - 	by the field of Kiri Mudiyanse,
West - 	 by Lot 16 of this land in the said Plan No. 481,

	
and containing in  extent  Twenty-one Decimal  Two   

Five   Perches   (00A., 00R., 21.25P.) together with trees,  
plantations   and everything standing thereon.  The said land  
is  registered  under  Volume  /  Folio  F  606 /  295  at  the  
Kurunegala  Land Registry. 
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PROPERTY  02

All  that  divided  and  defined  allotment  marked  Lot 
02  depicted  in  Plan  No. 2927/16 dated 22.09.2016 made 
by L. W.  I. Jayasekera, Licensed Surveyor  (resurvey of  
Lot  02 in Plan  No.  1933 dated  23.06.1993 made by   
H. M. H. Wijekoon,  Licensed  Surveyor) of the land called 
Bangalawatta  Estate (Part of)  situated  at  Dambadeniya  
Village aforesaid and bounded on the 

North 	 by main road from Giriulla to Kurunegala and 
land claimed by R. M. P. Thilakarathne,

East 	 by land claimed by R. M. P. Thilakarathne and 
Ela,

South 	 by Ela and Lot 01 in the said Plan No. 2927 /16, 
West 	 by Lot 01 in the said Plan No. 2927 / 16 and Main 

Road from Giriulla to Kurunegala 

and containing in  extent Thirteen Decimal  Six   Perches   
(00A., 00R., 13.60P.)   together with trees, plantations and 
everything standing thereon.

Which said Lot  02  in Plan No. 2927/16  is  a more  
recent  survey  of  the   land described below;

All that divided and defined allotment marked Lot 18 
depicted in Plan No. 481 dated 19.01.1963   made   by    
C.   W.   De   Neese, Licensed   Surveyor   of   the  land   
called Bangalawatta  situated at Dambadeniya, Village 
aforesaid and bounded on the,

North - by P. W. D. road,
East	 - by Lot 19 in the said Plan No. 481
South - by paddy field claimed by Kiri Mudiyanse, 
West   - by Lot 17 in the said Plan No. 481,

and containing in extent. Nineteen Decimlal Two 
Five Perches (00A., 00R., 19.25P.) together  with trees,  
plantations  and  evething standing thereon.  The  said land. 
is registered under Volume/Folio F 944/146 at the Land 
Registry.

The aforementioned  Lots  16, 17 in Plan  No.  481  
resurveyed  by  Plan  No. 1933 dated 23.06. 1993 made by 
H. M . H. Wijekoon, Licensed Surveyor and marked as Lot 
01 and said Lot 18 in Plan No.  481  aforesaid  resurveyed  
by  Plan  No.  1933 dated 23.06.1993 made by H. M. H.  
Wijekoon, Licensed Surveyor  and  marked  as Lot 02 and 
said  amalgamated  Lots 01 and 02 described  as follows:

All that amalgamated allotment of land marked  Lots 
01 and 02 depicted in Plan No. 1933 dated 23.06. 1993 
made by  H. M. H. Wijekoon,  Licensed Surveyor  of the 

I

land called Bangalawatta  Estate sitJated  at Dambadeniya 
Village in the Grama Niladhari  Division of Dambadeniya 
in the   Divisional Secretary Division of Narammala  within  
the  Pradeshiya  Sabha  Limits  of  Narammala  in  Udukaha  
Korale West   of   Dambadeni   Hathpaththu   in  ttie   District  
of   Kurunegala   North  Western Province and bounded on 
the

North by : 	main road ·from Giriulla to Kurµnegala, 
East by : 	 Land claimed by R M T Thilakarathna,
South by: 	 Ela,	
West by : 	 land claimed by Bandula Samarasinghe, land 

claimed by A. M. Jayawathie Menike.

and   containing in extent One Rood and Fifteen Decimal   
One Perches (00A., 01R., 15.10P.)  together with trees,   
plantations and everything standing thereon  and  registered  
under  volume/folio  T  56/11  at  the   Kuliyapitiya   Land 
registry. 

SECOND SCHEDULE 

All  that  divided  and  defined  allotment  marked  Lot  
01  depicted  in  Plan  No.  2225 dated  01.04.2002  made  
by  P.  A.  N.  Gunasiri, Licensed  Surveyor  of  the  land 
called “Bangalawalta   alias   Hewanewatta”   together   
with   trees,   plantations   and everything  standing  thereon   
situated   at   Riligala  Village  in  the   Grama   Niladari 
Division  of  Riligala  in  the  Divisional  Secretary  Division  
of  Narammala  within  the Pradeshiya   Sabha   Limits  of   
Narammala in  Udukaha   Korale  West   of   Dambadeni 
Hathpaththu   in  the   District   of   Kurunegala   (within   
the   registration   division   of Kuliyapitiya) North Western 
Province and .bounded on the,

North by 	 : Road reservation 13 feet wide  road 
East by	 : Lot 02 in the said Plan No. 2225,
South  by	 : Road to Main Road,
West   by	 :  part  of    his  land  and  containing  in  extent  

One  Rood  (00A., 01R., 00P.)

according to  plan No.  2225  and registered  under  Volume/
Folio T  17/19 at the Kuliyapitiya  Land Registry.	

According to a recent survey the above land is described 
as follows:

All that divided and defined allotment marked Lot 01 
depicted in Plan No. 8917 dated  19.07.2013  made  by  
K.  A.  Amarathunga,   Licensed  Surveyor  of  the  land 
called  “Bangalawalta  alias  Hewanewatta”    together  
with  trees,  plantations and  everything standing thereon  
situated at  Riligala  Village in the  Grama  Niladhari 
Division of  Riligala  in  the  Divisional  Sereiary  Division  
of  Nararnrnala  within  the Pradeshiya   Sabha   Limits  of   
Narammalai  in Udukaha   Korale  West   of   Dambadeni 
Hathpaththu  in the  District  of  Kurunegala  North  Western  
Province  and  bounded  on the,
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North by	 : Road leading to main road    
East by	 : land claimed by R. L. Sarath Kumara,
South  by	 : Road to Main Road
West   by	 :  Part  of  this  land  and  containing  in extent  One    

Rood  (00A., 01R., 00P.) according to said plan  
No. 8917.

	 R. A. P. Rajapaksha,	
	 Company Secretary.

20th December, 2023.

02-246

COMMERCIAL  BANK OF CEYLON PLC
Panadura  Extension Office Branch

Resolution  adopted  by  the  Board  of  Directors 
of  Commercial  Bank  of  Ceylon  PLC 

(Registration  No.  PQ  116)  under  Section  4  
of  the  Recovery  of  Loans  by  Banks (Special 

Provisions) Act,  No. 4 of  1990

Loan Account No. : 2763311.
“Daya Garment”.

At a meeting held on 27th November, 2023, the Board of 
Directors of  Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved 
unanimously as  follows:

Whereas  Ganegoda  Ganithage  Dayarathne  Keerthi  
carrying on  business  as the  sole  proprietor   under  the  
name,  style  and  firm  of   “Daya   Garment”  at No. 
52/21D,  Weerapuran  Appu  Mawatha,  Lakshapathiya,  
Moratuwa,  as  the  Obliger, mortgaged  and  hypothecated  
the  land  and  premises  morefully  described  in  the 
schedule   hereto   by  a  Mortgage   Bond   No.4353   dated   
09.07.2021 attested   by J.  M.  P.  S.  Jayaweera,   Notary  
Public of  Colombo, and 2626 dated 15.10.2021 attested by    
A.   A.   S.   D.  Munasinghe,   Notary  Public  of  Colombo,  
in  favour   of Commercial  Bank  of  Ceylon  PLC,  as  
security  for  the  repayment  of  the  aforesaid facility  and 
the  said  Ganegoda  Ganithage  Dayarathne  Keerthi  has 
made default in payment due on the said Bond Nos. 4353 
and 2626.

And Whereas  there is,  inter alia, now due and owing 
to the Commercial  Bank  of  Ceylon  PLC,  on  account  
of  capital  and  interest  up  to  09th  October   2023,   an 
aggregate   sum   of   Rupees   Six   Million  Seven   Hundred  
and   Eighty-Four Thousand Three, Hundred and Forty-Five 

and Cents      Ten (Rs. 6,784, 345. 10)  upon  the  said  Bond  
in  respect  of  the  said  Rescheduled  Loan No.2763311  
and  the  Board  of  Directors  of  Commercial  Bank  of  
Ceylon  PLC  under the powers vested  by the Recovery 
of  Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of  
1990  do  hereby  resolve  that  the  land  and  premises  
morefully  described  in Schedule hereto and mortgaged to 
the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC by the said Mortgage  
Bond  No.  4353  and  2626  be  sold  by  Public  Auction  
by  Arawwawala Susila Kumari, Licensed Auctioneer, of  
No.109/ 21,  Pelengasthuduwa  Road,  Borella, Colombo  08,  
for  the  recovery  of  the  said  sum  of  Rupees  Six  Million  
Seven Hundred and Eighty Four Thousand Three  Hundred 
and  Forty Five and Cents  Ten (Rs. 6,784,345.10)  together  
with  further   interest  on  the  balance capital sum of  Rs. 
5,986,640. 00 in respect of the said Term  Loan No.2763311 
at the rate of  18% per annum  from  10th  October,  2023  
to date of sale together  with costs of   advertising  and   any   
other charges   incurred   less   payments (if  any) since 
received.

SCHEDULE

All  that  divided  and  defined  allotment  of  land  marked  
Lot  2  depicted  in  Plan No.944A  dated  03.02. 1990  made  
by  S.  Liyanage,  Licensed  Surveyor  of  the  land called  
“Ketakelagahawatta   alias  Kahatagahawatta”   together   
with  the buildings,   trees,   plantations   and   everything   
else   standing   thereon   bearing Assessment  No. 10/10,   
presently  bearing assessment  number 52/ 21D, Weera  
Puran Appu   Mawatha   situated   at   Lakshapathiya   in  the   
Grama   Niladhari   Division   of Laxapathiya  North  550A  
in Divisional  Secretariat  Division  of  Moratuwa  within the 
Urban Council Limits of Moratuwa in Palle Pattu of Salpiti 
Korale in the  District of Colombo Western  Province and 
which said Lot 2 is bounded on the North by Lot 1 on the 
East by Lot 12 on the South by Lots 4, 5, 6, & 12 and on 
the West by Lot 3 and  containing in  extent  Ten  Perches  
(0A., 0R., 10P.)  according  to  the  said  Plan No. 944A  
and  registered  under  Volume/Folio  D  275/109  at  the  
Delkanda Nugegoda Land Registry.

Together with the right to use the rights of way over and 
along Lot 6 & 1 in said plan No. 994A.

	 R. A. P. Rajapaksha,
	 Company Secretary.

27th November, 2023.

02-245
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